Public Document Pack
Agenda for Cabinet
Wednesday, 6th January, 2021, 6.00 pm
Members of Cabinet
Councillors M Armstrong, P Arnott (Chair), P Hayward
(Vice-Chair), J Bailey, G Jung, D Ledger,
M Rixson, J Rowland, J Loudoun and
S Jackson

Venue:

Online via the Zoom app.

Contact:

Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services
Officer 01395 517543 or email
acoombes@eastdevon.gov.uk

East Devon District Council
Blackdown House
Border Road
Heathpark Industrial Estate
Honiton
EX14 1EJ
DX 48808 HONITON
Tel: 01404 515616
www.eastdevon.gov.uk

(or group number 01395 517546)
Tuesday 5 January 2021
Important - this meeting will be conducted online and recorded by Zoom only.
Please do not attend Blackdown House.
Members are asked to follow the Protocol for Remote Meetings
This meeting is being recorded by EDDC for subsequent publication on the Council’s
website and will be streamed live to the Council’s Youtube Channel at
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw
Public speakers are now required to register to speak – for more information please use
the following link: https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/have-your-say-atmeetings/all-other-virtual-public-meetings/#article-content
1

Public speaking
Information on public speaking is available online

2

Minutes of the previous meetings held on 25 November and 2 December 2020
(Pages 5 - 17)

3

Apologies

4

Declarations of interest
Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making
declarations of interest

5

Matters of urgency

Mark Williams, Chief Executive

page 1

Information on matters of urgency is available online
There are three late items to be dealt with in this manner:
Agenda item 19 Minutes of LED Monitoring Forum held on 16 December 2020
Agenda item 24 Cranbrook Town Centre
Agenda item 27 Exeter and East Devon Enterprise Zone - amendment to
funding agreement for the Ada Lovelace Building, Exeter Science Park
6

Confidential/exempt item(s)
To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the Press) have
been excluded. There are no items which officers recommend should be dealt
with in this way.

7

Forward Plan (Pages 18 - 19)

8

Minutes of Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group held on 17 November 2020
(Pages 20 - 26)

9

Minutes of South and East Devon Habitats Regulations Executive Committee
held on 18 November 2020 (Pages 27 - 31)

10

Minutes of Car Parking Task and Finish Forum held on 19 November and 26
November 2020 (Pages 32 - 40)

11

Minutes of Asset Management Forum held on 1 December 2020 (Pages 41 45)

12

Minutes of Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel held on 1 December
2020 (Pages 46 - 50)

13

Minutes of Arts and Culture Forum held on 3 December 2020 (Pages 51 - 57)

14

Minutes of Poverty Working Panel held on 11 November and 7 December 2020
(Pages 58 - 69)

15

Minutes of Council held on 9 December 2020 (Pages 70 - 80)
Minute 114: Poverty Strategy and Actions
Council referred the motion to the first Cabinet meeting of 2021 for Cabinet to
give it urgent consideration and to decide whether a further report should be
prepared to identify practicable and affordable further actions.

16

Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 10 December 2020 (Pages 81 - 89)

17

Minutes of Housing Company Task and Finish Forum held on 14 December
2020 (Pages 90 - 94)

18

Minutes of Strategic Planning Committee held on 15 December 2020 (Pages 95
- 109)

19

Minutes of LED Monitoring Forum held on 16 December 2020 (Pages 110 117)

Matters for Decision - Key Decisions

page 2

20

Council Tax Base 2021/2022 (Pages 118 - 121)
This report sets out the tax base for 2021/2022 and includes the breakdown for
each parish, expressed in terms of Band D equivalent properties on which the
council tax will be based. This is an important component in the Council’s budget
setting process for 2021/2022.

Matters for Decision
21

Draft Revenue and Capital Budgets 2021/22 (Pages 122 - 139)
This report presents the draft revenue and capital budgets for 2021/22 for
adoption by the Cabinet before consideration by a joint meeting of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committees and the Housing Review Board.

22

Poverty - our response to the crisis (Pages 140 - 150)
This report has been prepared in response to the Council motion considered on
9 December 2020. The report provides an update on the work being undertaken
through the Poverty Working Panel and addresses the specific points contained
in the motion.

23

Local Development Scheme and Statement of Community Involvement
(Pages 151 - 154)
The Council is required to maintain both an up to date Local Development
Scheme (LDS) which sets out a programme and timetable for production of
future planning policy documents, and a Statement of Community Involvement
(SCI) that details how it will consult on the production of these documents.

24

Cranbrook Town Centre (Pages 155 - 181)
This report provides an update on progress with negotiations with the East
Devon New Community partners over the delivery of Cranbrook Town Centre.
Following discussions at Strategic Planning Committee and further discussions
with the developers there remains two options for Members to consider.

25

Cranbrook Sport Pavilion Delivery (Pages 182 - 187)
This report provides an update to the Cranbrook Sport Pavilion Delivery.

26

Towards Zero Carbon Development in the West End (Pages 188 - 192)
This report provides an update on progress towards the delivery of zero carbon
development carbon development in the West End of the District. This follows
the submission of a funding bid to the Government’s Heat Network Investment
Programme.

27

Exeter and East Devon Enterprise Zone - amendment to funding
agreement for the Ada Lovelace Building, Exeter Science Park (Pages 193
- 195)
This report seeks approval to vary the existing funding agreement for the Ada
Lovelace Building on Exeter Science Park.

page 3

28

S106 and CIL Internal Audit Report (Pages 196 - 197)
South West Audit Partnership have undertaken an audit of the S106 and CIL
system. The purpose of the audit was to ensure that appropriate arrangements
are in place to manage the receipt and expenditure of S106 and CIL
contributions.

29

Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21 - Month 8 November 2020
198 - 203)

(Pages

This report gives a summary of the Council’s overall financial position for
2020/21 at the end of month eight (30 November 2020).
30

Annual Treasury Management Review 2019/20 - 1 April 2019 to 31 March
2020 (Pages 204 - 205)
This report details the overall position and performance of the Council’s
Treasury Management Strategy during 2019/20.

31

Proposed Deed of Variation to Lease of Units 3 & 4 Salterton Road,
Industrial Estate, Exmouth (Pages 206 - 208)
To consider an application for a Deed of Variation to a long ground lease of
Units 3 & 4 Salterton Road Industrial Estate, Exmouth and approve terms and
conditions provisionally agreed with the lessee on behalf of the Council in
respect of this matter.

32

Resource and Waste Management Strategy for Devon and Torbay (Pages
209 - 212)
This report outlines the new draft Resource and Waste Management Strategy
for Devon and Torbay. It describes how the Devon local authorities and Torbay
will manage Local Authority Collected Waste (household waste, litter, fly-tipped,
street sweepings and some trade) from 2020-2030.

Decision making and equalities

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic
Services Team on 01395 517546

page 4

Agenda Item 2
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held at Online via the Zoom app. on 25
November 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.54 pm
249 Public speaking
There were no members of the public registered to speak.
250

Minutes of the previous meetings held on 28 October and 11
November 2020
The minutes of Cabinet held on 28 October 2020 and 11 November 2020 were
confirmed as a true record.

251

Declarations of interest
Min 263 Seaton Tram Halt access boardwalk and footbridges.
Councillor Jack Rowland, Personal, Ward Member for Seaton.
Min 263 Seaton Tram Halt access boardwalk and footbridges.
Councillor Paul Arnott, Personal, Ward Member for Coly Valley which covers part of the
land in question.
Min 263 Seaton Tram Halt access boardwalk and footbridges.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Life-long member of Seaton tramway.

252

Matters of urgency
None

253

Confidential/exempt item(s)
None

254

Forward Plan
Members agreed the contents of the Forward Plan for key decisions for the period 1
December 2020 to 31 March 2021.

255

Minutes of the Poverty Working Panel held on 12 October 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of the Poverty Working Panel held on 12
October 2020.

256

Minutes of the Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group held on 15
October 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of the Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group
held on 15 October 2020.
page 5

Cabinet 25 November 2020

RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Minute 6 Way forward
Cabinet be requested to include the development of the Ocean building within the remit
of the Exmouth Queen’s Drive Delivery Group and that the Terms of Reference be
amended accordingly.
257

Minutes of the Recycling and Waste Partnership Board held on 21
October 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of the Recycling and Waste Partnership Board
held on 21 October 2020.
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Members received and noted the Minutes of the Recycling and Waste Partnership Board
held on 21 October 2020.
RESOLVED that;
(1) the following recommendation be noted and a further report be brought to
Cabinet identifying the full costs:
Minute 39 SUEZ Covid-19 costs
the extraordinary additional cost claim submitted by SUEZ for costs incurred in
responding to the coronavirus pandemic conditions are met by EDDC.
(2)
Should additional costs be identified, Cabinet agrees to ask local
MPs to lobby government on this Council's behalf to meet some, or
preferably all, additional Covid-19 related costs associated with the
Recycling and Waste contract.
(3)
Cabinet led by the Portfolio Holder Coast, Country and Environment
wished to thank Suez for the wonderful support, dedication and fantastic
service they had provided throughout this emergency.
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Minute 40 Green waste – quarterly accounts update
1. no deposit charge be made for the green waste bins, and
2. the annual subscription charge for the green waste service during 2021/22 remain at
£48.
Minute 42 Tipping point 2 negotiation
the tipping point negotiations begin now with SUEZ regarding collection tonnages to
establish what are and aren’t Covid-19 costs and that a report be brought back to the
next Board meeting.

258

Recommendations from the minutes of Strategic Planning
Committee held on 20 October 2020
page 6

Cabinet 25 November 2020

Members received and noted the Minutes of Strategic Planning Committee held on 20
October 2020
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be agreed:
Minute 69: Proposed approach to planning the production of a new Local Plan
1. the staffing budget for the Planning Policy Team be increased to enable the
recruitment of two additional Planning Officers be approved, and
2. support in-principle the production of a joint non-statutory plan to include a joint
strategy and infrastructure plan for the Greater Exeter area in partnership with
Exeter, Mid Devon, Teignbridge and Devon County Councils be approved subject
to agreement of details of the scope of the plan, a timetable for its production, the
resources required and government arrangements etc.
RECOMMENDED to Council;
To approve the budget to fund the two additional Planning Officers in the Planning Policy
Team.
RESOLVED that the following recommendation be taken into account when
considering the Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document item
(Minute 261 refers):
Minute 74: Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document and Mortgagee
Exemption Clauses
the Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document attached at Appendix A be
considered and adopted.

259

Recommendations from the minutes of Strategic Planning
Committee held on 22 October 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Strategic Planning Committee held on 22
October 2020.
RESOLVED that the following amended recommendation be agreed:
Minute 81: Cranbrook Town Centre
That in-principle funding be made available to support the pro-active delivery of the town
centre, based on the draft SPD Masterplan.

260

Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 5 November 2020
Members received and noted the Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 5 November
2020.

261

Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document
The Service Lead Planning Strategy and Development Management outlined the
responses received during the second round of public consultation on the Draft
Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (January to February
page 7

Cabinet 25 November 2020

2020) and showed how these comments had been taken into account in revising the
SPD. The proposed final version of the Affordable Housing SPD had been considered at
Strategic Planning Committee who recommended its adoption at Cabinet.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
adopted the Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document attached at
Appendix A.
REASON:
To ensure the council follows proper legal processes in adopting the Affordable Housing
SPD. The intention of the SPD is to give greater clarity to developers and communities
about our expectations for affordable housing delivery, assisting councillors and officers
when considering affordable housing issues for new development.
262

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021/22
The Service Lead Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services presented the report
which asked members to consider and approve the Council Tax Reduction (CTR)
Scheme for 2021/22 which was proposing to remain unchanged from the current
scheme. The report also provides some background data on how Covid-19 has changed
the scheme caseload profile.
During discussions members expressed concern over the rise in caseloads for CTR as
well as homelessness and economic hardship. East Devon had particularly suffered due
to its unique affiliation and reliance on the tourist/hospitality industry. It was pointed out
that getting credit became more difficult when individual’s finances had decreased. It was
suggested the data collected be shared with the Poverty Working Panel.
Cabinet thanked Libby Jarrett for this important work and for showing the economic
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic had had on its residents.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
noted the changes to the caseload profile due to the impact of Covid19 (see appendix 1)
RECOMMENDED to Council:
to approve the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for working age residents for 2021/22
(unchanged from 2020/21)
REASON:
Each year the Council was required by law to decide whether to revise or replace its
scheme. As there had been a significant number of changes to the scheme for 2020/21 it
was too early to be able to assess whether there was a need to make any subsequent
changes to the scheme. The impact of COVID-19 had meant that there was now a much
higher number of working age households so making comparisons between the existing
scheme and current scheme would be difficult to assess. However, as maximum support
was increased from 80% to 85% then this has meant that those households on the
lowest incomes would have benefitted.

263

Seaton Tram Halt access boardwalk and footbridges
The Service Lead Countryside and Leisure explained that Seaton Tram Company was
successful in applying for a Heritage Lottery Fund bid to develop the heritage and
educational features of their tourist attraction, which included funds to cover the costs of
page 8

Cabinet 25 November 2020

a tram halt and associated wooden boardwalk. The project was part of the planned
programme of visitor infrastructure improvements known as the Seaton Wetlands link
projects which had been presented to both Scrutiny and Cabinet Committees in 2020.
The project would help provide an important physical link between the two attractions
and so help further develop Seaton’s visitor economy. It was intended that the structure
to be erected by the Tramway on not just their land, but also the Council’s land and land
owned by the Burgesses of Colyford would be (save for the part erected on their land)
transferred to the Council.
The Portfolio Holder Coast, Country and Environment wished to thank the Countryside
team for their great work and to continue doing a splendid job.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. Approve entering into any necessary agreements with Seaton Tramway
(Enterprises) Ltd and the Burgesses of Colyford to enable the construction,
retention and use of a boardwalk across Colyford Common,
2. upon completion, for the Council to take responsibility for the boardwalk on both
the Council’s land and on the land owned by the Burgesses of Colyford that is
managed by EDDC Countryside as an infrastructure asset of the Colyford
Common Local Nature Reserve for a period into perpetuity,
3. if needed, to enter into a 5-year management agreement with the Tramway for
EDDC Countryside to recover the agreed annual fee for a five year period only,
and
4. delegates authority to the Service Lead – Place, Assets & Commercialisation to
agree the detailed terms of agreements for 1 & 3 above in consultation with
Service Lead - Countryside & Leisure in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for
Coast, Country and Environment.
REASON:
To enable the Council to enter into the required legal agreements to facilitate the
construction of the boardwalk and footbridge across Colyford Common which was
managed by the Countryside Team under a management agreement with the Burgesses
of Colyford as part of the Seaton Wetlands, so linking with the proposed tram halt
construction.
264

Covid-19 Economic Response and Recovery - Resources
The Service Lead Growth, Development and Prosperity presented this follow-up report
regarding the economic impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and how best to support
recovery. The report sought to take stock of the current situation and put forward
recommendations regarding deploying the funds being made available through the
Additional Restrictions Grant as well as the recruitment of additional economic
development capacity. It was also recommended that Cabinet receive a further report
setting out an assessment of the programme level resources that could be made
marshalled to support economic recovery. He updated members saying the date the
scheme would go live was now 9 December 2020.
During discussions concern was raised for taxi drivers and the impact the pandemic had
had on their business due to considerably reduced trade. The Service Lead Growth,
Development and Prosperity stated that the policy was aimed at businesses who could
show a significant impact on their turnover during the period of the national restrictions.
Taxi drivers were potentially eligible and the policy could be updated to make this more
page 9

Cabinet 25 November 2020

explicit. It was requested that this information on funding support be made available to
taxi drivers.
Cabinet endorsed the letter that the Licensing & Enforcement Committee had agreed to
send to Government in relation to the taxi trade.
The Vice-chair thanked officers for getting the scheme together. He emphasised the
need to nurture innovation and supported utilising some of the funding to support
business adaptation and new business opportunities that could benefit the economy and
reduce unemployment.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
1. endorsed the proposed spend framework for the deployment of monies that have
been made available under the Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG)
2. approved the proposed discretionary grants policy to deploy £1m of these funds
including the eligibility criteria, local priorities and grant payment levels as set out
at Appendix A,
3. grant delegated authority to the Service Lead Growth, Development and
Prosperity in consultation with the Leader, Deputy Leader, Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Chief Finance Officer to agree such further changes to this policy as
may be required,
4. grant delegated authority to the Chief Finance Officer to make any required
technical changes to the Scheme,
5. agreed that prior to the Service Lead Growth, Development and Prosperity taking
a decision under the scheme that there was consultation with a group of members
comprising the Leader, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holders for Finance and
Corporate Services & Covid-19 Response and Recovery and two Conservative
members, one of the Independent members and one Cranbrook Voice member to
be nominated by the respective Groups,
6. endorsed the proposal to recruit two additional Senior Economic Development
Officer posts for a fixed term of two years,
7. receives a further report on the programme level resources needed to support and
sustain economic recovery including the balance of the ARG funds, and
8. grant delegated authority to the Service Lead Revenues, Benefits and Customer
Services in consultation with the Leader, Deputy Leader, Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Chief Finance Officer to approve the scheme policy for the Local
Restrictions Support Grant (Open) Scheme.
RECOMMENDED to Council:
to fund the two Senior Economic Development Officer roles for a two year fixed term
through the business rate retention pilot reserve.
REASON:
To help to mitigate the impact of the second national lockdown on businesses in the
District and ensure that sufficient capacity was in place to deliver a programme of
measures and initiatives to support economic recovery from the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic.
265

Towards Zero Carbon Development in the West End
The Service Lead Growth, Development & Prosperity’s report was to seek authority for
the use of an Exemption from Contract Standing Orders to enable the appointment of
consultants WSP to support the development of a bid to the Government’s Heat Network
page 10

Cabinet 25 November 2020

Investment Programme (HNIP). This followed the completion of the initial feasibility study
in relation to supporting the delivery of low carbon development in the West End of the
District that was reported to Cabinet in September 2020.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
approved the Exemption from Contract Standing Orders to enable the appointment of
WSP to undertake further technical work in support of an application to the Heat
Networks Investment Programme.
REASON:
Having undertaken the initial feasibility study, WSP were considered to be uniquely
placed to support the development of a bid to the HNIP programme. This would be of a
substantial scale; seeking in excess of £5m, and it was vital, in order to maximise the
chances of success, that it was supported by a robust evidence base. The exemption
would also enable demanding timescales and deadlines to be met.
266

Resourcing in Democratic Services Team
The Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing explained the work pressures within
Democratic Services requested additional resource in the form of one Grade 6 post.
Cabinet recognised the additional workload for Democratic Services as a result of the
pandemic as well as members adding to this with further panels, working groups and
TaFFs.
Councillor Steve Gazzard wished to personally acknowledge the team stating they were
fantastic servants to the council and exceeded in every request that was asked of them.
He claimed he could not do his job without the help and support of Democratic Services.
Councillor Dan Ledger stated that without Democratic Services council functions would
not be performed, the team were the reason the council could fulfil its business over this
testing period.
Through the Chair, Cabinet wished to thank Democratic Services for their outstanding
work since March with the smooth running of virtual meetings which would have been
unthinkable at the beginning of the year. The Chair gave his deep personal thanks to
Democratic Services for the way they had adapted to this new way of working with all the
multiple complexities that came with it; they had made an incredible difficult job
achievable.
The Vice-chair wished to give additional thanks on behalf of all Town and Parish
Councils in East Devon for the support the team provided to them. He stated that since
the pandemic every meeting notice held by town and parish councils had to be posted on
to this council’s website creating additional work for the team.
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
to agree to an additional Grade 6 post (one FTE) within Democratic Services
RECOMMENDED to Council:
to approve the budget to fund the additional Grade 6 post within Democratic Services
REASON:
page 11

Cabinet 25 November 2020

To ensure that Democratic Services are able to fulfil their function in relation to the
Council’s governance arrangements.
Attendance List
Present:
Portfolio Holders
M Armstrong
P Arnott
P Hayward
J Bailey
G Jung
D Ledger
M Rixson
J Rowland
J Loudoun
S Jackson

Portfolio Holder Sustainable Homes and Communities
Leader
Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder Economy and Assets
Portfolio Holder Corporate Services and COVID-19
Response and Recovery
Portfolio Holder Coast, Country and Environment
Portfolio Holder Strategic Planning
Portfolio Holder Climate Action
Portfolio Holder Finance
Portfolio Holder Policy Co-ordination and Regional
Engagement
Portfolio Holder Democracy and Transparency

Also present (for some or all the meeting)
Councillor Kevin Blakey
Councillor Kim Bloxham
Councillor Fred Caygill
Councillor Maddy Chapman
Councillor Bruce De Saram
Councillor Peter Faithfull
Councillor Steve Gazzard
Councillor Paul Jarvis
Councillor Vicky Johns
Councillor Fabian King
Councillor Kathy McLauchlan
Councillor Paul Millar
Councillor Andrew Moulding
Councillor Helen Parr
Councillor Geoff Pratt
Councillor Eleanor Rylance
Councillor Philip Skinner
Councillor Brenda Taylor
Councillor Joe Whibley
Councillor Eileen Wragg
Also present:
Officers:
Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services Officer
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Ed Freeman, Service Lead Planning Strategy and Development Management
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
Libby Jarrett, Service Lead Revenues and Benefits
page 12

Cabinet 25 November 2020

Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Charles Plowden, Service Lead Countryside and Leisure
Andrew Wood, Service Lead - Growth Development and Prosperity
Mark Williams, Chief Executive

Chairman

Date:

page 13

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held at Online via the Zoom app. on 2
December 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 6.34 pm
267 Public speaking
There were no members of the public registered to speak.
268

Declarations of interest
None

269

Matters of urgency
None

270

Confidential/exempt item(s)
None

271

Statement of Intent
The Leader of the Council Cllr Paul Arnott made the following statement:
‘This administration has now been in office for six of the most turbulent months in the
history of local government. Our officers have risen to the occasion splendidly and may
yet have to do so for some time to come. I would like to thank both them and members of
all allegiances who have gone above and beyond this year.
Despite this challenge, the administration has already executed significant moves both to
build on its legacy and to re-direct the approach of the council. In order to take back
control of our planning processes, we have withdrawn from the GESP and replaced that
with a full engagement with other district and county partners in a non-statutory joint
infrastructure plan.
In Exmouth, where the history of the seafront development has been troubled, we are
encouraging a more public, participatory approach to the extraordinary natural resource
of the town’s coast. We are also determined to help the people and members from
Cranbrook to get their community moving forward to completion, and together with
Exmouth and drafting the new Local Plan this will be a central plank of our work.
Throughout these and other priorities we will seek to improve our environmental
standards and the transparency of democratic involvement as core priorities.
Economic regeneration to a green and local agenda will be critical with widespread
unemployment on the horizon, and towns such as Axminster will also become the focus
of efforts to build growth fit for the 2020s. As we move out of this first extraordinary six
months, we will be able to work more closely with members outside of our partnership
group and all ideas will be heard. I am especially interested in how we might boost our
page 14

Cabinet 2 December 2020

tourism offer and economy here in the Jurassic Coast hinterland, and how we roll out
truly attainable homes, both drawing down on resources from the government’s promised
green growth funds.
All this said, it is important to remember just how much of the council’s work for the
people of East Devon ticks over via the daily hard graft of its employees. Above all we
wish the council to be a good-humoured and empathetic environment for both the staff
and elected members, all of whom give so much of their lives to the common good.
As we bridge between the past and the future, we are now issuing this interim Statement
of Intent, which will inform the next six months of developing a full Council Plan 2021-23,
and we look forward to many discussions in the coming months.
One bit of housekeeping; with the next phase of COVID-19 restrictions now upon us, it is
important to ensure that EDDC continues to provide the very best services to its
residents and that our staff are protected and supported. We also need to ensure that
members of this Council are able to offer assurances of future support and an economic
recovery response as well as deliver the ambitions in the Statement of Intent and then
the next Council Plan. It is therefore our intention to undertake a management review,
and I am asking the Chief Executive to bring a report to the 6th January Cabinet meeting
with a view to this being carried out and giving more detail on timings, the scope of the
review and potential budget requirements to do so. This will help ensure that the Council
enters 2021 in the best shape to meet the challenges ahead, reflecting the ambitions of
the Council as laid out in this Statement of Intent and onwards.’
The Chief Executive highlighted the report’s timetable emphasizing that
January/February were naturally extremely busy months due to the production of service
plans and the 2021/22 draft budget. Additionally there could be implications around
Brexit depending on whether there was a deal or no deal. It was important to consider
the setting up of member workshops and public engagement particularly, he suggested
an extensive period of workshops with all members and a degree of public engagement
would be important for the Council Plan. This would then to go through the usual
committees’ structure for final approval with the hope that the plan would be ready to be
published by July 2021.
During discussions the issue of poverty within the district was highlighted with many
members suggesting this deserved to be the number one priority within the Council Plan,
alongside and just as important as climate change issues. Fuel poverty and the use of
food banks were on the rise with poverty issues taking up a lot of the work across the
council.
It was agreed that an extra statement be added to the Statement of Intent under ‘Vision’
(page 2):
(2) Better Homes and Communities for all with a priority on the importance of good
quality, affordable housing suitable in size and location. Poverty caused by the loss of
employment, illness or disability is an increasing issue and will be a high priority for
EDDC to tackle through all means available to us.
The Portfolio Holder Corporate Services and Covid-19 Response and Recovery thanked
officers for contributing to the start of these discussions. She stated the new Council Plan
would be a refresh and a shift in emphasis and was an exciting project. She stated there
would be workshops next year in order to engage members.
page 15

Cabinet 2 December 2020

RESOLVED:
that the amended Statement of Intent and the timetable of a Council Plan for the period
Summer 2021 to Spring 2023 be approved.
REASON:
To progress the development of the Council Plan.

Attendance List
Present:
Portfolio Holders
M Armstrong
P Arnott
P Hayward
J Bailey
G Jung
D Ledger
M Rixson
J Rowland
S Jackson
Cabinet apologies:
J Loudoun

Portfolio Holder Sustainable Homes and Communities
Leader
Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder Economy and Assets
Portfolio Holder Corporate Services and COVID-19
Response and Recovery
Portfolio Holder Coast, Country and Environment
Portfolio Holder Strategic Planning
Portfolio Holder Climate Action
Portfolio Holder Finance
Portfolio Holder Democracy and Transparency

Portfolio Holder Policy Co-ordination and Regional
Engagement

Also present (for some or all the meeting)
Councillor Denise Bickley
Councillor Kevin Blakey
Councillor Colin Brown
Councillor Olly Davey
Councillor Peter Faithfull
Councillor Steve Gazzard
Councillor Nick Hookway
Councillor Paul Jarvis
Councillor Vicky Johns
Councillor Paul Millar
Councillor Helen Parr
Councillor Eleanor Rylance
Councillor Brenda Taylor
Councillor Eileen Wragg
Also present:
Officers:
Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services Officer
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Mark Williams, Chief Executive
page 16

Cabinet 2 December 2020

Chairman

Date:

page 17

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Forward Plan of Key Decisions - For the 4 month period: 1 January 2021 to 30 April 2021
This plan contains all the Key Decisions that the Council’s Cabinet expects to make during the 4-month period referred to above. The
plan is rolled forward every month.
Key Decisions are defined by law as “an executive decision which is likely:–
(a)
(b)

to result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s
budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or
to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the Council’s
area.”

In accordance with section 9Q of the Local Government Act 2000, in determining the meaning of “significant” in (a) and (b) above regard
shall be had to any guidance for the time being issued by the Secretary of State.

page 18

A public notice period of 28 clear days is required when a Key Decision is to be taken by the Council’s Cabinet even if the
meeting is wholly or partly to be in private.
The Cabinet may only take Key Decisions in accordance with the requirements of the Executive Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of the
Constitution and the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to information) (England) Regulations 2012. A
minute of each Key Decision is published within 2 days of it having been made. This is available for public inspection on the Council’s
website http://www.eastdevon.gov.uk, and at the Council Offices, Blackdown House, Border Road, Heathpark Industrial Estate, Honiton.
The law and the Council’s constitution permit urgent Key Decisions to be made without 28 clear days’ notice of the proposed decisions
having been published provided certain procedures are followed. A decision notice will be published for these in exactly the same way.
This plan also identifies Key Decisions which are to be considered in the private part of the meeting (Part B) and the reason why. Any
written representations that a particular decision should be moved to the public part of the meeting (Part A) should be sent to the
Democratic Services Team (address as above) as soon as possible. Members of the public have the opportunity to speak on the
relevant decision at the meeting in accordance with the Council’s public speaking rules.

Agenda Item 7

Obtaining documents
Committee reports in respect of Key Decisions include links to the relevant background documents. If a printed copy of all or part of any
report or background document is required please contact Democratic Services (address as above) or by calling 01395 517546.

Key Decision
Toilet review

Portfolio
(Lead Officer)
Coast, Country
and Environment
(Andrew Hancock)

Documents to
be considered
before Cabinet
take decision

Whether other
documents will be
considered before
decision taken [Y/N]

Y

Other
meetings
where matter
is to be
debated /
considered

Part A = Public
meeting

Date of Cabinet
meeting

Part B = private
meeting
[with reasons]

February 2021

Part A

Members of the public who wish to make any representations or comments concerning any of the Key Decisions referred to in this
Forward Plan may do so by writing to the Leader of the Council c/o Democratic Services (as above).

page 19

December 2020

Agenda Item 8
Recommendations for Cabinet that will resolve in an action being taken:
Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group held on 17 November 2020
Minute 11 Review of Terms of Reference
RECOMMENDED:
That Cabinet agrees to include the development and management of the
Ocean building in the Terms of Reference for the Exmouth Queen’s Drive
Delivery Group.
Minute 14 Report outlining considerations for temporary uses for 2021
RECOMMENDED:
1. Not to proceed with the temporary car park and to provide clearer signage to other
car parks on Exmouth seafront
2. To instruct Tim Child to research and report back on alternative options for use of
the temporary car park land, in consultation with Cllr Chris Wright and Cllr Nick
Hookway

page 20

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group held Online
via the Zoom App. on 17 November 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 5.04 pm

7

Welcome from the Chair
The Chair welcomed those participating and those watching via the live streaming.

8

Public speaking
There were four members of the public registered to speak and one letter submitted to
be read out at the meeting.
Geoff Skinner, for the Exmouth Community Association [ECA], advised that the
ECA had long supported the regeneration of Exmouth. The Exmouth Neighbourhood
Plan summed up what the town was trying to achieve, with its aspiration to be forward
thinking. Mr Skinner was of the view that all of the options should be explored. There
needed to be a wider return for the whole town, not just for the businesses on the
seafront.
Roy Pryke, a member of the Residents Association for 20 years and Chair of the
Exmouth Community Association for 14 years, advised that the Neighbourhood Plan had
been approved overwhelmingly and carried equal weight to the Local Plan. Mr Pryke
drew the Delivery Group’s attention to page 68 of the Neighbourhood Plan and policy
statement EE6 relating to Queens Drive Development, phase 3 of the regeneration
scheme. Mr Pryke was of the view that the proposed hotel should go out to be tested
and should be carefully designed so as to be appropriate to the setting.
Daphne Currier welcomed the current co-operation between Councillors and members of
the public and advised that there was a strong case to return the temporary car park to
public leisure use. It had been noted previously that signage to car parks was very poor.
The Maer and Foxholes car parks could be renamed as the beach car park and
swimmers car park respectively. In summary, car parks should be renamed, visitor traffic
rerouted and the temporary car park recovered for its original use.
Sally Galsworthy congratulated the new administration on their handling of the issues.
Speaking as a business owner and from personal research, it was clear that seaside
attractions could not be provided all year round. However, there was a real need for
outdoor attractions for children over 10 years old. Ms Galsworthy had tried to obtain
financial accounts for Ocean, which had not been possible as the figures were included
with the accounts for The Pavilion. There should be clear accounting for each offering in
Ocean.
Tim Todd had submitted a letter by email which was read out by a Democratic Services
Officer. Mr Todd was pleased to see that further information on the development of the
seafront had been provided, however there were missing elements and inaccuracies and
he cautioned against accepting the reported history as a sound basis for proceeding.
The Delivery Group was urged to retain all existing waterfront related records as primary
documents. Mr Todd was of the view that the Exmouth Masterplan was a biased
page 21

Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group 17 November 2020

exercise selling a misleading concept. Any development must respect the unique natural
capital and be appropriate and the Delivery Group should take whatever time was
needed to get development right.
9

Notes of the previous meeting
The notes of the previous meeting held on 15 October 2020 were agreed as a true
record.

10

Declarations of interest
Minute 11. Review of Terms of Reference.
Councillor Chris Wright, Personal, Member is a former tenant of the Queen's Drive
Redevelopment site.
Minute 11. Review of Terms of Reference.
Councillor Joe Whibley, Personal, Member is also an Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 11. Review of Terms of Reference.
Councillor Nick Hookway, Personal, Member was very involved with Save Exmouth
Seafront prior to election to EDDC, but is no longer involved and confirms he is not
biased or predetermined.
Minute 11. Review of Terms of Reference.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Member is also an Exmouth Town Councillor.

11

Review of Terms of Reference
The Terms of Reference were discussed and it was agreed to recommend that the
development and management of the Ocean building be included in the Terms of
Reference.
RECOMMENDATION:
That Cabinet agrees to include the development and management of the Ocean building
in the Terms of Reference for the Exmouth Queen’s Drive Delivery Group.

12

Review of chronology of activities - follow up to item discussed at
October Delivery Group
A chronology of activities had been published with the agenda.
Comments on the chronology of activities received from others were summarised by Cllr
Whibley as follows:
 There was a mistrust of the previous process, with perceived pre-determination of
the proposed schemes
 There was a perceived sense of unease at the lack of transparency on the part of
the developers
 Activities now needed to be forward looking
 Development should be sympathetic to the environmental impact, with honest and
open consultation including all sections of the community and beyond
page 22

Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group 17 November 2020




Those involved were feeling more enfranchised in the process
Consultation was key to the process

The Delivery Group discussed referring the chronology of activities to the Scrutiny
Committee.
RESOLVED
That the Chair would draft a proposal for the Scrutiny Committee to consider the
chronology of activities and circulate the proposal to members of the Delivery Group for
their comments prior to its submission to the Scrutiny Committee, and that the proposal
would include
1. Scrutiny of what had taken place, in the interests of EDDC understanding its own
processes
2. Understanding what lessons needed to be learned and what could be done
differently moving forward.

13

Exmouth Queen's Drive Cost Report
A cost report had been published with the agenda. The report was introduced by Simon
Davey, Strategic Lead for Finance, and the following points highlighted:
 The report was in two parts; capital project costs and Queen’s Drive Space
revenue costs
 The cost of moving the road and the car park was £1.7 million
 The report linked to the Cabinet paper of November 2016 when the budget had
been agreed
 Receipts for the Phase 3 capital programme had been unknown and had not been
relied upon
 There were no outstanding financial commitments where receipts were expected
 The breakdown of the cost of £166k for compensation and legal fees was circa
£86k for compensation and £80k for litigation
Discussion included the following points:
 The £3 million cost was an investment by EDDC in Exmouth with benefits to
residents and businesses
 The £1.7 million cost of moving the road was high for what seemed to be a small
amount of work
 The cost of moving the road, and how this would be funded, had been misleading
from the outset
 The figures did not include the loss of income from businesses on the seafront
 No business plan had been in place
RESOLVED
That the cost report be noted.

In response to the earlier question from public speaker Sally Galsworthy regarding a
breakdown of the costs for Ocean, Peter Gilpin, CEO of LED, advised that

page 23

Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group 17 November 2020







14

LED is five years into a 25 year lease on the Ocean building. LED is a
commercial tenant of the building and this lease is entirely separate from LED’s
leisure centre operations for the Council and is therefore accounted for separately
LED Leisure Management Ltd is a charitable trust, officially a Community Benefit
Society. Its subsidiary trading company, LED Leisure Enterprises Ltd, deals with
the non-charitable income which has to be accounted for separately,
predominantly derived from sales of food and beverages at Ocean and The
Pavilion. Surpluses are then transferred to the parent Trust
LED Leisure Management Ltd produces group accounts showing a total figure for
income and expenditure from its sports and leisure activities and the noncharitable income from the trading subsidiary
LED Leisure Enterprises Ltd currently has five directors; Peter Gilpin together with
two trustees from the parent Trust and two non-executive (voluntary) directors
from commercial backgrounds. The board is looking to recruit an additional nonexecutive voluntary director with food and beverage experience

Report outlining considerations for temporary uses for 2021
The report on considerations for temporary uses of Queen’s Drive Space for 2021 had
been published with the agenda and was introduced by Tim Child, Service Lead – Place,
Assets and Commercialisation.
The Delivery Group discussed various options and suggestions for recreation and leisure
and noted that planning permission would need to be extended for continued temporary
uses after next year. It was advised that any temporary uses would not influence how
the land would be developed ultimately.
Discussion included the following points:
 Temporary uses for 2021 should remain the same as previous years
 Suggestions for temporary uses included pop-up events, beach volleyball, bungee
jumping and extending the Dinosaur Play Park
 Seating could be replaced by picnic benches which could be re-used elsewhere
 Attractions should be aimed at children over 10 years old, teenagers and young
adults
 The temporary car park should be removed
 It was noted that annual income from the temporary car park was between £20£30k with the risk that this would be redirected to Devon County Council car parks
if the temporary car park was removed
 The market could be tested for alternative operators to mitigate any loss of income
from the temporary car park should it be removed
 Vehicle drop-off points near Queen’s Drive Space would be helpful
RECOMMENDATION
It was agreed to recommend to Cabinet
1. Not to proceed with the temporary car park and to provide clearer signage to other
car parks on Exmouth seafront
page 24

Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group 17 November 2020

2. To instruct Tim Child to research and report back on alternative options for use of
the temporary car park land, in consultation with Cllr Chris Wright and Cllr Nick
Hookway

Regarding recommendation 2 above, it was suggested that the EDDC Events Team
should also be involved in discussions on options for temporary use of the car park land.
With regard to other considerations for temporary uses of the remaining land at Queen’s
Drive Space, as outlined in the report, the following points were discussed:
 The provision of seating which, subsequently, could be used elsewhere
 Food and beverage offering could remain the same with a preference for
supporting local traders
 Play equipment to be kept in good order
 Arranging events to be put on hold pending clarity on the situation with the Covid19 pandemic
 Possible removal of the old decking
 The bar to be retained
Tim Child advised that it would be good practice to re-tender the space as the rates had
been set several years previously.
It was agreed that Tim Child would undertake more research and report back on trading
options for 2021.
It was also agreed to note the report outlining considerations for temporary uses for
2021.
The agenda for the next meeting would include an item on the traders, the bar and the
resulting implications for EDDC of managing the site.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
P Arnott (Chair)
P Hayward (Vice-Chair)
M Armstrong
O Davey
N Hookway
A Colman
D Ledger
B Taylor
J Whibley
C Wright
A Bailey (Exmouth Town Council)
S Gazzard (for Exmouth Town Council)
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
P Faithfull
M Howe
B Ingham
page 25

Exmouth Queen's Drive Delivery Group 17 November 2020

J Loudoun
K McLauchlan
A Moulding
M Rixson
E Wragg
Officers in attendance:
Tim Child, Service Lead - Place, Assets & Commercialisation
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer
Mark Williams, Chief Executive
Also in attendance:
Peter Gilpin, LED
Lisa Bowman, Town Clerk, Exmouth Town Council
Councillor apologies:
None

Chair

Date:

page 26

Agenda Item 9
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of South and East Devon Habitat Regulations
Executive Committee held on 18 November 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 2.03 pm and ended at 4.39 pm

49

Public speaking
There were no members of the public registered to speak at the meeting.

50

Minutes of the previous meeting
Minutes of the South East Devon Habitat Regulations Executive Committee meeting held
on 17 July 2020 were not confirmed at the meeting. A request was made to amend the
minutes in relation to minute number 44 Annual Business Plan, to append to resolution 2
“subject to those measures of success coming forward”. With no clear recollection of the
wording by two Committee Members, the Chair agreed that the live stream of the
meeting of 17 July 2020 would be reviewed and reported back to the next meeting to
clarify and subsequently agree the minutes.

51

Declarations of interest
Cllr Martin Wrigley – Personal Interest . His house overlooks the estuary and he is a
member and Treasurer of Cockwood Boat Club.

52

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

53

Confidential/exempt items
There were no matters which officers recommended be dealt with in this way.

54

Update on the Annual Business Plan delivery
The Executive Committee received a brief update on work creating a new website. This
included benchmarking against other similar websites, publishing key performance
indicators and monitoring. Analysis of the site would be undertaken to establish take up
of content and ease of use of the site.
The impact of the pandemic was not possible to include in the reports presented to the
Committee in the timeframe; however future reports would seek to address this,
particularly the impact on financial elements of the plan.

55

Dawlish Warren NNR
The report outlined the conclusions from the botanical survey relating to impacts
associated with human activity at Dawlish Warren NNR. It provided an important
baseline monitoring assessment of the impact of human trampling, and areas associated
with increased fertility. The study identifies that plant species of conservation concern at
page 27

South and East Devon Habitat Regulations Executive Committee 18 November 2020

the Warren are more likely to be associated to areas where there is little trampling and
the soil is less fertile.
The study is planned to be undertaken every three years, intended to provide an early
warning system of identifying negative impacts from tramping and eutrophication, which
can then be addressed through appropriate management. The next survey is scheduled
for 2022.
Comment and questions covered:
 Work continued in linking with the Devon Loves Dogs team and associated
wardens on the issue of dog fouling;
 Rabbit numbers were low, but the site was grazed by ponies, so there was less
reliance on rabbit numbers;
 This was the first survey that covered empirical data compared to the 2010
survey, but that previous survey was still of value and led to some of the mitigation
measures required to protect the area.
Resolved that the Executive Committee:
1.
Notes the results of the botanical survey relating to impacts associated with human
activity at Dawlish Warren NNR;
2.
Received an updated botanical survey report as part of the ongoing monitoring
programme in 2022, with comparison to the previous report.
56

Exe Estuary Wildlife Refuge
The Executive Committee received their second annual report on the monitoring of the
Exe Estuary wildlife refuge. Regular monitoring of bird species and numbers showed
that the majority of the internationally important populations of Dark-bellied Brent Goose,
Wigeon and Oystercatcher in the estuary are found at Dawlish Warren National Nature
Reserve and Exmouth Local Nature Reserve. The protection of these habitats and
species from disturbance is a fundamental part of the mitigation strategy for the Exe
Estuary.
Questions and comments covered:
 Water based activities continued to be an issue of disturbance; communication
continued with the local Harbour Master and associated officers;
 Monitoring took place up until the first lockdown, but priorities of the Councils in
dealing with the pandemic meant that this did not occur again until July;
 Signage and footpaths at Exmouth were back in place, which should raise
awareness for local users of that impact they may have on the area;
 Information about the impact of the first lockdown was not included in the report;
 Continued aircraft activity causing disturbance – again, contact would be made to
make both military and emergency services aware of the impact via the Exe
Estuary Partnership.
Resolved that the Executive Committee:
1.
Notes the interim results from the second annual wildlife refuge monitoring report;
2.
Receives an overarching review of monitoring results after completion of the third
year of monitoring (2021).

page 28

South and East Devon Habitat Regulations Executive Committee 18 November 2020

57

Core Staff Capacity
The Executive Committee previously agreed in principle in July 2019 to pay for essential
core staff. It is not possible to fund this through the Housing Infrastructure Fund and so
an increase to developer contributions was recommended. As part of this, the
recommendation was to secure ongoing dedicated support and input of a
Communication Officer. The report put forward a flexible approach to additional site staff
resources in the form of an additional 0.5 FTE Habitat Mitigation Officer from January
2021, financed from furlough savings.
The report highlighted the flexibility needed to manage both increasing visitor numbers,
as people stayed local and sought exercise and mental health from using the sites; as
well as expanding the online presence as face to face conversations with visitors has
become more challenging.
Comments and questions covered:
 Concern that agreement to the recommendations was premature, in light of the
current pandemic and the impact that would have on future housing delivery,
which in turn impacted on funds available; in response, the mitigation was related
to the current local plan, not future plans;
 There was a danger that if not funded, and the current level of mitigation ended,
there was a risk of Natural England preventing the authorities to continue to build;
 Recognise that visitor numbers would continue to be high as visitors chose the
sites as a destination rather than travelling abroad or elsewhere;
 Funding of staff was critical to the delivery of the mitigation strategy, and that the
level suggested was not sufficient and should be higher.
Discussion took place on concerns raised by the Teignbridge committee member that the
current measures in place were not sufficient, and required more measurement and
more feedback. He felt that there was a need to adapt and change the current
measures, or they would fail in their delivery. He voiced his frustration at being unable to
make an effective change to the current strategy because of the how the committee
currently operated.
In response, the Chair offered to meet with him outside of the meeting, alongside the
remaining committee member, Leaders of the three authorities, and relevant portfolio
holders, to discuss his concerns about how the committee functions and strategy
flexibility.
Resolved that the Executive Committee:
1.
Approves an increase in non-infrastructure developer contribution to secure
ongoing staff requirements as previously approved in July 2019 and updated in
Section 5 of the related report, to be reviewed in April 2022 alongside the business
plan;
2.
As part of the increase to developer contributions referred to in (1) above, approved
funding to secure a dedicated Communications Officer resource at 0.2 FTE to be
reviewed in April 2022 alongside the business plan;
3.
Approves funding to secure an additional 0.5 FTE Habitat Mitigation Officer for 12
months from January 2021. For this additional resource to be funded from savings
as a result of furlough during COVID-19 lockdown

page 29

South and East Devon Habitat Regulations Executive Committee 18 November 2020

58

HREC funding arrangements
The Executive Committee received an update on SANGS progress since the last update
in March 2019. This included:
 Two land transfers, with another imminent, on track for opening to the public by
the end of 2020/21;
 Deliver Strategy updated prior to procurement and establishment, led by TDC
Green Spaces;
 TDC has agreed heads of terms with Land Trust for a long-lease and funding
agreement of both Dawlish and South-West Exeter to ensure effective
management. Funding is now secure following finalising of the legal agreement
for the Housing Infrastructure Fund award;
 The strategic “off site” approach to mitigation will be secured in perpetuity.
The Committee welcomed the report and thanked the Teignbridge team for their
dedicated work on delivery.
Resolved that the Executive Committee:
1.
Notes the continued progress made by Teignbridge District Council (TDC) of
delivery of the Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS) at South West
Exeter (SWE SANGS);
2.
Notes the completion of the Funding Agreement between Homes England and
Devon County Council, legally securing the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF)
award;
3.
Approves the specific funding arrangements detailed in the report to cover off the
Dawlish and SWE SANGS in perpetuity, so that the maintenance arrangements
can be legally set in place, including the contributions from each partner authority.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
R Sutton (Chair, Exeter City Council)
M Wrigley (Teignbridge District Council)
G Jung (East Devon District Council)
Councillors also present (for some or all of the meeting)
P Hayward
P Arnott
M Chapman
P Faithfull
N Hookway
D Ledger
M Rixson
E Wragg
Officers in attendance:
Ali Slade, Natural England
Naomi Harnett, Principal Projects Manager East Of Exeter EDDC
Ed Freeman, Service Lead Planning Strategy and Development Management EDDC
Neil Harris, Habitat Regulation Delivery Manager
Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager EDDC
page 30

South and East Devon Habitat Regulations Executive Committee 18 November 2020

Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer EDDC
Fergus Pate, Teignbridge District Council
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer) EDDC
Andrew Wood, Service Lead - Growth Development and Prosperity EDDC
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer EDDC
Anne Mountjoy, Growth Point Communications Officer

page 31

Agenda Item 10
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Car Parking Task and Finish Forum held online via
the Zoom app on 19 November 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 4.20 pm

27

Public speaking
There were no public speakers at the meeting

28

Minutes of previous meeting
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 9 January 2020 were agreed as a true
record.

29

Declarations of interest
Minute 33. Declarations of interest.
Councillor Andrew Colman, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 33. Declarations of interest.
Councillor Eleanor Rylance, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 33. Declarations of interest.
Councillor Kim Bloxham, Personal, Cranbrook Town Councillor.
Minute 33. Declarations of interest.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.

30

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

31

Confidential/exempt items
There were no items which officers recommended should be dealt with in this way.

32

Review of Terms of Reference
The Service Lead – Environmental Health and Car Parks presented the Car Parking
TaFF’s terms of reference, as agreed by the TaFF on 7 November 2020. The main
section headings were:
 Asset management
 Communities
 Economy
 Statutory
 Climate change emergency
 Equality and health and wellbeing issues
page 32

Car Parking Task and Finish Forum 19 November 2020

It was suggested that climate change emergency be prioritised in the list of issues to be
considered by the TaFF.
33

Topics for discussion
The Service Lead- Environment Health and Car Parks’ report outlined a number of topics
for discussion. These were:
 Climate change emergency.
 Asset management and revenue generation.
 Visitor economy, wellbeing and poverty considerations.
 Campervans and motorhomes.
 Other matters for consideration.
It was noted that the Council currently owned and managed 57 public car park sites
across the district. 45 of those public car parks were operated on a pay and display
tariff. One (Mill Street, Sidmouth, also offered some reserved parking spaces on short
term leases). There were 12 other sites which all operated slightly differently and these
were outlined in the report for consideration by the TaFF.
It was suggested that the Exmouth lorry park could be used as a site for campervans and
motorhomes. It was also suggested that Upper Station car park in Budleigh Salterton
could be brought back within the Council’s remit and parking charges applied, or the
existing lease to the Town Council could be increased. The TaFF were made aware of
how any increase in tariffs could influence how motorists behaved, with possible on
street parking congestion. An increase in parking charges had consultation constraints
and required consultation with the county council and the police.
The Strategic Lead Finance explained how the payment and income in relation to
business rates worked. EDDC paid business rates on everything that it owned, however
it also generated income from business rates and that the two should be separated. The
amount of business rates paid was specific to each car park. They were rated on
‘potential income’. He warned the TaFF that car parks should not be seen just as an
income earner and that other factors should be brought into consideration, such as
usage of the car parks and attracting people to areas. Car parking revenue was
extremely important to the finances of EDDC and charges had not been increased since
2010. Car parking income would be considered in helping balance the books of the
medium term financial gap.
The Forum agreed that the Council’s car parks should be cost neutral at the very least.
Business rates and maintenance costs should be recuperated for the free car parks that
the Council currently ran. It was suggested that charges to cover the costs be introduced
to these car parks or that they be ‘gifted’ to the town or parish councils. No car park
should be a financial liability to EDDC.
Climate emergency
One of the major challenges facing EDDC was that the provision of adequate affordable
car parking was important for supporting town centre economies and local communities,
however the current climate change emergency had to recognise the significant
contribution that the exhaust emissions from cars made to the district’s carbon footprint.
The Forum felt that car parking needed to be part of a strategy that the Council used to
address climate change emergency. Raising charges could discourage driving/car use
page 33

Car Parking Task and Finish Forum 19 November 2020

and the extra revenue could be used to invest in electric vehicle charging infrastructure
or better public transport options such shuttle buses.
Asset Management and Revenue Generation
The current turn over for the car parks property portfolio was currently around £4m
annually before VAT, which contributed a net surplus of £2.4m after running costs. The
Service Lead – Environment Health and Car Parks’ referred to his report presented to
Cabinet last October which expected the car park revenue could deliver a further
£425,000 in 2021/22 by making some adjustments to the current charging tariffs.
The Forum noted 3 initiatives that could generate income:
1. Increase the tariff in the overused car parks
2. To consider the car parks running at a deficit
1. To introduce evening charges in some areas
The Chairman raised concerns that members did not have the required information to
make informed decisions and requested that the car parks income and expenditure
should be send to the committee members.
Discussions on the 3 initiatives were as follows:
 A suggestion was made for the Service Lead- Environment Health and Car Parks’
and the Strategic Lead – Finance to work together to draft a report detailing an
affordable way forward. It was agreed a report would be provided at the next
meeting;
 Support was shown to increase the tariff in the over used car parks.
 There is a very fine line to walk to keep our towns vibrant and our finances
reasonable. Need to consider shorter times as people do not spend all day in
towns. This would free up car park spaces.
Visitor economy, wellbeing and poverty considerations
The Forum noted the prospect of increased visitors to the UK and South West next year
due to Covid-19 and the potential scope to maximise income in the car parks by looking
at changes to the range of concessions and parking permit options for local residents,
businesses and workers to help retain a balanced economy.
The Forum recognised the urgency and discussions covered:
 A suggestion was made to increase the cost of the permit to £120 to include the
addition of an extra vehicle limited to one car park;
 Introduce a monthly direct debit for the annual parking permit;
 Raising the concessions in beach car parks;
 A suggestion was made to introduce an off peak half price parking ticket.
Campervans and Motorhomes
The Forum noted the success of the pilot scheme and acknowledged the opportunity to
review changes to the policy to encourage more visitors in motorhomes and campervans
in car parks.
Discussions covered:
 Support the suggestion to use the Estuary Lorry Park as overnight camping to
help generate income;
page 34

Car Parking Task and Finish Forum 19 November 2020







Concerns raised about how to manage local motorhomes and campervan owners
using the car parks as a cheap storage facility for their vehicles. In response the
Service Lead- Environment Health and Car Parks’ suggested the introduction of
permits, clear signage and officer patrols;
Suggestion to introduce water and toilets and a charge of £15 / £20 per night;
Need to consider all other coastal car parks;
Concerns raised about disability spaces and the need for a disability assessment.

Other matters for consideration
The Forum noted the common issue of customers offering another driver the use of
an unexpired pay and display ticket and the opportunity to upgrade ticket machines at
a cost to introduce registration numbers to maximise potential income.
The Forum felt more evidence was needed. One suggestion was made to look at
other councils who use this type of ticket machine and another suggestion was to trail
it in one car park using the cheapest upgrade.

34

Dates for future meetings and report back to Scrutiny Committee
It was proposed to hold the next meeting of the Car Parking Task and Finish Forum on
Thursday 26 November at 10am, to complete the work of the TaFF and enable the Chair
to report back on progress and recommendations to the next Scrutiny Committee
meeting on 10 December 2020.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
K Bloxham
C Brown
A Colman
O Davey
M Howe
B Ingham
V Ranger
E Rylance
J Whibley
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
P Arnott
P Hayward
N Hookway
G Jung
P Millar
A Moulding
M Rixson
J Rowland
Officers in attendance:
Jacqueline Collins, Civil Enforcement Officer
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
page 35

Car Parking Task and Finish Forum 19 November 2020

Andrew Ennis, Service Lead Environmental Health and Car Parks
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer
Alethea Thompson, Democratic Services Officer
Councillor apologies:
M Chapman

Chairman

Date:

page 36

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Car Parking Task and Finish Forum held at Online
via the Zoom App on 26 November 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 11.25 am

35

Public speaking
There were no public speakers at the meeting.

36

Minutes of previous meeting
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 November 2020 were agreed as a true
record.

37

Declarations of interest
Declarations of interest.
Councillor Andrew Colman, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Declarations of interest.
Councillor Eleanor Rylance, Personal, Resident and member Broadclyst Parish Council.
Declarations of interest.
Councillor Joe Whibley, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Declarations of interest.
Councillor Maddy Chapman, Personal, Resident and user of car parks in Exmouth..
Declarations of interest.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.

38

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

39

Confidential/exempt items
There were no items which officers recommended should be dealt with in this way.

40

Car parks tariff review
Consideration was given to the Service Lead – Environmental Health and Car Parks’
report which set out proposals to introduce changes to the car parking tariffs in some of
the Council’s car parks. It provided recommendations for more efficient operational
management options for the busiest car parks, including revised tariffs in the context of a
strategic objective to maximise the value of the Council’s car parking assets, whilst also
introducing a revised pricing structure for car parking permit to support communities and
local economies.
page 37

Car Parking Task and Finish Forum 26 November 2020

Detailed discussion took place over the proposals in the report and included the following
points:
 Car parking charges had not increased for 10 years, despite VAT rising from 15%
to 20% during this time, with EDDC absorbing this increase.
 The Council needed to raise extra revenue. If parking charges were not increased
then there was likely to be a rise in Council Tax.
 Increasing parking charges could gravely risk the future of local high street
businesses.
 People needed to be encouraged to come and shop/spend in the town centres.
Charges should not be increased, but the length of time available for parking
should be reduced.
 There should be ‘shoppers only’ car parks for a limited period of parking time, to
discourage people from using these car parks as long stays.
 Residents parking permits would not increase the footfall to businesses.
 In order to maximise revenue there was merit in increasing charges for beach car
parks – raise more funds from coastal locations and ensure good facilities were
provided in these areas to attract visitors.
 Some beach car parks were very close to town centre car parks, therefore there
was the danger that if the ‘shopping’ car parks were cheaper beach users might fill
these up.
 There was a need to support retail and protect the car parks.
 Prices could be frozen for residents and increased for non-residents of East
Devon.
 Had there been consultation with Devon County Council over the cost of their on
street parking charges.
 There were large variances in on street parking charges across the district.
 Concern that there could be a negative impact on disabled people if parking
charges were raised at the most conveniently located car parks – was there an
equalities impact assessment on this.
 If parking charges were not raised then people would continue to drive into town
centres and contribute to pollution. A small increase would not deter people from
using car parks.
 Town centres would need to change in the future and function differently, but
people would still need to access them.
 There was a need to increase income for the Council, but also the need to be
aware that the public could have a lack of funds. Offering a permit would help
compensate for a larger increase in fees.
 The motor home spaces along Exmouth seafront were often taken up by vans
used for watersports. There was also the problem that no facilities for
motorhomes were provided at the Maer, resulting in people disposing of their grey
water there as the regulations were not being enforced.
 Green travel should be considered, with greater investment in electric charging
infrastructure in car parks.
 The future of green travel was important, but how vehicles would be fuelled in the
future was unclear.
 Ideally in the future people would be travelling less by car. Town centres should
be car and pollution free, instead being open green clean spaces. In which case
car parks could even become redundant.
In response to some of the points raised the Service Lead – Environmental Health and
Car Parks replied:
page 38

Car Parking Task and Finish Forum 26 November 2020










Equalities was an important point and he believed that the impact was low.
Disabled drivers had a number of options and would have the option of very
affordable permits (which worked out at approximately £2/week). Disabled blue
badge holders could park on street with no charge and therefore the number of
disabled drivers using paying car parks was low in comparison to free on-street
car parking.
EDDC provided a means tested hardship scheme for local residents, who through
this could get a parking permit for free.
£10/month for a parking permit was excellent value and would be of great help to
residents and businesses. If agreed, this could be carefully and sensitively
promoted. Any harm to local businesses by increasing car parking tariffs would
be mitigated by offering a permit for £10/month.
EDDC had an ongoing dialogue with DCC about charges for off street car parking,
which tended to be higher and for a shorter time. Consultation would ensure that
the two authorities remained in line.
When previously consulted about reducing the length of stay in short stay car
parks, the Chamber of Commerce had expressed concern about the time
constraints.
The report contained a recommendation that a revised policy for campervans and
motorhomes be introduced.

RECOMMENDED:
1. to propose the introduction of a 20p per hour tariff increase in East Devon District
Council’s category 1 (prime location) car parks effective from April 2021.
2. to propose the introduction of a revised parking structure for car park permits with
a £120 per annum for a single town (and an additional £24 per each town added)
up to a maximum annual permit charge of £240 to cover all towns. This would
provide a ‘pay monthly’ scheme for all regular customers starting with a single
town permit for just £10 per month.
3. that delegated authority be given to the Chief Executive and relevant Portfolio
Holders to introduce a revised policy for campervans and motorhomes, with the
policy first coming back to the Car Parking Task and Finish Forum for
consideration.
4. To repurpose the Car Parking Task and Finish Forum to report back to the
Scrutiny Committee in Spring 2021 to:
a. Consider in more detail the options for supporting the Council’s Climate
Emergency Action Plan.
b. Develop a range of options for the future management for the Council’s
category 2 car parks.
c. Consider any other measures including the possibility of introducing
evening charges in certain car parks.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
C Brown (Chair)
F Caygill
M Chapman
A Colman
O Davey
M Howe
E Rylance
page 39

Car Parking Task and Finish Forum 26 November 2020

J Whibley
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
P Arnott
G Jung
D Ledger
T McCollum
A Moulding
M Rixson
J Rowland
E Wragg
Officers in attendance:
Ashley Burnett, Acting Business Support Team Leader, Car Parks
Bhavna Chandra, Business Support Officer, Car Parks
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Andrew Ennis, Service Lead Environmental Health and Car Parks
Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager
Alethea Thompson, Democratic Services Officer
Councillor apologies:
K Bloxham
B Ingham
V Ranger

Chairman

Date:

page 40

Agenda Item 11
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Asset Management Forum held on 1 December
2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 9.30 am and ended at 12.25 pm

34

Public speaking
There were no members of the public registered to speak.

35

Notes from the previous meeting
The minutes of the previous meeting held on the 9 January 2020 were confirmed as a
true record.

36

Declarations of interest
Councillor Paul Hayward – personal, minute 41 - Parish Clerk to All Saints, Chardstock
and Newton Poppleford and Harpford Parish Councils who may in future have to make
decisions on asset transfers.
Councillor Dan Ledger – personal, minute 41 – Ward Member for Seaton.

37

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

38

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There was one item classified in this way and agreed to be considered in private session.

39

Introduction to Service, portfolio and asset management priorities
The Service Lead – Place, Assets and Commercialisation gave a presentation on the
broad remit of the service, portfolio and asset management priorities.
He highlighted the staffing levels and defined the meaning of asset management for a
Local Authority. The importance of asset data was stressed as key for informing
strategic decisions on the Council’s assets.
The current Council portfolio was outlined as circa:
 465 land assets
 434 buildings
 £1.1m rent roll
 411 leases and licences
The broad areas of work of the teams within the service were outlined to the Forum as
set out below:
Place and Prosperity Team:
page 41

Asset Management Forum 1 December 2020

 Place-prosperity projects across the Council’s own asset base and working with
others towards enhancing social, economic and environmental wellbeing of
localities and communities through land and property;
 Unlock both physical developments and wider improvements to a locality and
delivering greater place prosperity though the delivery of places to live, work and
visit, connectedness, amenity and improved service delivery;
 Close links with Growth Development and Prosperity Service, Streetscene and
Countryside services.
Estates Team:
 Mange leased out portfolio
 Acquisitions
 Disposals
 Estate management
 Statutory and non-statutory valuations/viability appraisals
 Property records
 Strategy and policy
 Support HRA
Property and Facilities Management:
 Reactive maintenance
 Planned maintenance and servicing
 Capital Investment
 Health and Safety Compliance
 Suitability and sufficiency
 Facilities Management of corporate offices
The key themes and projects across the service were outlined as:
 Climate change
 Corporate landlord function, understanding of assets performance and resulting
decision making;
 Asset devolution;
 Commercialisation;
 Place Making;
 Investment in existing buildings and move away from reactive to proactive.
Discussion on this item included:
 Ensure that climate change is the greatest priority in the work of the service;
 Clarification of the background to the Mamhead slipway being listed as an asset;
 Clarification on how beach huts and beach hut sites are listed as assets;
 In response to a question about including carbon neutral target within the 30 year
maintenance plan of an asset, the Service Lead confirmed that there was no
reflection in costs on achieving the carbon neutral target, these costs being based
on replacement of components at end of useful lives, maintenance and
compliance costs rather than enhancement of assets, but outlined that this could
be considered as part of the investment protocol;
 There were currently few empty premises; those that were empty were either
currently being marketed for re-let or about to go to market;
 Members should have access to the asset register in order to be fully informed
when taking a decision on any asset;
 The outstanding issue with differing systems holding asset information was
outlined and it was hoped that a solution to draw the remaining data together was
close to resolution.
page 42

Asset Management Forum 1 December 2020

Resolved that the presentation on the work of the service be noted.
40

Service Planning
The key themes proposed for the Service Plan 2021/22 were presented as a short report
under the following themes:
 Place and Environment
 Economy
 Homes and Communities
 Council and Council services
The elements within the themes were explored by the Forum and supported.
Resolved that the report be noted.

41

Community Asset Transfer Policy
The Forum were asked to assess the continuing suitability of the draft policy.
Cabinet resolved on 2 October 2019 to endorse the policy in principle and commence
consultation with town and parish councils. Following that, consultation was put on hold
while consultation took place through the Careful Choices initiative; but due to the current
pandemic, the consultation on the Asset Transfer Policy was yet to start.
Councillor Pook, as former Chair of the Forum, gave the Forum background on the draft
policy and his views on what the next stages could involve.
The Forum discussion on elements of the draft policy included:
 Distinctions between minor and major assets, and how the timeframe for transfer
should reflect those differences;
 Consideration of the Council acting as lender of funds to assist town and parish
councils to finance the adoption of assets;
 Assurances that assets transferring to lower tiers were not then lost to the public if
devolved down further;
 Important to deal with those town and parishes that had already shown interest
and potentially identified assets that they wish to take on;
 Need to share clear data on ownership of assets;
 Need to be mindful of resources needed both at a District and local level to
process asset transfers;
 Replace reference to the Council Plan to be Statement of Intent;
 Review timescales and make appropriate to size of asset being transferred;
 Need for Forum members to work through the assets with officers;
 Effective communication to manage expectation of what assets would be
considered for transfer.
Discussion took place on the report detail on the next steps to progress the draft policy to
an adopted policy, which included:
 If consultation with Town and Parish Councils on the draft policy was necessary.
The Forum were reminded that Cabinet had already agreed for the consultation to
take place, and that it gave lower tier councils an opportunity to comment,
particularly if they felt that the timescales or processes involved would be difficult
page 43

Asset Management Forum 1 December 2020



to meet. The suggestion that consultation was not needed was subsequently
withdrawn;
Consultation period would commence before the next scheduled meeting of the
Forum in March 2020, and be conducted over six weeks. The Forum were keen
for the consultation to be clear that this was consultation on the process, and not
the opportunity to discuss individual assets at this stage.

Resolved that the agreed consultation with Town and Parish Councils commences in
January/February as resources permit, (but committed to commence before the next
AMF meeting in March) for a six week period, on the draft policy with questions to obtain
feedback on the policy itself rather than the aspirations at this stage of different Councils.
42

Commercial Investment
Mention was made on the most recent acquisition, reported to Cabinet on 8 October
2020. No other investment opportunities are actively being progressed due to the
current pandemic and new direction being sought.
The Forum were asked to provide direction on:
 The appetite for commercial investment;
 How to align investment with the Council’s priorities;
 How to align investment with supporting economic recover from the pandemic;
 How to align investment to provide quality social and affordable housing;
 Decision making relating to investment.
Discussion by the Forum included:
 Ensuring early engagement of Ward Members as part of the framework followed;
 Review urban capacity studies to help identify possible sites for development;
 Borrowing from the Public Loans Board for commercial investment was no longer
permitted if the purpose of the investment is to purchase solely for yield. More
information was needed to determine if there was still availability to borrow if the
purpose was for social benefit, with yield as a secondary benefit;
 Existing framework would now require updating if the Council were to switch to
social benefit being the primary driver, due to the change in legislation;
 Opportunity to review the framework fully to incorporate necessary and suggested
changes. An informal and closed discussion on the framework with Forum
members, open to all Councillors to contribute, was considered the best option to
develop the review before debate at the Forum in a public meeting and
recommendation onto Cabinet and Council.
Resolved that a special meeting of the Forum, not open to the public, be held to begin
the review on the Commercial Investment Framework, prior to the next scheduled
meeting of the Forum in March 2021.

43

Exclusion of press and public
That under Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 and in accordance
with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to
Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the public (including the press) be
excluded from the meeting as exempt and private information (as set out against
each Part B agenda item), is likely to be disclosed and on balance the public
interest is in discussing the items in private session (Part B).
page 44

Asset Management Forum 1 December 2020

44

Marpool Workshops
The Forum received an update on the site and discussed instructing officers to review
options for the site.
Resolved that the report be noted, and officers are instructed to review the site further
and report back to the Forum on future options.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
P Arnott
P Hayward (Chair)
D Ledger
J Rowland
G Pratt
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
M Armstrong
K Blakey
P Faithfull
N Hookway
G Jung
A Moulding
H Parr
G Pook
Officers in attendance:
Tim Child, Service Lead - Place, Assets & Commercialisation
Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services Officer
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Rob Harrison, Senior Estates Surveyor
Alison Hayward, Project Manager Place, Assets & Commercialisation
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Steve Pratten, Interim Principal Surveyor
Councillor apologies:
F King

Chairman

Date:

page 45

Agenda Item 12

Recommendations for Cabinet that will resolve in an action being taken:
Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel 1 December 2020

Minute 9 Capital Programme Financing and New Bids 2021/22
RECOMMENDED:
1. That the following items be added to the Capital Programme for 2020/21:
a)
Bridge repair works across East Devon £65,000;
b)
Budleigh Greenway Bridge repaint £66,000
c)
Honiton Willow Walk Bridge refurbishment £20,000
d)
Beer Cliff Top Car Park access road improvements £95,000
e)
Budleigh Lime Kilm Car Park total resurfacing £175,000
f)
Honiton Lace Walk Car Park partial resurfacing £20,000
g)
Sidmouth Mill Street Car Park resurfacing and relining £25,000
h)
Seaton Wetlands Car Park enhancements £25,000
i)
Jacob’s Ladder, Sidmouth Void plus seawall £175,000
j)
Sidmouth Capping Wall £45,000
k)
Sidmouth East Beach access steps £27,000
l)
Exmouth Groyne concrete repair £85,000
m)
Seaton Hole revetment repairs £100,000
n)
Brixington Open Space enhancement £150,000 (less £23,000 s106 funding if
granted)
o)
Cliff works (Beer, Seaton and Sidmouth) £25,000
p)
Footpath resurfacing of public open spaces (Phear Park, Gunfield Gardens,
Madeira Walk and The Plantation) £50,000
q)
Budleigh Lime Kiln Play Area £80,000
r)
Exmouth Liverton Copse Play Area £80,000
s)
Honiton Jerrard Close Play Area £60,000
t)
Honiton Pale Gate Play Area £80,000
u)
Exmouth Phear Park Skatepark £240,000
v)
Sidmouth Baker Close Play Area £60,000
2.
That, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder, evidence is sought on level of
use of Greenway Lane Footbridge, and an alternative solution to the existing bridge
be researched;
3.
That the Brixington Open Space Enhancement amends the location of outdoor
gym equipment to a cluster arrangement;
4.
That the Exmouth Phear Park shelter bid of £25,000 be rejected; and instruct
officers to explore the use of anti-graffiti paint on the current structure.

page 46

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel held
on 1 December 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 4.39 pm

7

Notes from previous meeting held on 16 September 2020
The notes from the previous meeting held on the 16 September 2020 were agreed as a
true record.

8

Declarations of interest
Councillor Rowland – personal interest minute 9 – Ward Member of Seaton
Councillor Ledger – personal interest minute 9 – Ward Member of Seaton; Scaffold
provider in area.
Councillor Pook – personal interest minute 9 – Ward Member of Beer and Branscombe.
Councillor Rixson – personal interest minute 9 – Ward Member of Sidmouth Sidford

9

Capital Programme Financing and New Bids 2021/22
The Panel considered the Capital Programme financing statement. 23 bids were put
forward for the Panel to debate and recommend forward to Cabinet for inclusion in the
programme.
General comments on the Capital Programme and the bids presented to the Party
considered included:
 The Play Strategy was anticipated to be back before Cabinet in May/June 2021,
whereby debate could take place on how play area maintenance and replacement
was funded across the District, as it was felt that there was some disparity
between some parishes adding to their precept for play areas, and paying again
for play areas in other parts of the district. There was also the need to plan ahead
for Cranbrook;
 Bids presented to the Party were considered by officers to fall under the category
of essential work, although some had cost options for enhanced work. Members
were asked to consider implications of future work if bids relating to play areas
were pushed to future years to undertake, because of the lead-in time required to
implement;
 Scoring did take into account an element for both carbon impact in the immediate
term and the length of benefit of the project. Further discussion could be held
between officers to ensure that all aspects impacting this factor are taken into
account, as this was the first year that the carbon scoring “grid” had been used,
and can be refined for future bids.
Specific discussion on Budleigh Greenway Bridge included a request for evidence of
use, and consideration of other options to cross the railway cutting in preparation of the
current bridge reaching a point of requiring replacement.
Specific discussion on Budleigh Lime Kiln Car Park covered concern about works to the
area coming up in the next 2 – 3 years for other projects, including the Lower Otter
restoration project. Members were assured that the resurfacing works could not wait
page 47

Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel 1 December 2020

until those projects were completed; and that access agreements and repair clauses
would be in place for those projects to help protect the immediate maintenance work if
approved.
Options for Lace Walk Car Park Honiton were discussed, and with concurrent advice
from the local Ward Member, the Panel agreed to recommend partial resurfacing would
suffice, as the remainder of the car park was in good condition.
Specific discussions on Seaton Wetlands Car Park centred on the success of the
wetlands, and to examine conditional elements of the grant from Natural England to see
if other means of gaining revenue from the car park were possible. Members
acknowledged the voluntary contributions and did not want to adversely impact on use
by introducing a pay and display element, but wished to examine some options for
helping to finance the ongoing maintenance of the site.
The Panel heard from two Exmouth Ward Members in relation to the bid for the
replacement of Phear Park Shelter. The bid had a total of four options, ranging from a
basic structure to and elevated bandstand. The options, progressing in cost, were drawn
up to improve the offer to the public and help design out anti-social behaviour. On
balance the Panel felt that the current structure could remain, and the use of anti-graffiti
paint was a suitable and cost effective option. The recommendation to Cabinet was to
therefore refuse the bid.
Brixington Open Space enhancement bid and Exmouth Phear Park Skate bid also have
s106 bids in the Exmouth Sports voting, which could grant up to the whole project cost if
successful. The capital programme bids were presented as a backup.

Recommended to Cabinet:
1. That the following items be added to the Capital Programme for 2020/21:
a) Bridge repair works across East Devon £65,000;
b) Budleigh Greenway Bridge repaint £66,000
c) Honiton Willow Walk Bridge refurbishment £20,000
d) Beer Cliff Top Car Park access road improvements £95,000
e) Budleigh Lime Kilm Car Park total resurfacing £175,000
f) Honiton Lace Walk Car Park partial resurfacing £20,000
g) Sidmouth Mill Street Car Park resurfacing and relining £25,000
h) Seaton Wetlands Car Park enhancements £25,000
i) Jacob’s Ladder, Sidmouth Void plus seawall £175,000
j) Sidmouth Capping Wall £45,000
k) Sidmouth East Beach access steps £27,000
l) Exmouth Groyne concrete repair £85,000
m) Seaton Hole revetment repairs £100,000
n) Brixington Open Space enhancement £150,000 (less £23,000 s106 funding if
granted)
o) Cliff works (Beer, Seaton and Sidmouth) £25,000
p) Footpath resurfacing of public open spaces (Phear Park, Gunfield Gardens,
Madeira Walk and The Plantation) £50,000
q) Budleigh Lime Kiln Play Area £80,000
r) Exmouth Liverton Copse Play Area £80,000
s) Honiton Jerrard Close Play Area £60,000
t) Honiton Pale Gate Play Area £80,000
u) Exmouth Phear Park Skatepark £240,000
v) Sidmouth Baker Close Play Area £60,000
page 48

Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel 1 December 2020

2. That, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder, evidence is sought on level of use of
Greenway Lane Footbridge, and an alternative solution to the existing bridge be
researched;
3. That the Brixington Open Space Enhancement amends the location of outdoor gym
equipment to a cluster arrangement;
4. That the Exmouth Phear Park shelter bid of £25,000 be rejected; and instruct officers
to explore the use of anti-graffiti paint on the current structure.
10

Key project monitoring report
The Panel considered the monitoring report for the current projects financed from the
Capital Programme, which included comments on reasons for any variations on the
projects.
The Strategic Lead Finance outlined the purpose of the report, to help Members track the
budget spend, milestones reached and risks of each project. Future meetings would
also include detailed reports on the variations.
Cllr Rixson congratulated the Portfolio Holder Coast, Country and Environment and
officers on the progress on the Sidmouth and East Beach Beach Management Plan.
Cllr Hookway reported that work continued on obtaining attractions for Queens Drive,
through the Exmouth Queens Drive Delivery Group.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
J Rowland (Chair)
P Arnott
J Bailey
D Barrow
K Blakey
P Hayward
S Jackson
G Jung
D Ledger
A Moulding
G Pook
M Rixson
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
P Faithfull
P Millar
S Gazzard
E Wragg
N Hookway
Officers in attendance:
John Symes, Finance Manager
page 49

Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel 1 December 2020

John Hudson, Accountant
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
Andrew Hancock, Service Lead StreetScene
Charles Plowden, Service Lead Countryside and Leisure
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Councillor apologies:
F King

Chair

Date:

page 50

Agenda Item 13
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Arts and Culture Forum held at Online via the
Zoom app on 3 December 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 12.50 pm

10

Public speaking
There were no members of the public wishing to speak.

11

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 26 February 20202 were agreed as a true
record.

12

Declarations of interest
4. Declarations of interest.
Councillor Andrew Moulding, Personal, Trustee of Axminster Heritage Ltd
President of Axminster Musical Theatre
President of Cloakham Lawn Sports Centre.
4. Declarations of interest.
Councillor Bruce De Saram, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
4. Declarations of interest.
Councillor Joe Whibley, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
4. Declarations of interest.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.

13

EDDC culture recovery work (April - October 2020)
This was covered during the presentation for the next agenda item.

14

Recovery challenges overview
The Service Lead – Countryside and Leisure welcomed all those present to the meeting
and gave a presentation on how his teams had responded to the Covid 19 pandemic.
The impact of lockdown had been keenly felt in the arts and culture sector. There had
already been a reduction in funding since 2010, which had had a huge impact on the
industry. Theatres, galleries, events and festivals were all shutdown first in April 2020
and were the last to reopen. There was a rescue package of £1.57 billion from the
Department of Digital. Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS), however local authority run
venues were not eligible, therefore EDDC had not benefitted from this funding. DCMS
guidance only allowed for theatres to achieve 30% capacity, which was not commercially
viable for many. Galleries had been able to partially reopen with social distancing, but
valuable income streams such as cafes, restaurants and shops remained closed.
page 51

Arts and Culture Forum 3 December 2020

The Thelma Hulbert Gallery (THG) had shut during lockdown with the majority of staff
furloughed, and exhibitions and outreach and events programming postponed. The
Manor Pavilion Theatre also closed with all staff furloughed and box office redundancies
and the restructuring of staff. The Countryside team postponed all schools, public events
and volunteering activities. It was a credit to the organisations’ relationships that many of
the pre-booked performances, exhibitions and events had been rescheduled for the
following year. All the teams had reprogrammed and adapted venues and activities to
meet the challenges ahead and ensure they were Covid compliant. It was acknowledged
that people in the arts were creative and the pandemic had provided both threats and
opportunities.
A positive impact of lockdown had been the responding, reimaging and repurposing of
planned activities. Lockdown had also given people the opportunity to engage with their
natural environment, and with traffic levels reduced there had been a resurgence within
the natural environment. A significant rise was seen in visitor numbers to all the local
nature reserves. Both the THG and Wild East Devon reimaged their public events
programmes and these were often fully booked within 24 hours of going live.
All East Devon’s green spaces and cultural venues had never been as valued for both
their contribution to mental and physical well-being as now. Investment in securing new
green spaces for local communities was required as well as investment in new
technology to recover income. The pandemic had shown beyond doubt the social value
of the Council’s nature reserves, arts, events and performances to all its communities
and their wellbeing.
There was an opportunity to put arts and culture into the public eye following lockdown,
with promotional messages highlighting activities as well as health and well-being. This
could include an expansion of East Devon’s tourism offer.
15

Thelma Hulbert Gallery Creative Cabin project
The Thelma Hulbert Gallery (THG) Curator’s presentation looked back on 2020 and
celebrated the successes. In 2020, against the context of EDDC’s commitment to
Devon’s Climate Change Emergency declaration, and the University of Exeter’s
declaration of an environment and climate emergency, the THG and University of Exeter
planned to work together to deliver a series of ambitious exhibitions, projects and public
programme. This included:
 Artist Rooms Richard Long.
 Creative Cabin - a project launched with Wild East Devon, a new travelling
creative space which hosted an array of activities.
 Abode of Love – although the original activity was paused this was then
reconfigured, and it also combatted the anti-social behaviour that was happening
in the area.
During lockdown an online project had been run called ‘Nature Shorts’ – a series
showcasing art practises which inspired, built creativity and deepened connection with
nature. It explored how people connected with nature, particularly during periods of
isolation, sharing different artistic approaches to land and space.
Another project was Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) Talking Heads – in
2020 THG forged a new partnership with both East Devon AONB and Blackdown Hills
AONB to deliver a diverse creative programme explaining our relationship with the
natural world.
page 52

Arts and Culture Forum 3 December 2020

The Forum agreed that it was fantastic to hear how dynamic the THG was being and
congratulated the team on the positive projects which were so valuable to people’s
health and well-being.
16

Abode of Love update
The Thelma Hulbert Gallery’s Curator covered this in her previous presentation (minute
15 refers).

17

Thelma Hulbert Gallery reopening and Richard Long exhibition
The Thelma Hulbert Gallery’s Curator covered this in her previous presentation (minute
15 refers).

18

Wild East Devon events programme
The Countryside Team Leader outlined to the Forum the Wild East Devon events
recovery programme. It had been a difficult year, but all local nature reserves had
remained open throughout. However, there had been huge restrictions on outdoor
learning and some staff had been on furlough.
The events offer had been reinvented, with around 55 family/household events being run
over the summer, with everything fully booked and hugely successful. Despite the
pandemic Wild East Devon had raised £5500 in revenue, which was a testament to the
team and also showed how well the public had responded to the events.
There had been a large audience drive through social marketing. During lockdown many
people were looking for activities and outdoor ideas. There was a self-guided sculpture
trail at Seaton Wetlands which had been a great success. The Wild Swimming project
had also been a great success, selling out within 30 minutes.
Wild East Devon had also launched an art competition for a calendar, encouraging
people to use their art skills and enjoy nature. This had just gone to print.
The Leader expressed his congratulations and thanks to the Wild East Devon project at
Seaton Wetlands, which was an excellent example of combining environmental work with
an extraordinary arts offer.

19

Wild Exmouth
The Countryside Team Leader explained that the second year of programme had been
rejigged due to the Covid 19 pandemic, with the main aims of getting people out enjoying
nature and linking them to the outside environment.
The purposes of the project were:
 Conservation volunteering
 Outdoor events
 Mapping and access
 Nature campaigns
The four themes of Wild Exmouth were:
 Wild and active
 Wild at home
page 53

Arts and Culture Forum 3 December 2020




Wild around town
Wild learning

Second year successes included:
 Increasing volunteers
 65 orchard trees in two new locations
 Covid safe family bookable events:
o Family bat walks
o Bumble bee webinar
o Family bee walks
o Small group tree planting
o Family bird box building
o Family pond dipping
 Green space map
 Growth of ‘my patch for nature’ – a very successful and low cost project which
could easily be scaled up across the district
 16 volunteer days – within ‘the rule of 6’, including:
o Tree planting
o Event support
o Wildflower seed packing
o Practical projects
o Orchard guardians
o Pond restoration
 6 newsletters
Overall the project had run more events than originally planned in the pandemic, with a
large rise in social marketing.
The Strategic Lead – Housing and Environment commented that Wild Exmouth was an
excellent example of rewilding and nature recovery. The project had joined up with
Street Scene and agreed to leave certain areas of grass long and then maintained for
diversity in nature.
A Wild Exmouth map had been designed and would be provided to every household in
Exmouth, as well as being used in four locations as an interpretation map around the
town. It showed how people could enjoy the green spaces around the town and would
be launched in the new year.
It was noted that the funding for similar projects in other towns would be dependent on
the outcomes of the project and the size of the town.
The Countryside Team Leader was thanked for his presentation and the amazing work of
the Wild Exmouth team.
20

Cultural plans - "re-imagined programme" 2021/22
This item was covered under the following agenda items.

21

Thelma Hulbert Gallery culture and climate change programme and
exhibitions 2021/22

page 54

Arts and Culture Forum 3 December 2020

The THG Curator outlined the 2021 programme for the Thelma Hulbert Gallery, which
was very responsive to what had happened in 2020 and involved creating communities
and captured the changing planet.
Events planned for 2021 included:
 Mikhail Kariki’s Children of the Unquiet (2013-14) - involving renewable energy,
climate change, community participation and song.
 In Plain Sight London Group – exploring the concept of perception.
 Ingrid Pollard
 Mike Perry Land/Sea – the tension between human activity and interventions in
the natural environment, and the fragility of the planet’s ecosystems.
 Volunteer project – a new project to make the opportunity more accessible and
inclusive to volunteers with additional needs, funded through Devon County
Council, focussing on mental health and using the Creative Cabin.
 John Francis art history lecture series.
The Forum agreed that the THG was offering a really exciting programme and that the
gallery was very lucky to be having some of the projects. It offered real diversity and a
great opportunity to promote the gallery during 2021.
22

Wild Honiton project - nature recovery network pilot
The Countryside Engagement and Participation Officer outlined ‘Wild Honiton’ to the
Forum. This was a 2 year project led by EDDC’s Wild East Devon team. It was aimed at
improving the green space and residents’ connection to green spaces. The two themes
were nature recovery (year one) and nature connection (year two).
The Forum noted a map of the key areas in Honiton as well as the timeline for the
project, which was currently on target, with consultation being completed. It was hoped
to deliver the project from March 2021-2023.
The Engagement and Participation Officer was pleased with the consultation responses,
with a large proportion of responses being in the younger age ranges, therefore
engaging with a different audience to usual. The four improvements people would most
like to be made were:
 More wildflower meadows.
 Installation of bird and bug boxes.
 More tree planting.
 Improvements with the aim of making visitors more comfortable, healthy and
happy.
40% of people said Wild East Devon could make it easier for them to access the outdoor,
public open spaces in Honiton.
The first year of the project would focus on the creation and set up of the network, with
year two building on the framework to focus on the development and expansion of the
project to targeted groups of people in Honiton.
There were three delivery options for the Wild Honiton project:
1. Delivered entirely by the team.
2. Delivered with a project officer.
3. Delivered with a mix of the above.
page 55

Arts and Culture Forum 3 December 2020

The Strategic Lead – Countryside and Leisure explained that Wild Exmouth had been
very successful and that the proposal was to scale up the Wild Towns initiative so that
eventually all East Devon’s towns would be able to benefit from the improvement of its
green spaces and wildlife. The Wild East Devon team was limited by team capacity,
however it was hoped that after each Wild Town project a sustainable legacy would be
left through establishing a strong community volunteering network. It would be a long
term project, with each town presenting its own challenges.
All those present acknowledged how important the arts were in maintaining people’s
mental health.
23

Manor Pavilion theatre reopening planning
The Manor Pavilion Theatre Manager explained to the Forum the situation with the
Manor Pavilion Theatre. The theatre was about to start its busiest season in March
2020, but had been unable to open and forced to cancel over 20 shows. Fortunately the
computerised Box Office system allowed customers to be easily contacted and refunded.
It was noted that as well as the lost revenue through ticket sales, the theatre had also
lost income usually made in ice cream and bar sales.
The venue was Covid safe and planned to reopen in February 2021, with a different way
of operating. Current regulations only allowed for 80-90 people per production (normal
seating capacity was 277) and a deep clean taking place between performances. 19
shows had been rebooked and it was planned to work more closely with organisations
for co-productions rather than operating as a hire only venue. A pantomime production
was scheduled for June 2021. The Manager believed that audiences would be regained
in the future, with the theatre coming back stronger, better and improved.
The Service Lead – Countryside and Leisure reported that the Council had a new events
officer who would be invited to a future meeting to discuss her role in supporting cultural
events

24

Date of next meeting
The Chair thanked everyone present at the meeting and acknowledged how useful it had
been to see what the arts and culture services were doing across the Council. The
teams’ adaptations had been impressive and their positivity was great.
It was agreed to hold the next meeting of the Arts and Culture Forum in late
February/early March 2021, with the date to be confirmed in due course.

Attendance List
EDDC Councillors present:
J Whibley (Chair)
B De Saram
S Jackson
G Jung
O Davey
A Moulding
Community representatives:
page 56

Arts and Culture Forum 3 December 2020

S Twiss
Town Representatives
K Briggs, Seaton Town Council
S Twiss, Community Representative
C Buchan, Cranbrook Town Council
E Pang, Ottery St Mary Town Council
Officers in attendance:
Tim Dafforn, Countryside Team Leader
Ruth Gooding, Manager/Curator THG
Charles Plowden, Service Lead Countryside and Leisure
Graham Whitlock, House Manager (Manor Pavilion Theatre)
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer
Alethea Thompson, Democratic Services Officer
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Carla Hiley, Exmouth Arts Manager
Also Present
P Faithfull
P Arnott
J Bailey
P Hayward
P Millar
A Colman
N Hookway
Apologies:
B Norris, Community Representative
J Loudoun

Chairman

Date:

page 57

Agenda Item 14
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Poverty Working Panel held Online via the Zoom
app. on 11 November 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 4.15 pm

9

Declarations of Interest
Minute 13 Poverty Strategy Summary and Poverty Plan on a Page - John Golding.
Councillor Mike Allen, Personal, Member of a Church which runs a foodbank.

10

Minutes of previous meeting held on 12 October 2020
Regarding the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 October 2020, it was agreed
that the list of priorities [minute 2 on page 1] should include the following:
 Raising skills and employment
Subject to this amendment, the minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a
correct record.

11

Joseph Rowntree Foundation - UK Annual Report on Poverty
2019/20 - Discussion
John Golding, Strategic Lead for Housing, Health & Environment introduced the Joseph
Rowntree Foundation (JRF) Report and noted that, in addition, the Resolution
Foundation and the Bristol Poverty Institute had good resources on poverty that the
panel could draw on going forward to support its work and objectives.
The JRF report identified that some 13 million people were in poverty in the UK and
offered some high level solutions to the national problem:
 As many people in good jobs as possible
 Improving earnings of low income working families
 Strengthening the benefits system
 Improving access to low cost affordable housing
The report was useful for setting the context for the Panel’s work and the full report was
available on the JRF website [www.josephrowntree.org.uk].
Discussion included the following points:
 The Terms of Reference for the Working Panel included the widely used
definitions of poverty related to a percentage (60%) of the median level of income
in the UK in any year. This definition was also used by the JRF (reproduced
below)
Defining poverty
There is more than one definition of poverty and it can mean different things to
different people, but it is generally considered that someone is in poverty when they
are not able to heat their home, pay their rent, pay for food or buy the essentials for
their children. There are 4 levels of poverty (Joseph Rowntree Foundation, 2019):
page 58

Poverty Working Panel 11 November 2020

 Income at minimum income standard or better – able to afford a decent
standard of living
 Income below minimum income standard – getting by day-to-day but under
pressure, difficult to manage unexpected costs and events
 Not enough income – falling substantially short of a decent standard of living,
high chance of not meeting needs
 Destitute – can’t afford to eat, keep clean and stay warm and dry
Poverty is most commonly measured using either:
 People in relative low income – living in households with income below 60% of
the median in that year;
 People in absolute low income – living in households with income below 60%
of (inflation adjusted) median income in some base year, usually 2010/11.













12

The work of the Panel should focus on the objective of increasing the amount of
low cost housing and enabling people to pay their rent and heat their home, as
these were issues which EDDC could influence
EDDC was among the top performing Council’s regarding processing claims for
housing benefit. Most new claims were now coming through the Universal Credit
process which had a built in four week delay before payment was made due to the
assessment process
The Covid-19 pandemic had resulted in significant changes in people’s
circumstances and triggered new benefit claims which would now be dealt with
under Universal Credit for working age people, rather than under the previous
legacy benefits, such as housing benefit
There were currently just under 4,500 households waiting for affordable housing in
the district and this figure tended to remain consistent over the past few years
The Panel should note poverty among the elderly caused by gender inequality of
pay and, where appropriate, should lobby for this to be addressed
EDDC bid for the Government revenue grant to assist rough sleepers over the
winter and allocations were expected to be announced shortly
EDDC works with a partnership manager at the Department of Work and
Pensions (DWP) and links with Citizens Advice (CA) to co-ordinate and align work
with them
The Council also works with support co-ordinators in schools to identify cases
where EDDC can provide additional support
There are links with Devon County Council regarding food poverty, growing links
with food banks and EDDC has a variety of partnerships with organisations
concerning the economic development and public health agendas
The Chair would follow up the query as to why the Panel was not open to the
public

Joseph Rowntree Foundation - Poverty Strategy - Discussion on its
recommendations
The purpose of the item was to consider the various recommendations in the JRF
Poverty Strategy, focussing on those relating to national and local government, service
providers and housing providers, and citizens and communities. In respect of the three
categories, the Panel considered whether the recommendations were positive in relation
to tackling poverty and could be reflected in the EDDC Poverty Strategy.
page 59

Poverty Working Panel 11 November 2020

Discussion highlighted the following points:
 In summary, the JRF Poverty Strategy document identified nine problem areas –
high housing and childcare costs, living with disability, high rents and evictions
from private tenancies, cost of utilities, discrimination against disabilities and
racism, mental health conditions, homelessness, experiences of violence and
geography
 The Team Devon approach to improving incomes, skills and businesses could be
included when considering what is meant by a sustainable economy or a better
economy
 The ‘Doughnut Economics’ approach captures the same points and includes
moving to a low carbon economy as well as social progress
 It was agreed that future meetings would consider such issues in more depth with
presentations by officers on their specific areas of responsibility
 Apprenticeships could be considered as a means of support and training for new
skills, e.g. Countryside apprenticeships. The Panel noted the Kickstart
programme as a means of helping people into full time employment and
consideration was being given across the Council to providing placements for the
programme
 It was noted that there were hidden aspects of poverty, such as personal
indebtedness, which can result in crisis when people’s circumstances change.
The Council has limited influence in this area, but works to support people with
advice on personal budgeting
 There was an on-going problem with loan sharks which would be addressed
through building the financial resilience of families and help with budgeting as key
themes in the emerging Poverty Strategy
 Five strategic objectives had been proposed, with Service Leads identified to work
on specific objectives. Panel members could liaise with individual Service Leads
on a particular objective in which they were interested or had specific skills. The
Panel could consider each strategic objective in turn at future meetings
 It would assist the Panel to know which strategic objectives included a statutory
duty of the Council
 There was also an issue around helping hard to reach people or those who
choose to keep their poverty hidden behind a ‘rural idyll’ and may not come
forward for support
 There needs to be a ‘no wrong door’ approach for those who do seek help
 The Council was working towards removing unintended barriers for those
accessing help and support e.g. One step data capture and information sharing
between agencies, subject to the individual’s agreement
 Early intervention was crucial in preventing a crisis following a change to an
individual’s circumstances
 The Panel noted the comments submitted by email from Cllr Paul Jarvis who was
unable to attend the meeting
13

Poverty Strategy Summary and Poverty Plan on a Page - John
Golding
John Golding introduced the Poverty Strategy Summary and Poverty Plan on a Page
which set out five strategic objectives and identified Service Leads for each objective.
Ultimately it was proposed that the five objectives would come together into one
seamless strategy.
page 60

Poverty Working Panel 11 November 2020

The Panel agreed the five strategic objectives:
1 Helping people on low incomes to maximise their household income and minimise
their costs, building financial resilience and reducing indebtedness. Lead
Service – Finance.
2 Strengthening families and communities, including supporting groups of people
that are more likely to experience poverty, and community and voluntary
groups working to combat poverty. Lead Service – Housing.
3 Promoting an inclusive economy, by raising skills and improving access to a range
of employment opportunities for people on low incomes. Lead Service –
Growth, Development & Prosperity.
4 Addressing the high cost of housing, improving housing conditions, creating
affordable warmth and reducing homelessness. Lead Service – Housing.
5 Improving health outcomes for people on low incomes, including access to good
diet, health care and ill health prevention. Lead Service – Environmental
Health.
It was suggested that the issue of hidden rural poverty could be addressed by a
communications plan to stand alongside the strategic objectives.
The following points were discussed:
 It was crucial to have a mechanism to provide immediate help for those who
suddenly found themselves in crisis
 There was a need to link services with other agencies to provide rapid help
 Libby Jarrett would contact Citizens Advice to provide an update on their capacity
to handle requests for help during the current pandemic
 The EDDC app could be a means of providing information for those who needed
help
14

Free School Meals during the Christmas holiday? - Libby Jarrett
Libby Jarrett provided an update on the recent Government announcement that £117
million would be made available nationally to support those most in need. Devon County
Council would receive £2 million of the funding. 80% of the funding was ring-fenced for
food, energy and water costs and 80% ring-fenced to support families with children.
The Council had started to make contact with school co-ordinators who would be aware
of potentially vulnerable and struggling families. It was vital to engage with families to
encourage them to access support as some were not coming forward for various
reasons.
At this stage it was not clear whether the funding would be administered entirely by
Devon County Council or whether district councils would also be involved.
It was noted that 1,950 children in East Devon were in receipt of free school meals
(10.5% of school children).
Helen Wharam advised that she had been working with Service Leads to ensure that
public health and well-being matters were incorporated into service plans for next year.
Consideration should be given to supporting community groups which were finding it
hard to sustain efforts to help people during the prolonged pandemic restrictions.

page 61

Poverty Working Panel 11 November 2020

15

Dates of meetings and invitations to DWP / CA?
It was proposed to hold future meetings monthly on Mondays. Suggested dates were:
7 December
18 January
15 February
15 March
12 April
10 May
It was agreed to enquire as to the level of increase of domestic violence / abuse as a
result of the pandemic. The housing options team would be requested to contact the
Exeter Refuge to enquire whether they needed assistance.
Libby Jarrett would check the availability of DWP and CA to attend meetings in the new
year. All Members would be invited to attend.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
M Allen
M Armstrong (Chair)
M Chapman
B De Saram
S Hawkins
F King
M Rixson
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
I Hall
Officers in attendance:
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager
Libby Jarrett, Service Lead Revenues and Benefits
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer
Helen Wharam, Public Health Project Officer
Andrew Wood, Service Lead - Growth Development and Prosperity
Councillor apologies:
P Jarvis

Chair

Date:
page 62

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Poverty Working Panel held via zoom on 7
December 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 11.00 am and ended at 1.35 pm

16

Public Speaking
Gillian Adamson a resident of Exmouth spoke about homelessness in Exmouth and was
pleased to advise that a homeless person she had been helping was now in bed and
breakfast. She raised concerns about the slow response from the council on rough
sleepers and homelessness in Exmouth and suggested the council could provide
caravans at Maer Road Car Park as a temporary stop gap or to purchase one of the
empty hotels to convert into self-contained rooms. In response to the comment about
using empty hotels as temporary accommodation Councillor Wragg, Exmouth Ward
Member advised the hotels were needed for holiday accommodation which was needed
to help support the local economy.
Ben Reid, a resident of Exmouth spoke about homelessness. He advised about his 25
year working background that ranged from working in hostels and drop-in centres in
Exeter and East Devon. He referred to a person who had been living on the streets for 3
weeks in Exmouth and said the only support that had been offered to him by the council
was a train ticket out of Exmouth. Ben advised this was unacceptable and as a result
had found the person a caravan to stay in and had contacted Exmouth Friends in Need
who had been amazing. Ben was pleased to advise the person had now found
employment and was doing well. Ben raised concerns that there were other homeless
people that the council were not helping. Ben thanked Councillor Millar for all his help
and enthusiasm and said with Councillor Millar’s help the homeless will be able to get
more help.
Claire Austin, Exmouth Friends in Need Chairperson, had submitted a statement read
out on her behalf by the Democratic Services Officer, which stated:
Exmouth Friends In Need (EFIN) was started just under two years ago to help alleviate
short term poverty within the community usually caused by a sudden change in an
individuals or family’s circumstance. Primarily the main focus was ensuring that people
had sufficient food but as time has gone on we now not only focus on this aspect but also
provide help with heating and furniture.
There are countless families and individuals in the Exmouth area who do not have the
means to properly furnish their homes and EFIN do their very best to help where we can.
We also get many indirect referrals from the Council/Housing Department to help those
with nothing. The local community is very good at passing on old furniture but
sometimes it is barely fit for purpose and not suitable. Unfortunately we sometimes have
to turn down quality furniture as we have no immediate home for it but alas have
nowhere to store it. There is of course quite a large second hand furniture market but in
these COVID times most of our funding is being spent on food and heating.
We understand that the Council is trying to develop an initiative to address furniture
poverty and EFIN would very much welcome such a scheme. Support could come in a
page 63

Poverty Working Panel 7 December 2020

number of ways, not just targeted funding but perhaps a small storage area or help with
logistics when it comes to moving larger items.
Please contact us if you would like to discuss any of these points further.
The Chair thanks the speakers and advised as part of the homeless strategy the council
was looking into setting up a ‘magic garage’ and was working in partnership with other
voluntary organisations to get it started.

17

Declarations of interest
Minute 19. Poverty and the Economy - presentation by Andy Wood - Service Lead Growth, Development and Prosperity.
Councillor Mike Howe, Personal, Owns a retail shop.
Minute 20. Draft Poverty Strategy Action Plan - John Golding.
Councillor Eleanor Rylance, Personal, Involved with Broadclyst Foodbank.
Minute 20. Draft Poverty Strategy Action Plan - John Golding.
Councillor Mike Allen, Personal, Involved with Honiton Foodbank and a number of
initiatives to minimise poverty through the church.
Minute 20. Draft Poverty Strategy Action Plan - John Golding.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Executive member of Nourish which is a group in
Axminster providing meals for those in poverty.
Minute 20. Draft Poverty Strategy Action Plan - John Golding.
Councillor Paul Millar, Personal, Volunteered for Exmouth Friends in Need and employed
part-time for Co-op Group which raises money for foodbanks and similar charities.

18

Minutes of the previous meeting held on 11 November 2020
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 11 November 2020 were agreed as a
correct record.
In response Councillor Millar commented that it was difficult to determine whether the
minutes were accurate as there was no recording and asked why the previous two
meetings were not held in public and requested that future meetings were held in the
evenings to ensure all panel members can attend. In response the Chair advised the
issues would be discussed during the meeting.
The Chair clarified the comment made by Councillor Chapman at the previous meeting
about refuges and advised in recent months there had been an increase in numbers
fleeing domestic abuse and violence. The Chair advised there are no refuges in East
Devon but there were places of safety in partnership with a local organisation. The
nearest refuges were in North Devon, North Somerset, Cornwall and Torquay. In
response Councillor Chapman said the lack of a safe house in East Devon did not reflect
well and that there was a need to look at this urgently when people’s lives were at risk.

19

Poverty and the Economy - presentation by Andy Wood - Service
Lead - Growth, Development and Prosperity
page 64

Poverty Working Panel 7 December 2020

The Chair welcomed the Service Lead for Growth, Development and Prosperity and
reminded Members that the Panel would be inviting three further Leads from the
remaining strategic areas of Housing, Finance and Environmental Health to explore their
service in more detail and how it fits in with the Poverty Strategy Action Plan.
The panel received a detailed presentation which started with the relationship between
poverty and economic performance. Key aspects highlighted in the presentation
included:
 Poverty is not the same as having a low income;
 Fixed costs are important;
 The South West is unique in being the only region with above average house
prices but below average wages;
 Being able to access a decent well paid job is a key determinant of quality of life
and wider wellbeing.
The Service Lead for Growth, Development and Prosperity outlined some key elements
highlighting that East Devon had a higher proportion of part-time workers than the South
West (36.3%) and the UK (32.4%). Two of the largest employment sectors were
agricultural and the seasonal visitor/tourism sector which were characterised by low
average salary levels.
Members noted the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic during 2020.
This included a number of companies either going into administration or experiencing
large scale job losses such as:






Exeter Airport
Flybe
Shauls Bakery
Shearings Holidays
Devon Cliffs

He outlined some potential opportunities to support economic recovery to ensure
opportunities were available across the district to continue to improve tourism and
hospitality and referred to Objective 3 of the Anti-Poverty Strategy Action Plan. This
sought to promote an inclusive economy by raising skills and improving access to a
range of employment opportunities for people on low incomes. A range of activity was
identified in the draft action plan to help to realise this objective.
Discussion included the following points by members outside of the Panel:
 Poverty levels and economic prosperity depends upon the driving forces within it.
Reference was made to a lecture by Mark Carney which had considered the
points of economic value and social value and how high fixed costs compared to
low income resulted in debt;
 Quality of employment was an important factor;
 Clarification sought on whether the GDP figures show what proportion of people
working in Exeter and living in East Devon. In response the Service Lead for
Growth, Development and Prosperity advised that care was needed in terms of
interpreting the statistics and particularly whether they were measured by work
place or place of residence. Commuting to and from relatively well paid
employment in Exeter had a significant influence on large parts of the District;
 Reports show that there is a significant proportion of in work poverty including
families with children. This was considered to be a national disgrace. The
page 65

Poverty Working Panel 7 December 2020



importance of engaging local MPs in helping to address this issue was also
highlighted;
Concerns were raised about the structural shift in retail and the need to make sure
our local towns prosper and to make sure our shops thrive by encouraging rents
to stabilise so that shops can continue trading. Members noted that landlord rents
and business rates were an issue that needed to be addressed on a national
stage.

Discussion included the following points by Panel members:
 Members thanked the Service Lead for Growth, Development and Prosperity for
an excellent presentation;
 Statistics showed that in the UK there were 56% of working families in poverty
compared to 39% 20 years ago. Clarification was sought on whether there were
statistics for East Devon as data shows the majority of people in poverty were
actually in work. In response the Service Lead for Growth, Development and
Prosperity agreed that there was a generational shift and that families increasingly
have to have two jobs. The rising number of people in in work poverty was a
significant issue and he advised that he would investigate what data was available
and send these statistics to members;
 A recent survey showed the average tourist in Exmouth only spent £16 per head.
A suggestion was made that if tourists were not spending the money we would
need to look at bringing other forms of employment into the area, especially as
low paid seasonal jobs were affecting the community. In response the Service
Lead for Growth, Development and Prosperity advised of the importance of having
a diverse economy that is able to perform well in many areas. There is a
challenge for our coastal towns to raise spend. He highlighted East Devon
Excellence as an example of a private sector led initiative designed to showcase
best practice across the full breadth of the tourism sector and more widely such as
food and drink;
 The need to look at higher paid employment;
 A suggestion was made to find out where the retail hot spots were to help find out
what was going on in communities. In response it was advised the council was
currently looking at footfall and local spend and advised Members about a funding
source that was available called the ‘Reopening High Streets Safely Fund’;
 Clarification was sought on whether the council had employees on a zero hour
contract. This would be checked and the answer reported back to Members;
 Reference was made that Overview Committee had considered the use of digital
technology in the high street;
 Digital inclusion was important. In response the Service Lead for Growth,
Development and Prosperity referred to digital support programmes run by
Cosmic. Digital inclusion was also an area highlighted in the action plan;
 Concerns were raised about the need to look at improving skills and to unlock
employment sites and reference was made to specific grants.
20

Draft Poverty Strategy Action Plan - John Golding
Strategic Lead for Housing, Health and Environment presented Members with a draft
Poverty Action Plan which had been based on a format used by Cambridge City Council.
The draft Action Plan included the five objectives agreed at the last Panel meeting which
were:
 Helping people on low income to maximise their household income and minimise
their costs, building financial resilience and reducing indebtedness;
page 66

Poverty Working Panel 7 December 2020






Strengthening families and communities, including supporting groups that are
more likely to experience poverty and community and volunteer groups working to
combat poverty;
Promoting an inclusive economy by raising skills and improving access to a range
of employment opportunities for people on low income;
Addressing the high cost housing, improving housing conditions, creating
affordable warmth and reducing homelessness;
Improving health outcomes for people on low incomes, including access to good
diet, health and ill health prevention.

Members noted that many of the poverty activities are already being undertaken by the
Council and had been for some time. The Action Plan suggests enhancements and new
activities that extend the current poverty interventions. It focuses on interventions that
we can deliver as a District Council where we can make a positive difference.
The Strategic Lead for Housing, Health and Environment invited Members to help
populate and refine the draft Action Plan as it develops and when completed it is
anticipated that it will be presented alongside a strategy document in which the Action
Plan will sit as an annexe.
The Chair invited Members to focus their comments and questions on the third objective
(the theme of this meeting) - Promoting an inclusive economy by raising skills and
improving access to a range of employment opportunities for people on low income;
Discussion included the following points by members outside of the Panel:


A suggestion was made to include an qualitative evaluation of the actions to
determine which actions were more important (prioritisation of actions);

Discussion included the following points by Panel members:









The need to consider digital inclusion and connectivity as both play an important
role in accessing benefits and shopping in the high street;
The performance measures and outcomes need to be smart targets and
suggested using a balance scorecard approach;
Digital inclusion needs to be better across East Devon and rural areas are
significantly disadvantaged;
There is a big difference between actions that can be achieved and aspirations
and concerns were raised about the council having efforts diluted by chasing
matters that cannot get results;
The need to focus on the defined scope that the council is able to do;
Councillor Allen sought clarification on a promise to incorporate some of the ideas
he had put forward in August 2019 into the draft action plan addressing career
advice and laptops/IT devices that are critical for the future of young people, and
for the 50+ people and working with the voluntary sector which is an economic
area that has not been seen as an economic opportunity. In response the Chair
advised his earlier report was taken into account and many of his concerns
mentioned were already happening. The Strategic Lead advised Councillor Allen
had submitted a really good report and he hoped he had captured a lot of the spirit
of what was in the report in the draft actions;
This council should be declaring a poverty emergency to ensure the issue of
poverty is given the appropriate parity of esteem in the upcoming council plan. In
response the Strategic Lead for Housing advised poverty is a priority for the
page 67

Poverty Working Panel 7 December 2020






council in the recently published Statement of Intent and advised the timetable for
Panel sessions can be condensed if this was the wish of the Panel;
A suggestion was made to commission a new poverty report to raise awareness.
In response to this suggestion the Strategic Lead advised this was being done as
part of this Panel’s sessions and will be considered at Cabinet and Council by
March 2021 as part of the Poverty Strategy;
A suggestion was made for the need to learn from other councils on how to
implement the actions;
Concerns were raised about debt and how the Citizens Advice Bureau would be
able to cope with demand after Christmas and New Year as a lot of people would
be in debt. Following the meeting it was advised Citizens Advice East Devon had
confirmed that they had increased their phone line capacity locally and they were
confident they could deal with the demand after Christmas. They had also
invested in a 4 person team to address the need for specialised debt advisors.
The council had already agreed that officers working on financial resilience could
refer directly into the team while waiting for them to start. It is hoped further
discussions would take place with Tim Bridger on 16 December. Providing it is
possible to sort this out it was advised that our officers would be able to identify
cases that require debt advice now and after Christmas, and either signpost or
refer them to the team. Monthly update meetings with Tim will be taking place so if
not in place before Christmas this should be in place before we reach March.

The Chair suggested we hold more frequent meetings to be able to achieve the Panel’s
purpose and terms of reference sooner and advised this would be discussed with the
Strategic Lead for Housing, Health and Environment after the meeting. In response
Councillor Millar suggested, with the agreement of the Chair and officers, to hold informal
meetings and Councillor de Saram suggested Panel members submit questions about
the draft documents in advance of the meeting to ensure answers were ready and
meetings were quicker.
21

Date of the next meeting
The next meeting will take place via zoom on 18 January at 11am with a presentation
from Lee Tozer from the Department of Work and Pensions.
Members noted the request from the Chair to email her any questions for Lee Tozer
before the Christmas break.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
M Armstrong (Chair)
M Allen
M Chapman
B De Saram
S Hawkins
P Jarvis
F King
P Millar
M Rixson
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
page 68

Poverty Working Panel 7 December 2020

P Arnott
J Bailey
P Faithfull
P Hayward
N Hookway
M Howe
D Ledger
A Moulding
E Rylance
E Wragg
Officers in attendance:
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Andrew Wood, Service Lead - Growth Development and Prosperity
Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer
Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services Officer
Councillor apologies:
J Whibley

Chair

Date:

page 69

Agenda Item 15
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Council held at Online via the Zoom App on 9
December 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.54 pm

105

Public speaking
The Chair welcomed members of the public and Councillors to the meeting and
explained that all participants were taking part remotely and the meeting was also being
viewed online and recorded.
The Chair then started the meeting by doing a roll call of those present, and confirmed
that the meeting was quorate.
During the meeting the public would be able to participate if they had pre-registered to
speak. One member of the public had pre-registered.
Lisa Beigan introduced herself as a resident of Honiton, involved in Honiton Forward. A
petition signed by 1400 local people had been presented to EDDC to request the Council
undertake a Community Governance Review to rectify the situation at Honiton Town
Council. She referred to the lack of transparency, flouting of principles and disregard of
public views by the Town Council and to papers submitted with the petition indicating
numerous complaints and disputes involving the Town Council. It was no longer
considered that it had a mandate from the public and were not promoting civic pride or
values, so EDDC had a duty to respond.
She stated that Honiton Forward was not a political campaign and supported the work of
many local groups to make life better locally and they seek to work alongside the Town
Council. They have opposed the current position of certain individuals but this was not on
a party political basis. They had wanted to restore the Town Council through a proper
election process and residents asked existing Town Councillors to stand down for a few
months to enable this to happen and to participate in an election to facilitate a fresh start.
Most had stood down, but some had not, but what was needed locally is a fresh start
which was the rationale behind raising a petition.
In response, the Chair thanked Lisa for attending the meeting and confirmed that EDDC
would be in contact about next steps following receipt and assessment of the petition.

106

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the two previous meetings of the Council held on 21st October and 24th
November were confirmed and agreed as a true record.

107

Declarations of interest
114. Motion: Poverty Strategy and Actions.
Councillor Mike Allen, Personal, Member of Honiton Community Church and involved in
the Food Bank.
114. Motion: Poverty Strategy and Actions.

page 70

Council 9 December 2020

Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, On Executive Board of a community group which
seeks to alleviate food poverty in Axminster.
114. Motion: Poverty Strategy and Actions.
Councillor Paul Jarvis, Personal, Works for a Charity on the High Street in Budleigh
Salterton.
114. Motion: Poverty Strategy and Actions.
Councillor Paul Millar, Personal, Involved in work for the Co-op Group in Exmouth which
seeks to alleviate food poverty, and volunteers for Exmouth Friends in Need which is a
charity set up to relieve poverty.
114. Motion: Poverty Strategy and Actions.
Councillor Steve Gazzard, Personal, Member of Exmouth town Council.
114. Motion: Poverty Strategy and Actions.
Councillor Vicky Johns, Personal, Director of Ottery Community Volunteers and Ottery
Community Larder.
108

Matters of urgency - Infrastructure Funding Statement 2019-2020
The Chair outlined that under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010,
there is a legal requirement for East Devon District Council (EDDC) as a planning
authority to prepare an Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement which must be
published and submitted to the Government by 31 December 2020. She had agreed to
this as an urgent item so that EDDC could submit a Statement to the Ministry of Housing,
Communities & Local Government in order to meet the deadline.
As Portfolio Holder for Strategic Planning, Cllr Ledger explained that this was a new
requirement on the Council to provide information about income and expenditure relating
to the CIL and an infrastructure list. The report will be going to the Strategic Planning
Committee to note, and to agree the delegation of responsibility for this to the Committee
in future years.
Due to the fact that some Cllrs had been unable to access the background link in the
report prior to the meeting, the Chair invited members to vote to proceed on this as a
legal requirement and to be able to meet the deadline, but giving delegated powers to
the Chief Executive to proceed. Cllr Ledger confirmed that he was happy with this
approach.
RESOLVED that Council:
1. Noted the contents of the report and the requirement to provide an “Annual
Infrastructure Funding Statement” by 31st December.
2. Gives delegated authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Group
Leaders to approve the 2019/20 ‘Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement’ based on
the information detailed in this report and submit this to the Ministry of Housing
Communities and Local Government by the 31st December 2020.
3. That the future consideration and approval for publication and submission of the
“Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement” be delegated the Strategic Planning
page 71

Council 9 December 2020

Committee and the committee’s Terms of Reference within the Constitution be
updated to reflect the delegation.
109

Announcements from the Chair and Leader
There were no announcements.

110

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were none.

111

To answer questions asked by Members of the Council pursuant to
Procedure Rules No. 9.2 and 9.5
Twenty one questions had been submitted in accordance with Procedure Rule 9.2. The
questions and answers had been circulated with the agenda and published on the
website. Councillors submitting questions are entitled to put a related supplementary
question (Procedure Rule 9.5). A summary of the supplementary questions asked and
the responses is set out below.
Q 2: Cllr Millar asked if a letter could be sent to the relevant Minister in relation to
legislation which would limit the maximum noise levels of fireworks, because this was still
a live issue for residents.
In response the Portfolio Holder for Coast, Country & Environment, Cllr Jung confirmed
that he would send a letter.
Q7: Cllr Millar asked whether he could receive an assurance that his emails and the data
contained within them which may relate to residents have not been accessed by any
third parties as a result of the recent password data breach.
In response, the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services advised that a report is currently
being produced on this matter and would be made available to members in due course.
Q11: Cllr Faithfull asked the Leader whether he thinks that the operation of the Member
Advisory Panels (MAPs) fits in with the principles of openness and transparency.
In response, the Leader advised that this had been an issue which concerned him when
he was elected and when he later became Leader, he had ensured that MAPs would
from then on be clerked properly by an officer of EDDC, the minutes would be agreed by
the Chair of Planning from when they would then remain on file so that if applications
were received, the issues involved would be in the public domain, thus introducing
transparency.
Q12: Cllr Parr queried whether the assumption by the Portfolio Holder of an anticipated
revenue loss of £2.3m should be included in the Medium Term Financial Plan which runs
from 2021 to 2031, and how he will manage to achieve a balanced budget in future.
In response the Portfolio Holder for Economy & Assets stated that the question posed
related to a hypothesis he had put forward at a meeting of the Asset Management Forum
and was impossible to answer. He had not stated that any revenue would be lost, and
since cars had not yet been abolished by the Government, EDDC still owned car parks
page 72

Council 9 December 2020

from which they would receive income and it was a case of monitoring the situation if the
Government changed its current policy.
Q13: Cllr Twiss asked a supplementary question relating to whether there were plans to
house all of the street homeless across East Devon over the winter and what capital
projects are underway which Next Steps funding may have assisted with.
In response the Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Homes and Communities advised that
EDDC did not apply for Next Steps funding because there were not enough Street
Homeless to warrant applying for it, and because the funding was for capital projects.
There is work underway to house people across the district in existing accommodation,
for example, in Exmouth.
Q14: Cllr Moulding asked how the Portfolio Holder could ensure that every meeting was
open and transparent to those attending and that information is available to all.
In response, the Portfolio Holder for Democracy and Transparency said that if members
became aware that documents were not available in future that they should contact her
and she would investigate the matter.
Q15: Cllr Moulding asked a supplementary question in relation to how decisions would
be made about electric charging points if it was not known what would happen in relation
to a future reduction in cars.
In response, the Portfolio Holder for Climate Action said that they could not predict the
future but needed to provide for facilities for residents and visitors under the prevailing
conditions. The Portfolio Holder for Economy and Assets reiterated that that this was
another question based merely on a hypothesis put forward at another meeting.
Q16: Cllr Moulding asked why there were no projections for a future 5 year land supply
and how the Portfolio Holder would secure the 800 additional homes required for
Axminster.
In response, the Portfolio Holder for Economy and Assets stated that a report would be
presented to Cabinet in February 2021 which would indicate the Council’s plans on this
matter, but since the economic situation currently changes so frequently, it is impossible
to provide much detail until the Prime Minister makes the situation clearer.
Q18: Cllr Moulding asked specifically about a timetable for the delivery of a supermarket
in Cranbrook which is a fast growing town.
In response the Leader referred to the Strategic Planning Committee which would be
meeting on 15th December when this issue would be discussed. There were two models
for how this could be delivered and positive discussions had been held with the Ward
Cllrs for Cranbrook.
Q19: Cllr Hartnell queried whether it was acceptable for EDDC to have no plan to
kickstart the local economy post COVID, and to wait until February 2021 to develop one.
In response, the Portfolio Holder for Economy and Assets refuted the comment by
stating that EDDC did have its priorities, a team of dedicated staff bringing forward
economic projects, and grant funding. A Statement of Intent had been published ahead
of a new Council Plan but external circumstances kept changing. In the context of a
rapidly deteriorating economic situation, the Council is working with local businesses and
page 73

Council 9 December 2020

communities, a wide variety of partners and the Local Economic Partnership, but there is
a crisis occurring.
Q21: Cllr Allen asked the Leader if he considered that maximum speed should be
applied to support people in poverty.
In response, the Leader stated that he was disappointed by the tone of the debate at the
meeting so far, when all members should be aware of efforts made to date on poverty
through the Financial Hardship Fund, Community Support Hub, support to Food Banks,
the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Track and Trace Payments Scheme which had
made the Council very busy over recent months. Since the level of crisis relating to
COVID seems likely to continue until the spring, exacerbated by leaving Europe, there
are likely to be food shortages and the Council needs to act collaboratively to tackle
poverty as a matter of urgency.
112

Reports from the Cabinet and the Council's Committees and
questions on those reports
The Chair requested that the minutes of the following committees be received and any
recommendations to Council be approved.
(a)

Mnutes of Cabinet held on 28 October 2020, Minute numbers 227 - 243
Cllr Arnott presented the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 28th
October 2020. Following a vote by those present in favour of the
recommendations contained therein these were agreed.

(b)

Minutes of Cabinet held on 25 November 2020. Minute numbers 249 266
Cllr Arnott presented the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 25th
November 2020. Following a vote by those present in favour of the
recommendations contained therein these were agreed.

(c)

Minutes of Scrutiny Committee held on 5 November 2020. Minute
numbers 87 - 94
Cllr Brown presented the minutes of the Scrutiny Committee meeting held
on 5th November 2020. Following a vote by those present these were
agreed.

(d)

Minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee held on 20 October
2020. Minute numbers 62 - 76
Cllr Ledger presented the minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee
meeting held on 20th October 2020. Following a vote by those present in
favour of the recommendation contained therein these were agreed.

(e)

Minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee held on 22 October
2020. Minute numbers 77 - 81
Cllr Ledger presented the minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee
meeting held on 22nd October 2020. Following a vote by those present
these were agreed.

(f)

Minutes of the Planning Committee held on 7 October 2020. Minute
numbers 153 - 164
Cllr Wragg presented the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held
page 74

Council 9 December 2020

on 7th October 2020. Following a vote by those present these were agreed.

113

(g)

Minutes of the Planning Committee held on 4 November 2020. Minute
numbers 165 - 175
Cllr Wragg presented the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held
on 4th November 2020. Following a vote by those present these were
agreed.

(h)

Minutes of the Audit & Governance Committee held on 26 November
2020. Minute numbers 51 - 61
Cllr Hawkins presented the minutes of the Audit & Governance Committee
meeting held on 26th November 2020. Following a query in relation to the
accuracy these were returned to Audit & Governance to review.

(i)

Minutes of the Licensing & Enforcement Committee held on 18
November 2020. Minute numbers 51 - 59
Cllr Whibley presented the minutes of the Licensing & Enforcement
Committee meeting held on 18th November 2020. Following a vote by
those present in favour of the recommendations contained therein these
were agreed.

(j)

Minutes of the Licensing & Enforcement Sub-Committee held on 14
October 2020. Minute numbers 27 - 31
Cllr Whibley presented the minutes of the Licensing & Enforcement SubCommittee meeting held on 14th October 2020. Following a vote by those
present these were agreed.

(k)

Minutes of the Standards Committee held on 13 October 2020. Minute
numbers 18 - 26
Cllr Gardner presented the minutes of the Standards Committee meeting
held on 13th October 2020. Following a vote by those present in favour of
the recommendations contained therein these were agreed.

Changes to Governance arrangements
The Chair invited the Monitoring Officer to address his report about the changes to the
political balance and committee allocations arising from Cllr Millar leaving the Democratic
Alliance Group, and drew members’ attention to the recommendations contained therein.
The Chair then invited members to vote on the recommendations. Following a vote there
was a clear majority to approve the recommendations.
RESOLVED that Council agreed;
1. The revised political balance and number of seats for the political groups as set out in
the table at paragraph 2;
2. The change in committee seats so that the Democratic Alliance Group lose and the
Independent Progressive Group gain a seat on the Audit & Governance Committee;
3. The revisions to the Committee appointments and the appointment of the Vice Chair of
Audit & Governance as detailed in paragraph 5;
page 75

Council 9 December 2020

4. To amend the Constitution to give delegated authority to the Monitoring Officer to
revise the makeup of the Panels, Forums and Joint Bodies when there are changes to
the Portfolios or Assistant Portfolio positions in year.

114

Motion: Poverty Strategy and Actions
The following motion was;
Proposed by Mike Allen
Seconded by Maddy Chapman
Supported by Helen Parr, Bruce de Saram, Stuart Hughes, Ben Ingham, Philip
Skinner and Andrew Moulding
The second wave of the Covid-19 epidemic is creating even worse economic
damage to East Devon which requires short-term actions as well as strategic
initiatives to be put in place immediately. There is concern about the process of
holding Poverty Working Panel meetings in private when it should be transparent
as well as the slow pace of results when the Council has already decided a
‘policy vision’ 12 months ago, namely:
• No one in East Devon is to be destitute without immediate help, and
• Nobody should be in involuntary poverty for more than two years
duration.
There are ‘key issues’ which still need addressing urgently such as;
• Work with partners to address gaps in our benefit system and recommend
solutions
• Use all available Government grants and policies to sustain incomes and
reduce housing costs.
• Strengthen families and communities with clear signposting to help for those at
risk of poverty including use of the Community Hub and EDDC Website to
maximise help for those in economic problems
• Set up town-by-town briefing sessions in January on ways to access current
support and develop financial resilience. Involve local town and Parish
Councillors
• Promote help to sectors with long-term economic growth potential to reduce
dependency on agriculture, tourism and catering industries
Poverty is a cross cutting issue, with several Council Services involved in our
interventions and many partners to coordinate with. Other Councils are
proceeding rapidly to develop ‘emergency actions’ which we should also
consider and be reported to Overview Committee without delay.
It is vital that young people have access to East Devon local opportunities in the
simplest way. With technology becoming more and more integrated into our daily lives.
We recognise that Team Devon has proposed measures to help younger workers. It is
considered that in East Devon this should also include those over 50 and we should
seek in all age groups to address stress and depression issues. EDDC should seek to
improve work placements and work trials for all ages of those seeking work. This
should be a ‘significant priority’.
page 76

Council 9 December 2020

The Poverty Working Panel has identified the following five ‘strategic objectives’ to
be included within the emerging Poverty Strategy which Council endorses:
1 Help people on low incomes to maximise their household income and
minimise their costs, building financial resilience and reducing indebtedness.
Lead Service – Finance.
2 Strengthen families and communities, including supporting groups of people
that are more likely to experience poverty. Work up approaches with
community and voluntary groups working to combat poverty. Lead Service –
Housing.
3 Promote an inclusive economy, using career counselling, raising skills and
improving access to a range of higher-paying employment opportunities for
people on low incomes. Lead Service – Growth, Development & Prosperity.
4 Address the high cost of housing, improving housing conditions, creating
affordable warmth and reducing homelessness. Lead Service – Housing.
5 Improving health outcomes for people on low incomes, including access to
good diet, health care and ill health prevention. Lead Service –
Environmental Health.
In the current circumstances, urgent action is required to deliver these strategic
objectives to enable those in need to be helped as soon as possible.
This approach reflects evidence on the nature of poverty in East Devon and
responds to changes in the current situation. Poverty is a cross cutting theme
with a number of Council Services involved in our interventions and we look for
good SMT coordination.
These strategies also build on the learning from the Council’s existing approach
to supporting individuals and communities. This learning includes:
1. The importance of balancing efforts to address the immediate effects of
poverty, with preventative work to address the root causes of poverty.
2. Being clear on which issues can be addressed by direct delivery by Council
services, which issues can be achieved through partnership working (where
more can be achieved through collaboration), and which issues require
influencing and lobbying activity (where powers lie with Government or other
agencies).
3. It confirms a need to build the capacity and resilience of residents and
communities which is why the Forum should be open to the public.
This Council therefore agrees that;
(1) The ‘policy vision’ is incorporated immediately in the Poverty Strategy
to help deliver the best response for our residents across East Devon;
(2) Future meetings of the Panel should be in public and past meeting
agendas and minutes made available;
page 77

Council 9 December 2020

(3) To achieve faster actions the ‘key issues’ should immediately be
addressed.
(4) The Poverty Working Panel should immediately review ‘emergency
actions’ by other Councils and provide a report to Overview Committee
including comment on the budgets available across local Partnerships;
(5) East Devon’s tactical response should include the ‘significant priority’
mentioned above.
(6) It endorses the ‘strategic objectives’ in the emerging Poverty Strategy
and asks for action proposals to address them to be presented to Cabinet
within 2 months.

The Chair invited the proposer, Cllr Allen, to speak to the motion.
Cllr Allen outlined the impact of COVID on health and the economy, and referred to
studies undertaken on its effects on different sections of the community and businesses.
The motion reflects the need to work together more creatively and quickly to address the
issues.
Cllr Chapman seconded the motion, and expressed her concern about the plight of
victims of domestic abuse at Christmas time and the new year which is usually a time
when more violence and abuse takes place.
During a debate on the motion, comments included the following;
 This is an opportunity as a Council to show residents that it can work quickly and
collaboratively
 The Poverty Working Panel (PWP) recognises the urgency of the situation for
people and has a strategy and timetable for implementation for addressing the
issues, which will include liaising with the Dept for Work & Pensions (DWP) and
Citizens Advice Bureau.
 Urgent action was needed for when furlough ended for people.
 Poverty transcends politics and speed is important, so reports and actions should
not be delayed by having to be processed by several committees. The work
should be progressed through Cabinet and be part of the evolving Council Plan.
Cllr Ledger proposed an amendment to the motion but stated that he had circulated it to
Cllr Allen prior to the meeting so that it did not become a political football or detract from
the work of the PWP.
The following amendment to the motion was proposed by Cllr Ledger and seconded by
Cllr Bailey;
“This Council endorses the work of the Poverty Working Panel in seeking to identify and
address poverty within the District. We are pleased to note that the 'policy vision' is being
included in the strategy, that meetings are now being held in public and past minutes and
agendas are also being made public.
Whilst acknowledging the work already being carried out by the Council across
numerous service areas and the work of the Poverty Working Panel, this Council is
page 78

Council 9 December 2020

concerned about the unprecedented challenges now being faced by many residents. In
recognition of the worsening poverty crisis, Council hereby refers the motion to the first
Cabinet meeting of 2021 to be held on 6th January for Cabinet to give it urgent
consideration and to decide whether a further report should be prepared to identify
practicable and affordable further actions with a view to:
- identifying any emergency actions for prioritisation;
- helping address gaps in the benefit system;
- applying for all available grants;
- strengthening families and communities with clear signposting;
- improving communication with towns and parishes around financial resilience;
- promoting long term economic growth potential;
- addressing issues affecting all age groups with regard to mental health and
employment.
- assessing how the Poverty Strategy and action plan can be expedited by the Poverty
Working Panel without compromising the evidenced based programme of work.”
Cllr Allen confirmed that he accepted the amendment as proposed by Cllr Ledger. On
this basis, Cllr Ledger and Cllr Bailey agreed that they wanted the amended motion to go
forward rather than be acknowledged as proposing a separate amendment to be voted
on. The amended motion was to become the substantive motion and Cllrs Ledger and
Bailey agreed that they should be shown as being in support of it.
The Chair invited Cllr Allen to sum up before moving to a vote on the amended motion.
Cllr Allen thanked the Chair and all Cllrs who agreed with the motion and emphasised
the need to take urgent action.
A vote on the amended motion was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED that;
This Council endorses the work of the Poverty Working Panel in seeking to identify and
address poverty within the District. We are pleased to note that the 'policy vision' is being
included in the strategy, that meetings are now being held in public and past minutes and
agendas are also being made public.
Whilst acknowledging the work already being carried out by the Council across
numerous service areas and the work of the Poverty Working Panel, this Council is
concerned about the unprecedented challenges now being faced by many residents. In
recognition of the worsening poverty crisis, Council hereby refers the motion to the first
Cabinet meeting of 2021 to be held on 6th January for Cabinet to give it urgent
consideration and to decide whether a further report should be prepared to identify
practicable and affordable further actions with a view to:
- identifying any emergency actions for prioritisation;
- helping address gaps in the benefit system;
- applying for all available grants;
- strengthening families and communities with clear signposting;
- improving communication with towns and parishes around financial resilience;
- promoting long term economic growth potential;
- addressing issues affecting all age groups with regard to mental health and
employment.
- assessing how the Poverty Strategy and action plan can be expedited by the Poverty
Working Panel without compromising the evidenced based programme of work.
page 79

Council 9 December 2020

The Chair declared the meeting closed at 7.54pm.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
M Armstrong
P Jarvis
S Jackson
S Chamberlain
P Arnott
K Blakey
K Bloxham
F King
F Caygill
A Colman
P Millar
T Woodward
N Hookway
C Wright
O Davey
J Whibley
L Jeffery
T McCollum
V Johns

D Ledger
J Rowland
J Loudoun
D Bickley
J Bailey
K McLauchlan
P Hayward
S Hawkins
A Moulding
D Key
C Gardner (Chair)
S Bond
M Allen
D Manley
C Brown
M Chapman
I Chubb
A Dent
D Barrow

P Faithfull
S Gazzard
M Hartnell
B Ingham
G Jung
H Parr
C Pepper
G Pook
G Pratt
M Rixson
E Rylance
B De Saram
P Skinner
B Taylor
I Thomas
P Twiss
E Wragg
T Wright
S Hughes

Officers in attendance:
Mark Williams, Chief Executive
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager
Sarah Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Councillor apologies:
I Hall

Chairman

Date:

page 80

Agenda Item 16
Recommendations for Cabinet that will resolve in an action being taken:
Scrutiny Committee held on 10 December 2020
Minute 103 Sustainable Homes and Communities Portfolio Holder report
RECOMMENDED:
That all councillors should receive training on how to ask constructive
questions to address the matter in hand so the meeting can move on at a
constructive and timely manner.

page 81

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Scrutiny Committee held on 10 December 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 9.15 pm

95

Public speaking
There were no members of the public wishing to speak.

96

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2020 were agreed as a true record.

97

Apologies

98

Declarations of interest
Minute 106. Car parking tariff review.
Councillor Andrew Colman, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 106. Car parking tariff review.
Councillor Eleanor Rylance, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor and a resident of
Broadclyst which has a car park and a member of the Car Park Task and Finish Forum.
Minute 106. Car parking tariff review.
Councillor Iain Chubb, Personal, Devon County Councillor.
Minute 106. Car parking tariff review.
Councillor Maddy Chapman, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor and a resident of
Exmouth.
Minute 106. Car parking tariff review.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 106. Car parking tariff review.
Councillor Tony McCollum, Personal, Employed by Honiton Town Council which has car
parks managed by EDDC and President of Honiton Chamber of Commerce.
Minute 106. Car parking tariff review.
Councillor Vicky Johns, Personal, Ottery St Mary Town Councillor and Ottery St Mary
has two EDDC car parks.

99

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

100

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no confidential/exempt items.
page 82

Scrutiny Committee 10 December 2020

101

Decisions made by Cabinet called in by Members for scrutiny in
accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules
There were no items called-in.

102

Draft Financial Strategy 2021-2031
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance, presented the draft Financial Strategy 2021 –
2031. The purpose was to provide background information and set the scene in advance
of the Overview Committee considering the more detailed budget for the next financial
year at its meeting in January.
The Draft Strategy outlined how the Council would structure and manage its finances
over the next ten years to deliver services in accordance with the objectives set out in the
Council Plan. The Strategy, which was updated annually, covered the general fund (all
services except housing which had its own financial plan) and capital.
The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) was explained, and the following points were
highlighted:
 Reduction in funding from central Government had severely impacted on all local
authorities
 Renegotiation of the refuse and recycling contract for 2022/23 would require
significant capital investment
 The ongoing commitment of £323k per annum for the carbon reduction
programme would need external funding if the Council was to meet its objectives
in full
 The Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on income generation in the
current financial year. Despite Government funding to reimburse the loss of
various income streams, the Council would need to find £1.2 - £1.3million of its
own funds to make up the deficit
 Timing of the Government’s proposed re-basing of business rates was uncertain
which made financial planning difficult. The likely loss of business rate income as
a result of re-basing had been taken into account in future years
 Income from the New Homes Bonus scheme had been reducing year on year and
would disappear completely from 2023/24. As yet there were no details from
Government as to a replacement for the New Homes Bonus
The MTFP showed a projected deficit for 2021/22 of £0.694m, which increased annually,
reaching £5.653m in 2030/31 as a cumulative deficit. In order to mitigate the uncertainty
surrounding the timing of the loss of the New Homes Bonus and the reduction in
business rates income, the Council had set aside £2 million into a MTFP risk reserve
which would enable the Council to support service delivery and then react when there
was greater clarity and certainty.
The MTFP also showed the projected capital expenditure and funding position. Capital
expenditure was considered on a scheme by scheme basis and, through a rigorous
assessment process, was balanced against the funding available.
During discussions the following points were noted:
 Concern that the increase in car park charges would take away money for the
community.
page 83

Scrutiny Committee 10 December 2020








Clarification sought about whether an analysis had been done on the savings. In
response Simon Davey confirmed that an analysis had been done on
Homesafeguard which showed there was a demand for additional services that
people want and are prepared to pay for. He also referred to item 12. He felt
confident, subject to Members approval, that the savings that could be made and
were achievable and that the demand was there to generate the level of income.
It was noted the positive lift in Business Rates was as a result in the efforts of
Libby Jarrett and her team.
Concern raised about the loss of business rates in towns with shops closing down.
In response Simon Davey confirmed the loss had been taken into account and
although still important it was not significant as there had been high rateable value
increases with the likes of the Enterprise Zone and large supermarkets.
Concern raised about the rise in car park charges if businesses were struggling
and a suggestion was made to defer the increase for a year. In response to the
suggestion to defer the increase in car park charges for a year he urged Members
to consider the loss of £300,000 which would need replacing.

RESOLVED:
That the contents of the report be noted.
103

Sustainable Homes and Communities Portfolio Holder report
Before starting her report Councillor Megan Armstrong, the Homes and Communities
Portfolio Holder provided a response to a question raised by Councillor Twiss at the
Poverty Working Panel meeting. In response to his question about whether the council
had applied for government funding towards homeless projects she advised the council
did have several capital projects and had purchased the Sailors Rest and a HMO in
Exmouth and had ongoing plans for further purchases using our own funds. The Council
has received government funding for revenue support as previously reported.
The Portfolio Holder outlined her responsibilities and Members acknowledged the role of
the Homes and Communities Portfolio Holder was a strategic role to look at shaping
policies and strategies. Members were reassured that the stock condition survey which
was overdue would start in the New Year to look at and assess all the councils housing
stock to find out what needs to be done to maintain fit for purpose homes for tenants
which would also include a climate change action plan.
A lengthy questions and answers session followed which was first opened to noncommittee members and included:




Councillor Millar sought clarification on the meaning of systems thinking and an
explanation about what had changed from the former portfolio holder. In response
it was advised systems thinking meant an effective and efficient way of working
using a methodology that looked to put customers first and create systems that
focused on value work, reducing waste and ensuring we deliver ‘what matters’ to
customers. In terms of her role as portfolio holder was looking at all the different
departments and getting to know the staff and said she did not want to compare
herself to the pervious portfolio holder.
In response to a question about the portfolio holder’s involvement with the review
of the Housing Company she advised she sat on the TaFF and was working
page 84

Scrutiny Committee 10 December 2020



through what direction the Housing Company should take and how the council
would best deliver on its affordable housing ambitions.
Councillor Skinner understood how hard the portfolio holder role was and
emphasised the importance to understand that different people need different
housing. He emphasised the need to develop schemes for the right people to live
in and how communities and families need to stay together to look after each
other and suggested that she worked with the Chair of the Strategic Planning
Committee to understand what each community needs.

Questions from Councillors de Saram, Moulding, Allen and Key could not be answered at
the meeting and would be provided at a later date.
The Leader of the Council applauded Councillor Armstrong for enduring the questions
and addressed the issue of the endless supplementary questions that demanded factual
information that Members could have asked Officer in advance of the meeting. He
advised that Scrutiny was not meant to trip up portfolio holders and ask members to
show more respect.
The following questions and comments were raised by committee members:
 The portfolio holders report was welcomed and was excellent.
 The welcome reference to solar panels and a £450,000 secured grant. Would like
to see more grants like this.
 Clarification sought on what she thought were the main issues and challenges
with the housing in East Devon. It was advised the lack of social housing was a
concern and that she did not agree with the right to buy scheme which takes away
social housing from people who cannot afford to live anywhere else.
 Concerns raised about the lack of accommodation available for victims of
domestic abuse which had seen an increase this year. In response John Golding,
the Strategic Lead for Housing, Health and Environment advised the council had
arrangements with other authorities to get victims of domestic abuse to a place of
safety and if required out the area. There was also a sanctuary scheme that
provided additional security to tenants’ homes where domestic violence had
occurred or feared.
 Clarification sought on what was being done to help vulnerable tenants who
struggled with technology and how were they being reached. In response John
Golding, the Strategic Lead for Housing, Health and Environment advised the
council had provided digital awareness classes for sheltered housing tenants and
Mobile Support Officers with the help of Home Safeguard and other teams had
contacted every tenant in East Devon and offered support and signposted to
community and voluntary groups if assistance was required.
 Disappointed that councillors from the previous administration did not know why
they had set up the Housing Company.
 In terms of domestic abuse a suggestion was made to explore empty homes or
second homes.
 The need to scrutinise councillors in meetings to gain a positive outcome.
 There are no council houses in Cranbrook. In response Cllr Armstrong agreed
there was a clear need for social housing in Cranbrook and whilst housing
associations had significant stock in Cranbrook she would look into this in the
New Year with Councillor Ledger, Chair of Strategic Planning Committee.
page 85

Scrutiny Committee 10 December 2020

The following motion was proposed by Councillor Ranger and seconded by Cllr Johns.
All councillor should receive training on how to ask constructive questions to address the
matter in hand so the meeting can move on at a constructive and timely manner.
The Chairman requested that a vote take place on the motion. The motion was put to
committee and with 11 votes in favour and no abstentions. The motion was carried.
RECOMMENDATION to Cabinet:
That all councillors should receive training on how to ask constructive questions to
address the matter in hand so the meeting can move on at a constructive and timely
manner.
104

Quarterly performance report
Members received the report of Joanne Avery, Management Information Officer which
provided performance information and progress against our performance indicators from
across the council services
This information would provide a clear view of progress against what we said we would
deliver in our Council Plan and Service Plans and deal with performance issues arising.
RESOLVED:
That the performance against delivery of our key performance indicators for the 2 nd
quarter of 2020/22 so that issues can be addressed in a timely way be accepted.

105

Expenditure on consultants and agency staff 2019/20
Members considered the report of Melissa Muir, Assistant Accountant which provided
details of capital and revenue spend on consultants and specialist advice and agency
staff for 2019/20. It was noted Audit and Governance Committee had received previous
reports.
This information would provide the expenditure on consultants and agency staff in the
delivery of council services.
The following points were discussed:
 Clarification sought on potential savings for the council by not employing outside
agency staff but by bringing functions in-house. It was advised agency staff were
used in Streetscene during peak times for grounds maintenance and cleansing
which was more efficient.
RESOLVED:
The details of expenditure on consultants and agency staff in 2019/20 be noted.

106

Car parking tariff review
Members received a report from Andrew Ennis, the Service Lead Environmental Health
and Car Parks which set out proposals to engage with the public on proposals to
introduce changes to car parking tariffs in some of our car parks. Members noted the
report followed consideration of some of the issues raised by Members of the Car Parks
Task and Finish Forum.
page 86

Scrutiny Committee 10 December 2020

Members were asked to consider recommendations for the better management of some
of our car parking assets and in turn to recommend that the Council should now
authorise Officers to carry out the required statutory advertisements and consultation of
these proposals.
During discussions the following points were noted:
 Concern about raising car parking charges just after Covid-19. In some areas
driving is the only option. It is a bad idea to put charges up in April.
 Prefer to look at category 2 car parks rather than increase costs.
 Need to consider inappropriate parking in towns.
 Need to encourage local shopping.
 If car parking charges increase this will encourage vehicles parking in side roads.
 Suggest to postpone for a year.
 Town centres are struggling.
 Campervan charges in other areas are higher than East Devon.
 Need a shoppers’ car park without residents parking.
 Bad timing – need to put off until next year.
RESOLVED:
1. To request Officers to prepare a revised policy for campervans and motorhomes
for further consideration by the TAFF.
2. To repurpose the Car Parks’ Task and Finish Forum to report back to Scrutiny
Committee in the Spring of 2021:
a) To consider in more detail the options for supporting the Council’s Climate
Emergency Action Plan,
b) To develop a range of options for the future management of the Council’s
category 2 car parks,
c) To consider any other measures including the possibility of introducing
evening charges in certain car parks.
RECOMMENDATION to Council
1. That TAFF Members propose the introduction of a new tariff of £1.20 per hour in
East Devon District Council’s category 1 (prime location) car parks effective from
1 April 2021
2. That TAFF Members also propose the introduction of a revised pricing structure
for car parking permits with a £120 per annum for a single town (and an additional
£24 per each town added) up to a maximum annual permit charge of £240 to
cover all towns. To provide a ‘pay monthly’ scheme for all regular customers
starting with a single town permit for just £10 per month.
107

Forward plan
3 Scrutiny Forward Plan proposals forms were received.
Members considered a proposal form received from Councillor David Key on the ban on
Chinese lanterns and loud fireworks.
During discussions the following points were noted:
page 87

Scrutiny Committee 10 December 2020



Officer comments advised this matter was passed to the Overview Committee.

RESOLVED:
That the proposal on the ban on Chinese lanterns and loud fireworks should not be
scoped.
Members considered a proposal form received from Councillor Bruce de Saram on
ensuring that our green spaces were safe, welcoming and well managed and to protect
our biodiversity
During discussions the following points were noted:
 Should we wait to see what Streetscene have to say as clearly it is an error. It is
clearly a mistake at operational level. It is not a pattern of mistakes.
 Comes down to selection of staff and staff training.
RESOLVED:
That the proposal to ensure that our green spaces were safe and welcoming and well
managed and to protect our biodiversity should not be scoped.
Members considered a proposal form received from Councillor Vicky Johns to consider
S106s due to the lengthy time it takes to get these done. Councillor Johns praised the
S106 Officers for doing a fantastic job but said East Devon was a large area with only
two S106 Officers.
During discussions the following points were noted:
 Officer comments noted there was a SWAP audit in progress to review S106/CIL
and suggested the Committee await the outcome of the SWAP audit before
progressing this matter.
RESOLVED:
That the proposal be put on the forward plan and scoped in February 2021.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
C Brown (Chair)
V Ranger (Vice-Chairman)
E Rylance
M Chapman
I Chubb
A Colman
V Johns
O Davey
S Hawkins
F King
T McCollum
H Parr
B Taylor
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
page 88

Scrutiny Committee 10 December 2020

M Allen
M Armstrong
P Arnott
J Bailey
S Chamberlain
B De Saram
P Faithfull
M Howe
D Key
D Ledger
K McLauchlan
P Millar
A Moulding
M Rixson
P Skinner
J Whibley
E Wragg
Officers in attendance:
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer
Amanda Coombes, Democratic Services Officer
Andrew Ennis, Service Lead Environmental Health and Car Parks
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Councillor apologies:
C Wright

Chairman

Date:

page 89

Agenda Item 17
Recommendations for Cabinet that will resolve in an action being taken:
Housing Company Task and Finish Forum on 14 December 2020
Minute 14 Options and lines of enquiry to deliver more affordable/social housing
RECOMMENDED:
1.
that the Housing Company TaFF be renamed and repurposed to another more
suitable name to fulfil the vision of moving the TaFF forward, to focus on social
housing need, delivery mechanisms and financing mechanisms.
2.
that a working party of members be established to work with officers,
approaching and learning from other authorities who have grown their Housing
Revenue Account stock in recent years, before reporting back to the Housing
Company TaFF. This would then inform the TAFF as to recommended
resources, focussing on relevant mechanisms and finance required to proceed.
3.
that the Housing Company should remain dormant.

page 90

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Housing Company Task and Finish Forum held
Online via the Zoom app on 14 December 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 11.00 am and ended at 12.50 pm

9

Public speaking
There were no members of the public wishing to speak.

10

Minutes of the previous meeting
The minutes of the meeting of the Housing Company Task and Finish Forum held on 8
October 2020 were confirmed as a true record.

11

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

12

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency raised at the meeting.

13

Confidential/exempt items
There were no confidential or exempt items.

14

Options and lines of enquiry to deliver more affordable/social
housing
The Service Lead – Place, Asset and Commercialisation presented a joint report writing
with the acting Housing Service Lead, which enabled discussion on options to be
explored to determine how it was possible for the Council to deliver its objective of
increasing the supply of affordable/social housing. The report also aimed to provide
some direction in terms of the Housing Company itself and whether or not it was still
required. The company was originally set up for the specific purpose of providing market
housing at market rents (not social/affordable housing), however the business plan could
be altered if desired. It was noted that an advantage of using a Housing Company to
provide additional social housing was that these properties would not be subject to the
Right to Buy scheme (the Council currently lost approximately 30 homes/annum under
Right to Buy). The Housing Company was not a registered provider, but the Council
was.
The Strategic Lead – Housing, Health and Environment warned the TaFF that the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) did not have limitless resources. He explained that the
investment and funding had competing priorities and that any new build and acquisitions
would need to be reconciled with decarbonisation, tenants’ safety and improvement
programmes to existing stock. There was some borrowing capacity, but this was not
limitless as borrowing had to be repaid. The HRA currently funded around 30 new
page 91

Housing Company Task and Finish Forum 14 December 2020

homes per year. The HRA Business Plan was being reviewed as new stock condition
information was produced.
There were a number of opportunities for increasing HRA stock numbers that could be
explored further and these were set out in a table in the Service Lead – Place, Asset and
Commercialisation and Housing Service Lead’s report. Members were also encouraged
to add to these opportunities/mechanisms. No one single delivery mechanism was likely
to be suitable but there were opportunities to proactively develop a range of delivery
mechanisms set out in a development strategy involving a combination of development,
redevelopment and acquisitions funded through active asset management generating
receipts through strategic disposals, Right to Buy receipts and borrowing, enabling
investment in providing new homes.
Some of the challenges for increasing HRA stock numbers were:
 EDDC did not currently have the skill set, capacity or knowledge to deliver its own
social housing development programme (this was why the Housing Company had
not been successful so far).
 The Council would be competing with other registered providers (Government
funding and policy tended to favour registered providers to provide social housing,
rather than local authorities).
 Competing funding needs within the HRA.
 The risk appetite that EDDC wished to take.
The Service Leads’ report suggested that the way to better understand what was
possible was to speak to other authorities who were already increasing their social
housing portfolio. There would be benefits in a small working group of members and
officers having discussions with these local authorities. To facilitate more focussed
discussions with other authorities it was thought that it would be better to focus on a
manageable range of mechanisms (3 or 4), rather than all options possible.
It was noted that Bristol City Council had been successful in increasing its
social/affordable housing provision through partnership working and the TaFF agreed to
learn from its experience. Members were cautioned that direct comparisons could not be
made as Bristol City owned a large amount of land, compared to EDDC.
The TaFF agreed that an aspiration was for the Council to deliver more social housing. It
needed to ensure that the right houses were being provided in the right places, at the
right price. The point was made that people should be enabled to live where they
wanted to live and allowed to remain within their communities. It was important not to
dismantle people’s social support networks by forcing them to move to accommodation
outside of their village/town. Community led development was important and policies for
this were being included in the draft strategic planning service plan. Rural exception
sites should be considered and community land trusts encouraged.
It was suggested that the Council could partner with small/medium (SME) businesses to
design, build and deliver on small sites, which would also stimulate the local economy.
Members believed EDDC had a number of plots in its ownership where additional
housing could be provided and it was suggested that the TaFF look at available areas for
development. The Strategic Lead – Housing, Health and Environment cautioned
members about too much infilling of areas in order to preserve the existing environment.
He also warned that planning permission had been difficult to achieve for some sites
previously.
page 92

Housing Company Task and Finish Forum 14 December 2020

To move the work of the TaFF forward members were requested to consider the scale of
the aspiration first, before determining the mechanisms and funding/financing of delivery.
The Forum also discussed in detail whether the current Housing Company should be
dissolved, remain dormant, or explored further for provision of market rent to provide an
income stream to the general fund. The Housing Company was originally set up for a
different purpose to what was now being considered. There was concern that the
Housing Company was a distraction for the TaFF, which should now be looking at
housing delivery across the district. It was important for the Forum to understand what
was and wasn’t possible and the Council’s ability to deliver. For this reason it was
agreed that the scope of the TaFF should be amended to focus on social housing
strategy and delivery, rather than on the Housing Company. It was suggested that the
TaFF be renamed, to the Strategic Delivery of Social Housing TaFF, to express its focus
on strategic delivery of social housing.
RECOMMENDED: to Cabinet
1. that the Housing Company TaFF be renamed and repurposed to another more
suitable name to fulfil the vision of moving the TaFF forward, to focus on social
housing need, delivery mechanisms and financing mechanisms.
2. that a working party of members be established to work with officers, approaching
and learning from other authorities who have grown their Housing Revenue
Account stock in recent years, before reporting back to the Housing Company
TaFF. This would then inform the TAFF as to recommended resources, focussing
on relevant mechanisms and finance required to proceed.
3. that the Housing Company should remain dormant.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
O Davey
I Hall
D Ledger (Chair)
A Moulding
H Parr
E Rylance
I Thomas
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
P Arnott
P Faithfull
G Jung
T McCollum
P Millar
Officers in attendance:
Tim Child, Service Lead - Place, Assets & Commercialisation
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Jo Garfoot, Acting Housing Service Lead
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Susan Howl, Democratic Services Manager
Alethea Thompson, Democratic Services Officer
Councillor apologies:
page 93

Housing Company Task and Finish Forum 14 December 2020

M Armstrong
K Blakey

Chairman

Date:

page 94

Agenda Item 18
Recommendations for Cabinet that will resolve in an action being taken:
Strategic Planning Committee on 15 December 2020
Minute 94 Cranbrook Town Centre
RECOMMENDED:
That Members delegate to the Portfolio Holder for Strategic Planning, the Leader
and Deputy Leader and the Strategic Lead for Planning to negotiate further with the
Consortium regarding the Memorandum of Understanding. The result to come to
either Cabinet on 6 January 2020 or a Cabinet held within 14 days of that date and
also that the Supplementary Planning Document is noted and kept in reserve
pending the result of the Memorandum of Understanding negotiations.
Minute 95 Local Development Scheme
RECOMMENDED:
That Cabinet approve the proposed new Local Development Scheme.
Minute 97 Local Plan Issues and Options Report Consultation Strategy and
Review of Statement of Community Involvement
RECOMMENDED:
That Cabinet approve the proposed new Statement of Community Involvement.
Minute 100 Garden Communities and Delivery Vehicles
RECOMMENDED:
That a budget of £300k over a 3 year period is established for this work to be funded
through the business rate retention reserve to approved.

page 95

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of Strategic Planning Committee held at Online via
the zoom app on 15 December 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 6.10 pm

89

Public speaking
Councillor Matt Osborn representing Cranbrook Town Council and the residents of
Cranbrook spoke about the continued delays and loss of faith of a promised town centre.
He advised the committee that residents want the delivery of a town centre now and
thanked the Planning Officers, Ward Members and Committee Members for their hard
work in the negotiations that had gone into producing the current proposal which delivers
what Cranbrook needs. He urged Committee Members to listen to the people of
Cranbrook and look at how to start to deliver for Cranbrook.
Lythan Nevard, Minister for Cranbrook welcomed the changes that had been made since
the last Strategic Planning Committee. She welcomed the provision of apartments on top
of retail units in the town centre and saw this as a means of providing smaller and more
affordable housing in the town. She also welcomed the additional space for community
facilities which was so desperately needs. She stressed there was so much potential for
Cranbrook but this was held back because of the lack of space for people to meet and
urged members to consider the extra space in the town centre which the town needs.
She stated this may not be the dream of what a town centre might look like but would
rather have a living breathing town centre that worked for a community rather than
something that was award winning.
Mr Paul Smith, a resident of Cranbrook, had submitted a statement read out on his
behalf by the Democratic Services Officer, which stated:
I commend the extensive work undertaken by council officers in preparation of the New
Local Plan preparation advisory report and draught ‘Issues & Options Consultation
document – Jan 2021, prepared against a backdrop of changing Government Housing
policy, and the introduction of Environmental and Agricultural Legislation which will have
far reaching implications for the use of agricultural land, and permitted levels of air and
noise pollution.
However I have concerns with regard to ‘information’ included in both report and
Consultation documents.
Report para 7.8 suggests that at the present trajectory of house building within EDDC
there will be a shortfall of 6415 dwellings by 2031. The existing Local Plan indicates an
objectively assessed housing need figure of 17100 during the lifetime of the Plan. A
review of the latest House Monitoring report, March 2020 indicates that between 20132020 houses in excess of 6000+ were built, and between 2020 -2031 houses totalling
18415 are projected to be built. This does not include an increasing number of windfall
sites coming forward. A 5 year land supply was confirmed throughout the period. I
question a shortfall?
Report Para 7.8 also refers to proposals initially set out in the Government white paper,
’Planning for the Future’ which translates to a new requirement for annual house building
page 96

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

of 1614 homes per annum, also detailed within Chapter 5 of the Consultative
document- Housing Needs. This information is factually incorrect, as it is clear that the
Housing Minister under pressure from Conservative MP’s has acknowledge that the
algorithm used in these calculations is unfit for purpose, and an alternative substitution
will be considered.
I would contend that this incorrect information should not be included in the consultative
document.
The Chapters 4 & 8 Consultative document appears to give very limited
acknowledgement to the two major pieces of legislation passing through parliament ie,
the Environment and Agricultural Acts both of which will have enormous implications for
the use of agricultural land and protection of environment and habitat. The requirement
to devote an increased 4% of such land to afforestation involving the annual planting of
30th hectares of land will impact upon availability for house building purpose, and again
raises the important issue of protection of greenfield sites, including EDDC ’green
wedges’. I hope that Councillors will make time to revisit the importance of ‘Green
Wedge land’ within future policy. I note that 90% of house builds during 2019/20 were on
Greenfield sites!
Whilst acknowledging that the creation of a new Local Plan will involve an inordinate
amount of work and commitment by both Council officers and Councillors alike, the
headers and tone of Report Para 9.1- 6 raise concerns that the Consultative process will
not be as transparent and accessible to either Councillors or Communities as it should
be. My concerns, and that of other Cranbrook residents whose homes overlook the
Parsons Lane Green Wedge are reinforced through bitter experience resultant from a
failure of transparency/disclosure by senior council officers, during the Cranbrook Plan
Consultation process.
‘Cutting out Tasks to make Plan production quicker: Non production of draught
Plan for consultation: Less debate on site allocations.’
Recommendations:
I would commend Councillors to consider support for progression as set out within Para
10 of the Report.
1) I would have reservations as to the extent of authorisation granted ‘to make any
minor changes to finalise the consultation document and facilitate the
requirements of consultation software’.
East Devon New Community Partners
Nick Freer spoke on behalf of the East Devon New Community Partners and introduced
a 3 minute video that Members watched that outlined a 3D image of the proposed town
centre.
He updated Members on what could be delivered that included:
 The option to accommodate a leisure centre at the rear of parcel TC2;
 A double sided retail frontage along the length of Till House Road which would be
the heart of the town centre with food stalls, retail units, town council offices,
health and wellbeing centre, smaller scale offices and workshops and nursery;
Members were urged to accept the agreement of the MOU to enable the delivery of the
first stage of the town centre which could be in place in little over 18 months. Mr Freer
highlighted to Members that the MOU also included the amendment that would allow the
page 97

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

council to purchase three additional parcels of land in the town centre at market housing
value.
Finally, Mr Freer expressed the Consortiums concerns about the Supplementary
Planning Document and said it should not replace the MOU process. He urged
Members to accept the amended proposals highlighting the risk of losing the momentum
built up in the last year.
90

Minutes of the previous meetings held on 20 October and 22
October 2020
The minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee meeting held on 20 October and 22
October 2020 were confirmed as a true record.

91

Declarations of interest
Minute 94. Councillors Allen, Arnott, Blakey, Chamberlain, Dave, Hayward, Hookway,
Howe, Ledger, McLauchlan, Moulding, Rylance, Skinner and Thomas advised they had
been lobbied in respect of this item.
Minute 94. Cranbrook Town Centre.
Councillor Dan Ledger, Personal, Member of the Cranbrook Strategic Delivery Board.
Minute 94. Cranbrook Town Centre.
Councillor Kevin Blakey, Personal, Cranbrook Town Councillor and Members of the
Cranbrook Strategic Delivery Board.
Minute 94. Cranbrook Town Centre.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Family member lives in Cranbrook
Minute 94. Cranbrook Town Centre.
Councillor Sarah Chamberlain, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor and a resident of
Broadclyst Station.
Minute 96. Proposed consultation on a Local Plan Issues and Options Report.
Councillor Dan Ledger, Personal, Seaton Town Councillor.
Minute 96. Proposed consultation on a Local Plan Issues and Options Report.
Councillor Eleanor Rylance, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 96. Proposed consultation on a Local Plan Issues and Options Report.
Councillor Mike Howe, Personal, Bishops Clyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 96. Proposed consultation on a Local Plan Issues and Options Report.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 96. Proposed consultation on a Local Plan Issues and Options Report.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Employee of All Saints, Chardstock and Newton
Poppleford and Harpford Parish Councils.
Minute 96. Proposed consultation on a Local Plan Issues and Options Report.
Councillor Sarah Chamberlain, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor and resident of
Broadclyst Station.
page 98

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

Minute 97. Local Plan Issues and Options Report Consultation Strategy and Review of
Statement of Community Involvement.
Councillor Dan Ledger, Personal, Seaton Town Councillor.
Minute 97. Local Plan Issues and Options Report Consultation Strategy and Review of
Statement of Community Involvement.
Councillor Eleanor Rylance, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 97. Local Plan Issues and Options Report Consultation Strategy and Review of
Statement of Community Involvement.
Councillor Mike Howe, Personal, Bishops Clyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 97. Local Plan Issues and Options Report Consultation Strategy and Review of
Statement of Community Involvement.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 97. Local Plan Issues and Options Report Consultation Strategy and Review of
Statement of Community Involvement.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Employee of All Saints, Chardstock and Newton
Poppleford and Harpford Parish Councils.
Minute 97. Local Plan Issues and Options Report Consultation Strategy and Review of
Statement of Community Involvement.
Councillor Sarah Chamberlain, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor and resident of
Broadclyst Station.
Minute 98. Local Plan Site Identification Process and HELAA.
Councillor Dan Ledger, Personal, Seaton Town Councillor.
Minute 98. Local Plan Site Identification Process and HELAA.
Councillor Eleanor Rylance, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 98. Local Plan Site Identification Process and HELAA.
Councillor Mike Howe, Personal, Bishops Clyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 98. Local Plan Site Identification Process and HELAA.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 98. Local Plan Site Identification Process and HELAA.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Employee of All Saints, Chardstock and Newton
Poppleford and Harpford Parish Councils.
Minute 98. Local Plan Site Identification Process and HELAA.
Councillor Sarah Chamberlain, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor and resident of
Broadclyst Station.
Minute 99. East Devon Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report.
Councillor Dan Ledger, Personal, Seaton Town Councillor.
Minute 99. East Devon Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report.
Councillor Eleanor Rylance, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 99. East Devon Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report.
page 99

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

Councillor Mike Howe, Personal, Bishops Clyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 99. East Devon Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report.
Councillor Olly Davey, Personal, Exmouth Town Councillor.
Minute 99. East Devon Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Employee of All Saints, Chardstock and Newton
Poppleford and Harpford Parish Councils.
Minute 99. East Devon Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report.
Councillor Sarah Chamberlain, Personal, Broadclyst Parish Councillor.
Minute 102. Infrastructure Funding Statement 2019/20.
Councillor Paul Hayward, Personal, Employee of All Saints, Chardstock and Newton
Poppleford and Harpford Parish Councils.
92

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency.

93

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were no items that officers recommended should be dealt with requiring exclusion
of the public and press.

94

Cranbrook Town Centre
The Committee considered and discussed the report presented by the Service Lead –
Planning Strategy and Development Management that updated Members on the
progress with negotiations with the developers on the alternative proposals for a
Supplementary Planning Document that detailed the council’s vision of the town centre.
The following key amendments detailed below would provide sufficient land and flexibility
to deliver a town centre for Cranbrook that would be fit for purpose for now and in the
future:
 The availability of parcel TC1 within the north west corner of the town centre to
accommodate the extra care facility in lieu of parcel TC4C resulting in an
additional 0.64 hectares of land coming to the council;
 The option to purchase parcels TC3, TC4D, TC4E at market residential land
values. The Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management
advised the Consortium would want the values for this land agreed before the
signing of the MOU;
The Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management asked Members
to be cautious of the amendments in the MOU and advised that the amendments would
rely on a proactive delivery in some form of the town centre and the need to purchase
land at a substantially higher value than it would be worth for the intended community,
leisure and business used. He also made Members aware that the Consortium had not
delivered an all-weather pitch or the required sports pitch land that had been required in
the original S106 agreement. The Consortium had advised that this was because it had
been already provided an all-weather pitch at the education campus and that the
Consortium had overlaid the cricket square on the football pitches to save land.
page 100

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

Members noted the cost of delivering an all-weather pitch would cost in the region of
£900,000 according to Sport England.
It was highlighted to Members that the S106 infrastructure contributions stated in the
report did not reflect the increased offer made by the consortium towards the town
council facility, however there remained a significant shortfall in infrastructure funding as
part of the MOU and while this could be addressed by reprioritising funding from the
expansion areas this would not cover some lower priority infrastructure.
Members noted concerns had been raised by Morrisons Supermarket about other food
retailers and that the Consortium were seeking to restrict food retail sales on EDDC
controlled land through the MOU to premises with a gross internal floor area of less than
1,000 sq. ft. This would be for a time limit of 10 years from the date the land is
transferred to Morrisons and 5 years from when the supermarket opens and would not
include restaurants, cafes, coffee shops, bakeries etc. It was noted there were only 3
units at Younghayes Place opposite St Martin’s School under 1,000 sq. ft.
The Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management referred to the
Supplementary Planning Document that Members had agreed previously and advised
significant progress had been made in producing a draft document that represents the
best alternative way of progressing the town centre. Members noted that the document
could be ready for consultation in February 2021.
The Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management advised if
Members were minded to accept the Consortium’s offer there would be merit to conclude
the work on the Supplementary Planning Document as a guide to town centre
developments that can inform future decision making on planning applications and to
engage with the community.
Finally the Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management updated
Members on further comments received from the Cranbrook Strategic Delivery Board
offering their support for the revised offer from the Consortium and read out a verbatim
statement from officers at Devon County Council that was made without prejudice and
obviously subject to political agreement.
‘Unfortunately we have not had the opportunity to discuss the revised offer with East
Devon New Community Partners and there remain some issues to be bottomed out in
terms of financial contributions and triggers. However, we welcome the revised offer, in
particular, the early provision of the land and financial contributions towards the
construction of a county council facilities building and relocation of the extra care
housing. In the event that your Strategic Planning Committee agrees in principle of the
revised MOU the county council will work pragmatically with all parties to ensure a
satisfactory outcome.’
The Chair welcomed comments from non-committee members which included comments
from the Ward Members:



Cranbrook ward member Councillor Kim Bloxham urged Members to accept the
Consortium’s proposal to allow the town centre to progress without further delay
as this is what the community wants and needs;
Cranbrook ward member Councillor Sam Hawkins welcomed the negotiations to
develop the town centre and urged Members to accept the offer that was realistic
and deliverable.
page 101

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

Other key points made by members outside of the committee included:
 Much improved MOU;
 Concerns raised about Morrisons demanding no competition and limiting retail
floorspace to 1,000 sq.ft. It was advised the restriction was gross floor area
aimed at direct food sales rather than cafes, restaurants and takeaways.
Members noted that Morrisons would not negogiate on this.
 Noted support from the majority of residents, town Council, district ward members
and ward members on Devon County Council.
The Chairman then heard extensive debate from the Committee Members, including
Cranbrook Ward Member Councillor Kevin Blakey, with highlights detailed below.















Reference was made to the second bullet point of the council’s obligations on
page 30 of the agenda and clarification was sought on why should the council
have to pay in excess of the land value for the sites. In response Mr Nick
Duckworth advised when the land had been acquired approximately 5 years ago it
was on the basis that we would have a greater scale of retail uses and associated
values. The burden of the value that applied to it at that time still sits on the land
and it is anticipated that there would be residential development in the town
centre. Mr Duckworth stressed the Consortium was keen to move forward to
deliver retail at the heart of the town and said we have worked very hard in the
last 3 months to work towards a vision for the town centre but that it can only be
done in a commercial manner and urged Members to accept.
Clarification sought on the provision of an all-weather pitch. In response Mr
Duckworth said it hurt to hear that they had not delivered what was expected and
made reference to the education campus that had been delivered early. He
advised he could not see why an all-weather pitch could not be delivered in the
expansion areas in due course.
Question raised about whether the restraint in trade clause is legally enforceable.
It was advised it was enforceable and although the MOU was not a contract
documents flowing from it could bind and restrain certain types of use of the land.
The vast majority of residents want to see delivery sooner rather than later
Comment made why the Consortium cannot give the council the land on an open
book basis at its value when they have already made savings of £1.5m.
Matters of detail still need to be sorted out including the restraint over the
additional retail units and food use.
Concerns raised about continuing the SPD in parallel with the MOU as it did not
show commitment and a suggestion was made to park the SPD and to use the
planning resources the planning department currently have on other things.
Reference was made to the 10 emails received from residents in favour of
proceeding with the developers offer;
Welcome the revised town centre proposal and welcome the extra care provision;
The objective is to deliver a town centre that the residents of Cranbrook want that
is supported by representatives of the town council and county council
Clarification sought on the difference between the commercial value of the sector
of land and its value for residential use. It was advised residential value could be
in the region of three to four times higher than commercial value.
Clarification sought on the viability assessment. In response Mr Duckworth
confirmed a viability sketch had been submitted and advised as the site has been
developed we have been measuring the profits and losses against the cost plan
across the whole of the Cranbrook development.
page 102

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020







Concerns raised about the proposal to put a cricket square in the middle of a
football pitch. You cannot play cricket in the middle of a football pitch. It was
clarified that this had been agreed some time ago.
Reference was made to the infrastructure table on page 30 and how much the
council was losing in terms of infrastructure.
Concerns raised about the size of the town centre. In response the Service Lead
advised there was potential expansion across the road and into the set- back for
the town council offices but stressed the MOU did not fix the size of the square
and that this was a matter for further pre-application discussions and a
subsequent application.
Would like to see bigger outdoor meeting spaces. The market square is not
usable.

It was proposed by Councillor Thomas, seconded by Councillor Moulding (and
subsequently by Councillor Skinner when Councillor Moulding left the meeting) that
Members:
1. Support the updated offer from the East Devon New Community Partners.
2. Agree in principle to the Memorandum of Understanding as proposed by the East
Devon New Community Partners and delegate authority to the Chief Executive,
Leader and Portfolio Holder for Strategic Planning to sign the final MOU on behalf
of the Council.
3. The propose Supplementary Planning Document is indefinitely paused but the
work already carried out is used as a guide to development in the Town Centre.
The above motion failed on a recorded vote as follows:
Councillor Allen
Councillor Arnott
Councillor Blakey
Councillor Chamberlain
Councillor Davey
Councillor Hayward
Councillor Hookway
Councillor Howe
Councillor Ingham
Councillor Ledger
Councillor McLauchlan
Councillor Moulding
Councillor Rylance
Councillor Skinner
Councillor Thomas

For
Against
For
Against
Against
Against
Against
For
For
Abstain
Against
Had left the meeting
Against
For
For

The following motion was proposed by Councillor Arnott and seconded by Councillor
Hayward.
RESOLVED:
That Members delegate to the Portfolio Holder for Strategic Planning, the Leader and
Deputy Leader and the Strategic Lead for Planning to negotiate further with the
Consortium regarding the Memorandum of Understanding. The result to come to either
Cabinet on 6 January 2021 or a Cabinet held within 14 days of that date and also that
the Supplementary Planning Document is noted and kept in reserve pending the result of
the Memorandum of Understanding negotiations.
page 103

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

95

Local Development Scheme
The Committee considered the Local Development Scheme report presented by the
Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management noting that the
previous Local Development Scheme dates from 2018.
The Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management advised the report
sets out a programme and timetable for the production of future planning policy
documents and referred to key content that provided detail on plan production.
RESOLVED:
That Strategic Planning Committee recommend to Full Council that following consultation
with Cabinet, approve the proposed new Local Development Scheme, as appended to
this report and that it takes effect immediately following approval.
RECOMMENDATION to Cabinet
That Members approve the proposed new Local Development Scheme.
RECOMMENDATION to Council
That Members approve the proposed new Local Development Scheme following
consultation with Cabinet and that is takes effect immediately following approval.

96

Proposed consultation on a Local Plan Issues and Options Report
The Committee considered and discussed the report that sought approval to commence
an 8 week consultation to start on 18 January 2021 and conclude at midday on 15 March
2021 on a new local plan issues and options report. The report provided Members with
detail on the proposed work streams for the next 2 years with some background
materials and considerations to ensure on-line questions were suited to software
requirements.
Members noted that the feedback received from the consultation would be used to
structure and form the new local plan which would be submitted for examination in early
spring 2023.
The Service Lead - Planning Strategy and Development Management updated Members
on the numbers of comments received from a Cranbrook resident including questioning
the shortfall in housing numbers and advised taking into account the new plan period
which extended beyond the current plan of 2031 the housing numbers would be
extended to approximately 2040 which would lead to an increase. He advised he was
mindful to note the White Paper in the document as the figures may change in the future.
In the absence of Councillor Allen who left the meeting the Chair read out an email from
him sent prior to the meeting that read:
‘I am writing to you direct because I would recommend a pause to think about how we
are going to do the local plan review. We can take the LGA guidance and review the
local plan without take the LGA guidance and review the local plan without undertaking 3
or 4 years of costs and running the risk of 2 or 3 years with no updated plan which
developers will undoubtedly exploit. The LGA is being very clear on what is needed for
review as opposed to a wholesale new plan. The Service Lead’s belt and braces
approach reflects not necessarily the legal requirement. As far as I can see we can
page 104

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

conduct the view via the issues and options process but then focus on what needs to be
changed by the end of 2021. We need to be very careful of our 5 year land supply
issues but avoid our wholesale land grab by developers.’
In response the Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management raised
concerns that Councillor Allen may be referring to the review process and the Planning
Advisory Service Framework that was discussed at the last meeting which had already
been done











Concerns raised about losing the councils 5 year land supply;
Need to include something about villages. In response it was suggested to
broaden out this section in terms of town centres to encompass vibrant villages;
Clarification sought on heritage assets. In response it was advised the question
related to how important heritage assets was to people in terms of conserving and
enhancing;
The need to include our communities, parish and town councils and partners to
get this right. This is the perfect vehicle.
Weight should be given to walking and cycling and not assume car ownership as
a basis of living;
Need to install home charging wires in new builds;
Need to aim for passive house standards;
The council has a legal duty to preserve and enhance heritage assets;
Need to consider uPVC like for like sash windows on listed buildings to make
them energy efficient;
The need to facilitate cycle links and paths in small communities as well as large
communities. Town centres also need to accommodate cycles in a safe and
secure way to encourage families to cycle into town.

RESOLVED:
1. That consultation on the draft local plan issues and options report, as appended to
this paper, starts in January 2021 and runs for an eight week period be approved;
2. That delegated authority be granted to the Service Lead – Planning Strategy and
Development Management in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Strategic
Planning, to make any minor changes to finalise the consultation document and
facilitate the requirements of consultation software as well as to make any
changes agreed at committee be approved.

97

Local Plan Issues and Options Report Consultation Strategy and
Review of Statement of Community Involvement
The Committee considered the report presented by the Service Lead – Planning Strategy
and Development Management advising Members about the consultatation strategy for
the first stage of the forthcoming issues and options report. He updated Members on the
revised Statement of Community Involvement which set out the overall engagement
framework for planning matters to meet the Council’s legal obligations to ensure that it
remains appropriate in light of the restrictions imposed by Covid-19.
Discussion covered:
 The need to engage with the public to help understand how the public want to be
engaged. How can the council reach the people who do not usually respond so
that their views can help make decision? The need to consider the modern way of
page 105

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

working and a suggestion was made to work with Strata on the East Devon App.
In response the Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management
advised he was working with Strata on the consultation software which should be
in place by mid January 2021.
RESOLVED:
1. That the consultation strategy for the forthcoming issues and option report as
detailed in his report be considered and approved;
2. That the Statement of Community Involvement should be updated but that the
amendments are minor and do not require public consultation be approved;
RECOMMENDATION to Cabinet
That Members approve the proposed new Statement of Community Involvement.

RECOMMEND to Council:
That following consultation with Cabinet, approval of the proposed new Statement of
Community Involvement, as appended to this report, and that it takes effect immediately
following approval be agreed.
98

Local Plan Site Identification Process and HELAA
The report before Members summarised the legislative requirement about how the work
had been done in the past and how it was intended to carry out the work now. Members
noted the Sidford employment site was used as an example to illustrate how that process
had worked in the past and how such sites like this would come through the HELAA
process alongside the housing sites in the future.
Comments and discussions from committee members covered:
 Clarification sought about how to make sustainability work better for most of our
countryside small villages. The need to consider small scale growth to allow
families to stay close to each other. The Service Lead Planning Strategy and
Development Management agreed it was a big issue for the local plan in terms of
how the council supports rural communities and in the past had left communities
to pursue growth through their neighbourhood plan.
 Reference was made to a village in East Devon that was told it was unsustainable
even though it had a shop, a school, a train line and a main road running through
it;
 Need to be mindful a village is not just a collection of houses, it is a community;
 A rethink is needed on our Villages Policy. If a village wants to develop it should
be allowed to develop;
 Chair welcomed the Service Lead – Planning Strategy Development Management
comments about the draft Service Plan and the implementation of community led
development into the Service Plan next year. In response he advised it was going
to be a challenge through the local plan to get the balance between enabling
communities to bring forward development without imposing on those who do not
want it.
RESOLVED:
1. That the summary of the approach to site identification, consideration and
allocation, undertaken on the adopted Local Plan be noted and the approach
outlined in the report for undertaking this work in production of the new Local Plan
be endorsed;
page 106

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

2. That work be undertaken to assess the smaller sites submitted into the Greater
Exeter Strategic Plan call for sites in 2017 be approved;
3. The timetable and process for future work on the Housing and Employment Land
Availability Assessment be approved.
99

East Devon Local Plan - Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report
Members considered the report that updated Members on the legal requirement for the
Local Plan which was to be supported by a Sustainability Appraisal to seek and assess
the environmental, social and economic impacts that could arise in doing this work.
Members noted that appended to the report was a draft scoping report that sought
support for a six week consultation starting in January 2021.
RESOLVED:
That Strategic Planning Committee approve the Sustainability Appraisal scoping report
for consultation to run for six weeks starting in January 2021.

100

Garden Communities and Delivery Vehicles
The Service Lead – Growth, Development and Prosperity presented a follow up report to
one that had previously come before Members in October 2019. This concerned the
importance of having an assertive delivery vehicle to support the implementation of the
Local Plan and to be developed alongside the Local Plan Review. He outlined the key
objectives of an oversight authority for a development corporation which were to achieve
a high quality development and to ensure that effective stewardship and legacy
arrangements were in place from the outset.
Members noted the requirement for a £300k budget over a 3 year period to develop a
business case work and that the council had not yet received the outcome of the MHCLG
Development Corporation competition which if successful would overtake the need for
the Council to fund the work.
RESOLVED:
1. The importance of having effective delivery vehicles/mechanisms in place at the
earliest stage possible in order to support the development of high quality placed
be acknowledged;
2. The findings of the Local Partnerships study and accompanying future routemap
be agreed;
3. The Expression of Interest that has been submitted to the MHCLG New
Development Corporation Competition be noted;
4. Progressing key technical work, including the development of a business case,
necessary to support the establishment of a locally led development corporation
alongside the development of the new Local Plan be endorsed;
5. Further reports to Strategic Planning Committee at key stages as the work
progresses be received.
RECOMMENDED to Cabinet
That a budget of £300k over a 3 year period is established for this work to be funded
through the business rate retention reserve to approved.

101

Approval of Modification to Area of Special Control of
Advertisements
page 107

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

The Service Lead, Planning Strategy and Development Management updated Members
on the approval by the Secretary of State on the amendments to the areas covered by
the Area of Special Control of Advertisements and noted the modifications had been
agreed by the Secretary of State and advertised in the London Gazette.
RESOLVED:
That modifications to the Area of Special Control of Advertisements that came into effect
on 30 November 2020 be noted.
102

Infrastructure Funding Statement 2019/20
The Infrastructure Funding Statement 2019/20 report presented by the Service Lead –
Planning Strategy and Development Management summarised the contents of the East
Devon District Infrastructure Funding Statement and highlighted to Members some of the
key elements of the Final IFS.
RESOLVED:
1. The contents of this report and the requirement to provide an ‘Annual
Infrastructure Funding Statement by 31 December be noted;
2. That Council approval had been sought for the publication and submission to the
Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government by the 31 December
2020 of the 2019/20 ‘Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement’ based on the
information detailed in this report be noted;
3. That Council had been asked to delegate to the Strategic Planning Committee the
power to consider and approve for publication and submission future ‘Annual
Infrastructure Funding Statements’ on behalf of the council and that the
committee’s Terms of Reference within the Constitution be updated to reflect the
delegated be noted.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
P Arnott
M Allen
K Blakey
S Chamberlain
O Davey (Vice-Chair)
P Hayward
N Hookway
M Howe
B Ingham
D Ledger (Chair)
K McLauchlan
A Moulding
E Rylance
P Skinner
I Thomas
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
M Armstrong
D Bickley
page 108

Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020

S Bond
B De Saram
A Dent
P Faithfull
G Jung
H Parr
M Rixson
S Hawkins
E Wragg
Officers in attendance:
Ed Freeman, Service Lead Planning Strategy and Development Management
Shirley Shaw, Planning Barrister
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (and Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Mark Williams, Chief Executive
Andrew Wood, Service Lead - Growth Development and Prosperity
Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Thea Billeter, Cranbrook New Community Manager
Matthew Dickins, Planning Policy Manager

Chairman

Date:

page 109

Agenda Item 19
Recommendations for Cabinet that will resolve in an action being taken:
LED Monitoring Forum on 16 December 2020
Minute 8 External advice - EDDC Leisure Strategy and auditing of LED monthly claims
RECOMMENDED:
That Members pursue a new Leisure Strategy.

page 110

EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting of LED Monitoring Forum held on 16 December 2020
Attendance list at end of document
The meeting started at 11.02 am and ended at 1.08 pm

1

Election of Chair
One nomination was received from Councillor Arnott and seconded by Cllr Jung.
RESOLVED:
that Councillor Hawkins be appointed Chair of the LED Monitoring Forum.

2

Public Speaking
There were no questions raised by members of the public.

3

Declaration of interest
Minute 6. Agree work priorities for forum.
Councillor Alan Dent, Personal, Paid up member of LED.
Minute 6. Agree work priorities for forum.
Councillor Geoff Jung, Personal, Family members are paid up member of LED.
Minute 6. Agree work priorities for forum.
Councillor Jess Bailey, Personal, Daughter is a pupil at Colyton Grammar School.
Minute 6. Agree work priorities for forum.
Councillor Paul Arnott, Personal, Paid up member of LED.
Minute 7. Review of LED portfolio future building maintenance and investment
requirements.
Councillor Jess Bailey, Personal, Daughter attends Colyton Grammar School.

4

Matters of urgency
There were no matters of urgency raised at the meeting.

5

Confidential/exempt item(s)
There were 2 items classified in this way and agreed to be considered in private session,
listed under items 11 and 12.

6

Agree work priorities for forum
The Chair welcomed suggestions from Members to the work priorities. He addressed
the current situation LED faced with Covid-19 and the support mechanism in place that
could possibly continue while the leisure industry took time to recover.
Update from Peter Gilpin, LED Chief Executive
page 111

LED Monitoring Forum 16 December 2020

Before Peter Gilpin gave an update he suggested to include energy conservation as an
ongoing item on the agenda to help reduce energy usage at the LED sites, particularly
swimming pools. He advised it had been previously agreed at Cabinet and Council to
look at Honiton swimming pool with the re-development of the changing rooms and
reception and welcomed the consideration of other swimming pools and other leisure
centres.
He advised Members it was difficult to update Members on the current situation as the
direct debits were being collected at the end of this week so it was unknown how many
memberships had been reactivated. Members noted at the end of October, before that
last lockdown the membership and income had recovered to approximately 70%, to
where it had been towards the end of 2019.
Concerns were raised about moving into tier 3 as this would have a significant impact.
Peter advised tier 2 permitted the running of group exercise classes, gyms and
swimming pools which was a significant part of their income. He advised December was
traditionally the worst month for gym memberships but hoped to see an influx in the New
Year. It was hoped by the end of January the income figure would be back up towards
the 70% figure with a forecast of 80% at some point in 2021.
Peter advised the support from the council and the furlough scheme had been a huge
welcome during lockdown. Quite a few staff were still on furlough with more staff being
put on furlough over the Christmas period which would reduce staffing costs to about
55% of expenditure. Members noted staffing costs was LEDs biggest spend with utilities
being the second at 20%.
He also advised during lockdown the heat had been switched off in all the swimming
pools and the pumps and chlorination had been run at a very minimal level to maintain
health and safety requirements.
Comments made by Non-Forum Members included:
 Welcomed energy conservation but suggested looking into how people travel to
and from the sites.
 Suggested looking at plastics and wider environmental issues. In response Peter
Gilpin welcomed the opportunity to review the use of plastics. He also suggested
revisiting the provision of core leisure activities and trying to target the hard to
reach groups.
 Need to look at what is provided in vending machine, replacing plastic bottles and
providing healthier snacks;
 Need to ask people what they want in their communities, are we providing it and
what can we do better;
 Make swimming pools changing rooms fit for purpose now and install gender
neutral changing rooms;
 It is important to get the message out to inform residents of the relationship
between the council and LED for full transparency and to be the best it can be;
 An important priority is to reduce health inequalities in the district. Offering
discounted membership for people who are on means tested benefits.
 Another important priority is the need to get to grips with the upcoming
government grant that LED and the council will be applying for to cover the lost
income;
 A suggestion to start a campaign in secondary schools and primary schools to
encourage young people
page 112

LED Monitoring Forum 16 December 2020

Comments made by Forum Members included:
 Councillor Arnott welcomed the new Chair and was delighted to see the Forum up
and running. He advised the agenda had clearly identified the priorities that would
assist LED to move forward financially through the pandemic;
 The agenda has done a good job of identifying the priorities to help LED move
forward financially and more urgently how is the government going to help;
The Chair thanked Members for their contributions and advised a priority list would be
prepared in advance of the next meeting and brought forward as an agenda item.
RESOLVED:
That the report be noted and a priority list brought back to the Forum.
7

Review of LED portfolio future building maintenance and
investment requirements
In response to comments made in the previous agenda item around energy efficiency,
before the Service Lead – Place, Assets and Commercialisation presented his report he
updated Members on his new draft Service Plan for next year that had 2 items related to
climate change and energy efficiency measures for LED properties addressing those
issues raised.
The report presented to Members on building maintenance and investment requirements
provided an overview of the future cost and investment projections alongside income
projections required to maintain the existing stock of leisure assets over the next 30
years captured through a stock condition survey for each of the 12 buildings.
The Service Lead – Place Assets and Commercialisation referred to paragraphs 2.2 and
2.5 and Members noted £26.6m was needed to be invested in the 12 buildings which
was reduced to just under £23m taking into account school contributions for the dual use
sites. Members also noted that whilst there was an average requirement of £740k per
annum to spend on the 12 buildings which consisted of revenue and capital spend, there
was a cost pressure in the first 7 years requiring investment in some years of £1m.
He advised the current leisure portfolio property related budgets were £410k revenue
and circa £1.5m for capital expenditure over a 5 year timescale (£300k per annum),
equating to spend of £720k per annum in recent years.
Members noted that a significant amount of costs would be saved by keeping
maintenance works on LED properties in-house rather than employing external
contractors.
The Chair sought clarification on whether the figures had been factored into the mid-term
financial plan. In response the Strategic Lead for Finance advised that £409k was
included in the mid-term financial plan. Members noted that total costs of investing in the
LED buildings would also include a large capital programme that would run on an annual
basis for a number of the properties.
The Chair welcomed comments from Forum Members and Non-Forum Members which
included:
 Clarification sought on whether these figures did not include major improvements.
In response the Service Lead – Place Assets and Commercialisation advised that
page 113

LED Monitoring Forum 16 December 2020





the costs were to replace components at end of useful life, reactive maintenance
and similar and not specifically to improve.
Clarification sought on whether there would be an opportunity for funding for these
improvements. In response the Strategic Lead for Finance advised the council
had in the past put in its own capital resources but also that through LED there
had been successful bids to Sports England for significant funding. Peter Gilpin
confirmed LED had been very successful in lottery bids managing to secure £2m
worth of investment and advised LED were investing quite a lot through a loan
from the council.
Suggestion made by Peter Gilpin as another agenda item was to look at reviewing
the dual use agreements at schools and raised concerns that some activities at
school sites have restricted access;

RESOLVED:
The review of the LED portfolio building maintenance and investment requirements be
noted.
8

External advice - EDDC Leisure Strategy and auditing of LED
monthly claims
EDDC Leisure Strategy
The Service Lead – Countryside and Leisure advised the Forum that there was a need
for a Leisure Strategy as the last one had been produced over 15 years ago when the
leisure service was run in-house. He stressed that despite the absence of a Leisure
Strategy a lot of work had already been done in terms of delivering the physical and
mental health wellbeing activities taken under the Public Health Plan.
The Service Lead – Countryside and Leisure requested the Forum to consider 2
important questions to help them decide how they would like to approach the strategy
and to think carefully about the direction of the strategy:
1. The scope of the leisure strategy, and
2. Whether the forum wants to look at the strategy at a higher strategic level or a fine
grained level which would go into a lot more detail.
Members noted that Peter Gilpin had contacts through Sport England’s accredited
consultees that can help the Leisure Strategy
Peter Gilpin stressed to Members the importance of a having a Leisure Strategy to help
with funding bids so that National Governing Bodies can identify local authority priorities.
The Chair concurred with Peter’s comments and highlighted a lot had happened in 15
years including a brand new town.
The Chairman welcomed comments and heard extensive debate from the Forum
Members and Non-Forum Members about whether the LED Monitoring Forum was the
right forum to develop the Leisure Strategy. In response the Strategic Lead for
Governance and Licensing advised it was Cabinet’s responsibility to authorise the advice
needed to deliver it and for this forum to scrutinise the LED function. In response the
Leader’s comment about the possibility of adding the Leisure Strategy to the Cabinet
agenda for 6 January 2021, the Strategic Lead for Governing and Licensing suggested
the minutes for this meeting to be added as a late item so there was a record that
Cabinet had endorsed the idea.
page 114

LED Monitoring Forum 16 December 2020

Other key points made by members included:
 Suggestion made to refer to the Overview Committee;
 It will be a mistake for the Forum not to show initiative as it has been 15 years
since the last Leisure Strategy;
 The public need to see a commissioned piece of external work to verify the
healthy relationship between this council and LED.
 The Forum’s focus needs to be on the strategy of LED and how that fits into the
overall strategy for leisure development as a council;
 Need to be clear on the role of the Forum;
Auditing of LED monthly claims
The Strategic Lead for Finance updated Members on 2 consultancy firms being
considered for the auditing of the subsidy claim. He advised the preferred option was the
Sport England, due to their expertise and their willingness to part fund up to £5,000.
Councillor Millar, a non-forum member welcomed the discussions with Sport England
and said it was value for money.
RESOLVED:
That the Strategic Lead for Finance progress with Sport England to engage consultancy
to help with the immediate checking of the LED additional subsidy claim be endorsed.
RECOMMENDED to Cabinet:
That Members pursue a new Leisure Strategy.
9

Government support fund update
The Strategic Lead for Finance updated Members on the Government’s scheme to
allocate £100m to interested authorities to help support leisure centres and advised
details had been published yesterday on how to apply.
Members noted the first process was to register to acknowledge interest in the scheme
which had been done and the council was now waiting for an applicant form and a
confirmed amount that the council can bid for.
The Strategic Lead for Finance was disappointed to advise the scheme was to cover
costs from 1 December to 31 March 2021 and would not cover costs already spent. He
advised discussions would be held with LED about how to pitch it best to help support
the cost that the council had already committed to LED.
Members noted the scheme would be live until 8 January 2021 and updates would be
provided.
The Chair welcomed comments from Members:
 Clarification sought on the figure that the council had committed to LED. It was
advised £732k had been committed and paid to LED.
 Clarification sought on whether there was an opportunity for private sports clubs to
claim for funds. It was advised it had to be a local authorities backed claim.
The Chair suggested that the Leisure Strategy be included in the Cabinet Forward Plan.
In response, the Leader advised it could be added to both Cabinet and Overview
Committee’s agenda to progress.
page 115

LED Monitoring Forum 16 December 2020

RESOLVED:
That the Government support fund update be noted.
10

Exclusion of press and public
That under Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 and in accordance with
the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012, the public (including the press) be excluded from the meeting
as exempt and private information (as set out against each Part B agenda item), is likely to
be disclosed and on balance the public interest is in discussing the items in private session
(Part B).

11

LED income update and forecast 2020 - 2021
The Forum received an update on LED’s income and forecast for 2020 – 2021.
RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

12

LED Service fee review 2021 - 2026
The Forum received an update on the LED Service Fee Review 2021 – 2026 and
discussed instructing officers to review further options.
RESOLVED:
That the report be noted and officers are instructed to review further options and report
back to the Forum.

Attendance List
Councillors present:
P Arnott
J Bailey
A Dent
S Hawkins (Chair)
P Hayward
V Johns
G Jung
Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
D Bickley
B De Saram
P Faithfull
D Ledger
K McLauchlan
P Millar
A Moulding
E Rylance
E Wragg
page 116

LED Monitoring Forum 16 December 2020

Officers in attendance:
Simon Davey, Strategic Lead Finance
Henry Gordon Lennox, Strategic Lead Governance and Licensing
Charles Plowden, Service Lead Countryside and Leisure
John Golding, Strategic Lead Housing, Health and Environment
Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer
Debbie Meakin, Democratic Services Officer
Tim Child, Service Lead - Place, Assets & Commercialisation
LED Leisure in attendance:
Peter Gilpin, Chief Executive
Bridgette Jones, Head of Finance & Support Services
Nigel Halford, Chairman
Apologies:
M Hartnell
G Pook
J Rowland
M Williams

Chairman

Date:

page 117

Agenda Item 20
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
2021/2022 Council Tax Base
Report summary:
This report sets out the tax base for 2021/2022 and includes the breakdown for each parish,
expressed in terms of Band D equivalent properties on which the council tax will be based. This is
an important component in the Council’s budget setting process for 2021/2022.

Recommendation:
1.To confirm the tax base for 2021/2022 at 60,084 Band D equivalent properties.
2.To confirm the amount for each parish as detailed under section 3 of this report.
Reason for recommendation:
The calculation of the tax base is prescribed in regulations and is a legal requirement. The council
tax base is defined as the number of Band D equivalent properties in a local authority’s area. The
tax base is necessary to calculate council tax for a given area.
Officer: Libby Jarrett, Service Lead – Revenues, Benefits, Customer Services & Corporate Fraud
ljarrett@eastdevon.gov.uk Direct Line: 01395 517450
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☐ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☒ Finance
☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
The adoption of the taxbase is crucial to the setting of the Council Tax for the district. The
calculations involved and projections made are prescribed and follow a set process.
Legal implications:
There is a statutory framework governing the Council Tax setting process and this has been had
regard to with the key requirements also identified within the report. There are no further
comments required.
Equalities impact Low Impact
page 118

Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk;
Links to background information
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☒ Outstanding Place and Environment
☒ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

Report in full
1.0

Background

1.1

The tax base for council tax must be set between 1 December 2020 and 31 January 2021.

1.2

The council tax base is the measure of the number of dwellings to which council tax is
chargeable in an area or part of an area. It is used for the purposes of calculating an
authority’s band D council tax.

1.3

Regulations prescribe that the relevant date to be used in estimating the tax base will be 30
November in the financial year preceding that for which the tax base is calculated.

1.4

The tax base calculation is determined annually by identifying the number of properties
listed in the valuation list and then adjusted for the following:


An estimate of the number of new properties to come on to the Valuation list for all or
part of the year and the estimated level of discounts, exemptions and reliefs that may
apply.



An estimate of the number of properties to be demolished and allowing for any
discounts and exemptions associated with them.



The number of discounts, exemptions, premiums and relief that already apply



Any changes to the level of discounts, premiums, etc.



The estimated reduction for the council tax reduction scheme



The estimated collection rate for the year.



The Contribution in lieu from the Ministry of Defence (MoD properties are treated as
exempt for council tax purposes and the MoD makes a contribution in lieu of council
tax after deducting an allowance for periods when properties are empty).

2.0

Council Tax Base Calculation for 2021/2022

2.1

The table at 2.7 shows the number of properties (by band) in the Valuation list as at 30
November 2020 and then adjusted to reflect discounts, exemptions, premiums and reliefs
that already apply, estimate of new builds, deletions, appeals, council tax reduction
scheme, collection rate and contribution from MoD.
page 119

2.2

The estimate for the council tax reduction scheme has been calculated based on the
scheme that was approved by Members at Full Council on 9 December 2020.

2.3

The adjustments for discounts, premiums have been based using the same percentage
levels that currently apply.

2.4

There are 593 (571 Band D equivalents) new properties that have been included to come
on for the equivalent of the whole of next year. This is after adjustments for discounts,
exemptions, number of days within the year, etc.

2.5

We have used a collection rate of 98.3% (previously 99.0%) to reflect the downturn in
council tax collection as a result of Covid-19. This will have had a negative effect on our tax
base we are setting for this coming year.

2.6

There are 152 Band D equivalent MoD properties which has been estimated taking into
account the current contribution.

2.7

Totals for East Devon 2021/2022

BAND
1. Properties in
list
2. Less
adjustments
3. Plus New
Builds
4. Adjusted
number of
properties
5. Less CTR
6.Total
equivalent
properties
7.Ratio to Band
D
8.Band D
equivalent

A*

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

Total

0

6,528

13,628

16,532

13,049

10,799

6,492

4,120

191

71,339

-13

1,299

1,855

1,770

1,259

854

439

287

38

7,788

0

59

92

197

112

95

29

8

1

593

13

5,288

11,865

14,959

11,902

10,040

6,082

3,841

154

64,144

3

1,306

2,148

1,505

516

209

55

17

0

5,759

10

3,982

9,717

13,454

11,386

9,831

6,027

3,824

154

58,385

5/9

6/9

7/9

8/9

9/9

11/9

13/9

15/9

18/9

N/A

6

2,655

7,558

11,959

11,386

12,016

8,706

6,373

308

60,967

9. Collection Rate @

98.3%

10. Contribution for MOD properties

59,932
152

11. Tax Base

60,084

Key
1 Properties in list - refers to the number of properties in each band shown in the Valuation list
as at 30 November 2020 (A* = band A with a disablement discount).
2 Less adjustments for exemptions, disablement relief, discounts, empty home premiums, etc
3 Newly built properties estimated to come onto Valuation list and adjusted for discounts, reliefs,
etc.
4 Adjusted number of properties.
5 Less Council Tax Reduction Scheme
6 Total equivalent number of properties after all adjustments.
7 Band ratios as prescribed by legislation
8 Band D equivalent gives the totals in line 5 expressed in terms of band D.
9 Adjustment for assumed collection rate for 2021/2022.
10 The contribution from the Ministry of Defence adjusted to the number of Band D equivalent
properties.
page 120

11 Tax Base for 2021/2022 in Band D equivalents
2.8 The tax base for 2021/2022 has decreased by 57 band D equivalent properties (60,141 for the
current year - 2020/21). Unfortunately we are experiencing for the first time a lower tax base
than the previous year. This is predominately due to a lower collection rate being forecasted
and higher expenditure costs for our council tax reduction scheme which is due to the impact
of Covid-19.
3.0 Parish/Town Tax Base for 2021/2022
3.1 The table below shows the tax base expressed as the number of Band D equivalent properties
for each of the parish/towns after adjustments. The calculation for each of the towns and
parishes is determined in the same way as set out in section 2 of this report.
All Saints

257 Dalwood

209 Plymtree

256

Awliscombe

237 Dunkeswell

591 Poltimore

135

506 Rewe

192

Axminster

2,781 E.Budleigh/Bicton

Axmouth

250 Exmouth

Aylesbeare

265 Farringdon

154 Seaton

Beer

665 Farway

132 Sheldon

Bishops Clyst

605 Feniton

675 Shute

Brampford Speke

149 Gittisham

346 Sidmouth

Branscombe

329 Hawkchurch

262 Southleigh

Broadclyst

2,187 Honiton

Broadhembury

313 Huxham

Buckerell

114 Kilmington

Budleigh Salterton

12,783 Rockbeare

3,865 Stockland
46 Stoke Canon

2,800 Luppitt

373
3,231
83
289
6,916
114
333
235

404 Talaton

244

215 Uplyme

867

Chardstock

419 Lympstone

911 Upottery

327

Clyst Honiton

112 Membury

275 Upton Pyne

221

Clyst Hydon

125 Monkton

74 West Hill

1,156

Clyst St George

395 Musbury

243 Whimple

718

Clyst St Lawrence
Colaton Raleigh
Colyton
Combe Raleigh

47 Netherexe
306 Newton Poppleford
1,448 Northleigh

25 Widworthy

137

950 Woodbury

1,409

82 Yarcombe

220

97 Offwell

189

Combpyne-Rousdon

191 Otterton

308

Cotleigh

108 Ottery St Mary

Cranbrook

1,974 Payhembury

2,887
322 Grand total

page 121

60,084

Agenda Item 21
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A

Draft Revenue and Capital Budgets 2021/22
Report summary:
This report presents the draft revenue and capital budgets for 2021/22 for adoption by the Cabinet
before consideration by a joint meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the Housing
Review Board.
Recommendations from these meetings will be presented back to Cabinet on 3rd February 2021
when members will finalise budget proposals to recommend to Council.

Recommendation:

That the draft revenue and capital estimates are adopted before forwarding to a joint
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Housing Review Board for
consideration.

Reason for recommendation:
There is a requirement to set a balanced budget and to levy a Council Tax for 2021/22
Officer: Simon Davey – Strategic Lead Finance sdavey@eastdevon.gov.uk
John Symes – Finance Manager jsymes@eastdevon.gov.uk
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☒ Climate Action
☒ Coast, Country and Environment
☒ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☒ Democracy and Transparency
☒ Economy and Assets
☒ Finance
page 122

☒ Policy Co-ordination and Regional Engagement
☒ Strategic Planning
☒ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
Financial details are contained within the report
Legal implications:
No legal implications arise which require comment.
Equalities impact Low Impact
An analysis of budget changes has not highlighted areas that give rise to any equality issues that
need highlighting.
Climate change High Impact
The budget approval gives the Council the resources necessary to undertake its business which
will significantly contribute to the carbon footprint of the Council. The Council is committed to
reducing its carbon net emissions to zero by 2040 and resources have been factored into the
budget to meet this priority.
Risk: Low Risk;
Risks have been considered in preparing the budgets and the financial implications have been
assessed at the point of preparation. Various budget assumptions have been made including the
treatment of inflation and interest rates; estimates on the level and timing of capital receipts; the
treatment of demand led pressures; the treatment of planned efficiency savings/productivity gains;
levels of income; financial risks inherent in any new arrangements; capital developments; the
availability of funds to deal with major contingencies and the need for any provisions. In each of
these areas the Council’s financial standing, management and track record have been considered
in order to prepare robust budget proposals. Other specific areas of risk have been highlighted
where appropriate within the report and within the budget book at service level.
Links to background information
2021/22 Draft Revenue and Capital Budget Book
Notes on Spending Review 2020
Financial Plan 2021 -2031 (item 217)
Additional spending items not presented previously (included in draft budget) – further information:
Seaton Wetlands Ranger
Recycling & Waste Team Leader Post
Streetscene Business Support
RNLI Extended funding
Link to Council Plan:
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

page 123

1.

Process

1.1

The Constitution requires Cabinet to approve the draft revenue and capital budget prior to
consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. The Housing Review Board will
undertake the same function in relation to the Housing Revenue Account budgets.

1.2

Recommendations from these two meetings will be reported back to Cabinet at its meeting
on 3rd February, along with any comments from the business community. At this meeting
members will be required to recommend to Council a budget and the Council Tax
requirement for 2021/22.

1.3

At the same time as preparing the draft budget, draft service plans have been prepared for
member consideration. Service plans and budgets are aligned and link back to the Council
Plan and reflect where possible the recently adopted Statement of Intent.

2.

General Fund Budget
The Overall Financial Picture

2.1

Council funding from Government has moved away from general support, namely the
Revenue Support Grant, for District Councils particularly income to support the cost of
services is met through Business Rate income, New Homes Bonus Grant (NHB), Council
Tax and the Councils’ own income raising activities. It is likely that NHB will be completely
phased out thereby increasing the need for the Council to utilise its own income activities.
The Government Spending Review (SR20) on the 25th November 2020 set out
departmental budgets for 2021/22, this included allocations to the Ministry of Housing,
Communities & Local Government (MHCLG). A briefing note prepared for members at the
time can be found here: Notes on Spending Review 2020

2.2

This is followed by individual authority allocations through the 2021/22 Local Government
Finance Settlement, which was announced on 17th December. As a result of the pandemic,
this is a one-year spending round put on hold planned reforms at least for another year.
Changes to both the local government funding formula and the business rate retention
scheme are now assumed to take place in 2022/23, but this has not been confirmed.

2.3

As projected in the Council’s Financial Plan this has delayed the significant financial deficit
resulting from those reforms. Details of the Council’s Financial Plan which contains the
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) can be found here Financial Plan 2021 -2031

2.4

Turning to the 2021/22 projected budget deficit of £0.7m identified in the MTFP this arises
from external factors; rising costs through the pay award, effect of inflation and additional
cost pressures through homelessness, an increase in the recycling and refuse staff costs
and a decrease in recyclable income, local plan costs and other increasing demands on our
services.

2.5

The preparatory work in developing savings and additional income to bridge the projected
deficit to produce a balanced budget for 2021/22 has been considered and agreed with the
Budget Setting and Capital Allocations Panel and endorsed by Cabinet. Details were also
considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. An update on these proposals are
covered in paragraph 2.10 of this report identifying those that have now been included in
the draft budget, on the assumption they are adopted, enabling the ability to present to
members proposals for a balanced budget in 2021/22.
page 124

2.6

The processes of completing the detailed draft budget for 2021/22, working from the base
up inevitability gives a different position to that calculated in the MTFP, which is prepared at
an earlier stage and at a much higher level. It is also prepared before key Government
announcements. The MTFP continues to prove to be a good estimate and guide in the
preparation of the Council’s annual budgets.

2.7

The draft budget proposed for members’ to consider is balanced (expenditure met by
available income), resources have been aligned to enable investment in desired
areas.
Draft Revenue Budget 2021/22

2.8

A summary position of the General Fund draft budget is given below. Further details are
contained in the Budget Book linked to this report showing the current budget, the draft
budget proposed for 2021/22 alongside variation between years and other points of detail to
inform members.
The Budget Book provides a summary of the services we operate, the assets, resources
involved in each area and portfolio graphs. For a better understanding of the draft budget
and the resources allocated members are recommend to study these pages along with the
service plan proposals.

page 125

General Fund Revenue Budgets 2021/22
2020/21

Portfolio Budget - Net Expenditure

2021/22

Variation

%age
Change

Notes

Corporate Business

136,690

152,640

15,950

12%

Corporate Services

1,591,502

1,728,601

137,099

9%

248,441

364,010

115,569

47%

1

Environment Portfolio

1,849,408

1,585,734

-263,674

-14%

2

Finance

1,704,679

1,599,050

-105,629

-6%

3

Strategic Development & P'Ship

2,184,236

2,297,590

113,354

5%

4

10,065,334

10,324,690

259,356

3%

5

617,150

767,940

150,790

24%

6

Portfolio Totals

18,397,440

18,820,255

422,815

2%

Reversal of Capital Charges (Depreciation)

-2,797,480

-3,057,560

-260,080

9%

Portfolio Totals Net of Capital Charges

15,599,960

15,762,695

162,735

1%

-856,780
300
481,870

-426,750
300
427,130

430,030
0
-54,740

Net Expenditure

15,225,350

15,763,375

538,025

Government Grants
New Homes Bonus contribution
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Savings Target

-1,500,000
-225,590
-70,000

-1,500,000
-225,590
-63,345

0
0
6,655

-122,000
-305,330
0
0

0
-134,230
0
0

122,000
171,100
0
0

Budget Requirement

13,002,430

13,840,210

837,780

Revenue Support Grant
Business Rate Baseline Funding
Business Rate Retention Inflation Uplift
Council Tax Support Grant paid to Parishes
Parish Support Reserve

0
-2,674,930
-1,500,000
0
0

0
-2,720,660
-2,000,000
0
0

0
-45,730
-500,000
0
0

8,827,500

9,119,550

292,050

Economy And Regenrtn Portfolio

Street Scene Portfolio
Sustainable Homes & Communitie

Interest Receipts (Net of investment management fees)
Interest Payable
PWLB Interest & Principal Repayments

Use of Reserves
Use of Collection fund surplus
Earmarked Reserves
Use of General Fund Balance for elections
Use of General Fund Balance

Council Tax Requirement

4%

6%

3%

High level notes on main variations – see budget book for detailed analysis.
1. Additional resources in Economic Development Team.
2. Assumed increase of £300k in car park income.
3. £30k reduction in payment to Cranbrook Town Council as per agreement, Communities
together funding was closed in an earlier year and budget no longer required for
outstanding payments – budget reduction of £70k.
4. Main variation being additional resources in Planning Policy
5. Increase in Recycling and Refuse budgets; £209k reduction in recyclables income and
£78k in additional contract payments previously approved.
6. Mainly additional Homelessness costs.
page 126

2.9

The budget has been prepared on the basis of continuing to provide existing services
without any reductions, considering the financial pressures this is a significant achievement.
Services need to continually work more efficiently in order to give them the capacity to meet
additional demands, any risk of non-delivery or cost overspend needs to be monitored
carefully through performance reports and budget monitoring.

2.10 The actions agreed in principle by members to make savings/increase income in preparing
the draft budget is given below. Items included in the draft budget are where there is high
level of certainty on deliverability, or they will be considered at the time of setting the
budget. Items have also been re-profiled to 2022/23 onwards, or considered not achievable
as indicated below.
Savings/Increased Income – Actions endorsed by members to
prepare a balanced budget.

2021/22
Draft
Budget
position
£000

“Fit for Purpose”
Details are uncertain so not prudent to include in the draft budget.
However the MTFP assumed a pay award increase across the board at
2%, it is likely the Local Government Pay Award will follow
announcements in the Spending Review which generates a saving of
£218k

218

Other areas
Street Scene potential to increase event income for existing assets

20

Property Investment (£300k commercial + £150k District Benefits)

Future year
consideration

£50k net income now in base budget. Investment fund to be reappraised
in light of market conditions, new borrowing restrictions and a change in
administration priorities.
StreetScene - Right Toilets in Right Place - £200k

Future year
consideration

Reports to be presented for member consideration

StreetScene - Revert maintenance on private bowling clubs - £60k

Future year
consideration

Report to be presented for member consideration
Car Park Income Initiatives - £425k

300

Car Park TAFF - recommendations assumed adopted
Further recommendations to be considered for future budgets.

page 127

Commercialisation of existing services

50

Home safeguard – assume £50k in 2021/22, but actions do need
progressing.
Handyperson Service – to be considered further £20k
Housing Company - £25k and future year income.

-

Market conditions have changed, the previous strategy had not worked
and new administration have clarified additional social housing is the key
priority which the Housing Company would not be the right delivery model.
Efficiencies and rewilding in Grounds Maintenance - employment of
agency during summer period ceased
Total

70
600

2.11 The draft budget includes key areas that aligns to the Council’s new Statement of Intent;
 £323k is included for a new allocation towards Carbon Reduction measures. A
monitoring report of actions against spend in the current year and the plan for
2021/22 needs to be presented to Cabinet. This includes a Service Lead position
which is currently vacant.
A report is contained on this agenda relating to a potential district heating
investment. This will come back as a formal investment proposal but importantly it is
aiming to meet three main objectives; return, carbon savings and social benefit in
terms of helping with fuel poverty.
 To further help with addressing Poverty, external funding has been obtained for a
new position of a Financial Resilience Officer to work within the Revenues and
Benefits Team. Also with the appointment of new Benefits Manager the post has
been re-designed to include a significant focus on anti-poverty measurers.
A number of services do provide existing support ranging from public health
initiatives to health and wellbeing activities. Specific funding includes the
continuation of £120k funding of money advice to assist residents of East Devon.
Members recently agreed the continuation of the improved Council Tax Support
scheme which is currently costing £8.5m (£595k to EDDC) as a reduction in council
tax income. A hardship fund (£180k) funded from Defra and the County Council has
been established to support those residents in urgent need; this assists in meeting
essential costs needed urgently, the fund works alongside the discretionary council
tax and rent support schemes with the same officer helping with residents through
the process. At the same time financial resilience work is undertaken to provide
more sustainable support to individuals and families of a lasting nature. Discussions
are in progress with Department of Work and Pensions over project funding to
support this work further and to determine what support can be given to the
Community and Voluntary Sector in the District.
The additional economic development resource will have a people focused role; a
key part being addressing redundancy situation and potential worklessness.

page 128

Services have also been administration a range of grants for business and
individuals during the pandemic. The Government has also announced in the
Settlement an allocation to implement a Council Tax Support Scheme along the lines
implemented in the current year; those on low income receiving a relief against their
Council Tax Bill.

Further initiatives are likely to come from the Poverty Panel and cost implications will
have to be considered as details are formed. Members may have to consider in year
supplementary estimates to support these outcomes.
 Additional Social Housing is being driven further as a key priority for the Housing
Revenue Account and additional support is being put in place through a part time
post (to be funded from the HRA) in the Property and Estates Team to help facilitate
this work.
 The Statement of Intent sets out an ambitious vision for the continuing investment
into the Council’s cultural programme. The ambition is to develop the District’s
significant potential of arts, entertainment, culture and natural environment in terms
of developing and regenerating the local economy and providing the focus for the
Council’s tourism work. The budget for this area for 2021/22 will need to be aligned
to ascertain how best to achieve this goal.
 Additional resources have been accommodated in the draft budget to address
specific issues, with external funding being sought where possible. These have
been approved in previous reports to members, or if new proposals and unfunded a
link is provided to this report for further information:


Two additional planning posts to support the Local Plan process – previous
report presented. £93k included in draft budget, part funded from planning
reserves in 2021/22.



Inclusion of a budget for an ecologist position or the purchase of expertise
when required. This is as a consequence of bio-diversity net gain
requirement introduced in planning legislation. £50k included in draft budget.



Two economic development officers (2 year fixed contract) to support
businesses and residents in the District – previous report presented. £86k
included in draft budget, funded from Business Rates Reserves.



Additional support for the democratic services – previous report presented.
£34k included in draft budget.



Dedicated Seaton Wetlands Ranger – details in linked papers £28k included
in draft budget.



Additional support in the administration of Section106/Community
Infrastructure Levy – recommendation coming from Internal Audit (SWAP)
report being presented to members. £30k included in draft budget funded
from related income.

page 129



Additional resources for pest control service and Environmental Health Team
in the district. £68k included in budget, funded from associated additional
income raised.



Recycling and Waste Team Leader Post – Details in linked papers. £41k
included in draft budget.



Additional support in the Streetscene Business Support Team – Details in
linked papers. £13k included in draft budget.



RNLI extended cover at Exmouth – Details in linked papers. £5k included in
draft budget



Additional staff resource in Homelessness Team; temporary post in budget
made permanent and additional post added – previous report presented.
Additional £32k included in budget.



A data analysist (2 year fixed term contract) working with Strata but an inhouse resource to pull together data from differing systems and services in
the Council to prepare management dashboards both for members and
services. This will lead to efficiencies in relation to time taken currently to
manually pull information together but also will provide better information
which can help identify efficiencies and focus resources in the right place.
This is in line with positions in place at Exeter City Council and Teignbridge
District Council. £32k included in draft budget to be funded from the
Transformation Reserve.

2.14

Council Tax
The draft budget, in line with the MTFP, assumes the Council will increase the Council Tax
for 2021/22 by £5 a year. This gives a precept for the Council of £9,119,550 raising the
current annual council tax charge from £146.78 to £151.78 for a band D property a year, a
3.4% increase.
This is based on the Council Tax Base of 60,084 band D properties; a reduction of 50
compared with the current year. Normally there would be an annual growth in the tax base
of closer to a 1,000 band D properties a year. The reduction results from of a lower
collection rate from 99% to 98.3% and an increase in Council Tax Support with the effect of
reducing the taxbase by 609 band D equivalents compared with the previous year.
Government announced on 17th December the Council Tax Referendum Levels - the
increases above which would trigger a referendum. For shire districts this will be an
increase of £5 a year or 2% whichever is the greater. This is the level the Government
have calculated in their assumptions as income available to these Councils. The draft
budget assumes the £5 increase.

2.15

General Fund Balance
The Council has an adopted range for the General Fund Balance of between £3m to £3.8m
which is still considered appropriate; the draft budget maintains the Balance within that
range.
The current prediction of the Balance at current year end is at the bottom of this
range.
page 130

There are however some key risks in the budget that need to be highlighted to
members that could require funding, and if so would normally fall to the General
Fund Balance in 2021/22:
 Implications of Covid-19
The income from fees and charges and expenditure budgets have been set in the
main ignoring the financial implications we have seen through the pandemic.
Income has return fairly quickly since the initial lockdown period including during the
periods of where was saw further restrictions. The Government has extended its
income loss guarantee scheme (covering 75% of losses after the first 5% loss)
through to the end of June 2021. It is also to introduce arrangements to assist
Councils with loss Council Tax and Business Rate Income as result of Covid-19.
The Government spending review in addition to income protection measures
for Local Authorities does include amounts for additional Covid-19 grants to
local authorities in 2021/22 to assist with any continuing costs. This has now
been confirmed for EDDC at £616k
Therefore loss of income or costs associated with the continued impact of
Covid-19 is considered at this stage to be mitigated with the funding provided
by Government.
 Income generation/saving proposals – Car Park Income
A key assumption in the draft budget is additional income of £300k is to be obtained
from car park revenue. If Council do not approve this proposal then the loss in the
draft budget would have to be made good from alternative means or met from
Balances.
If Council agree to increase the charges but delay the introduction, as not wanting to
introduce during, or shortly after, a pandemic; then the cost if necessary could be
met from Balances or alternative funding for part of or up to a year.
If the decision is not to increase charges at all, then it would be prudent to find the
difference in budget reductions for the 2021/22 budget as the base budget going
forward would have this as an ongoing deficit. This would not be good financial
management and makes further budget setting for the Council even more difficult
than the positioned outlined in the MTFP.
 LED
The Council have agreed an additional subsidy of up to £1.3m to LED in the current
financial year to address the significant loss of income they have seen through
Covid-19. It was hoped that this additional subsidy would in significant part be met
from Government funding as is the case with In-House leisure services. The
separate claim process (National Leisure Recovery Fund) has allocated a sum of
£280k for EDDC to claim against!

page 131

For 2021/22 onwards LED had signalled before the effects of Covid-19 that they may
be looking to request an increase in their Service Level payment which is due for
review in next year’s budget. The draft budget has maintained the subsidy payment
at the same level as the current year at £898k as no commitment or details have
been agreed on this aspect.

Very recent discussions through the newly formed LED Forum have consider initial
indications from LED of their required increase, in order to maintain existing services
going forward; this being in the order of £296k to £673k depending how increases
are phased. This rising cost is clearly a position the Council cannot afford, which
LED understand as the Council understands their position. Further discussion and
options are being prepared for further debate through the Forum, along with the
appointment of independent expert advice. Recommend outcomes will be reported
back to Cabinet and Council as details progress.
 Current policy/work streams implications not concluded in draft budget at this
point in time
There are currently ongoing discussions/meetings which have not concluded in time
to determine the implication on next year’s budget and no provision has currently
been made. The areas being:


Queens Drive Open Space – The base budget of £50k has been rolled into
next year’s draft budget but a number of new proposals are being considered
but have yet to be concluded and costed.



The Poverty Panel are still meeting and it’s likely that recommendations will
be made, no allowance for additional spend has been included in the draft
budget over and above existing actions at this time. A theme emerging is the
support required to third party organisations who support our residents. The
Council needs to be clear on what’s within its remit and capacity to support
and ensures it uses its influence to lobby or work with others where issues are
outside of its direct control. A District Council will never have the resources to
deal with poverty alone.



A Management Review has been announced that will be the subject of a
report to Cabinet. This is likely to require a budget that has not been factored
in at this stage. This could be met from the Transformation Fund if approved
by Council.

 Brexit
Direct implications of Brexit are likely to be the effect on our main contractors,
discussions are taking place on the possible delay of materials and parts and how
best this can be managed.
The effect on residents and business is likely to add to the existing difficult position
as result of Covid-19 with a further increase in demand for services. Again there has
been a request to Government signalling that Local Authorities may need additional
support and funding to deal with issues that may arise.

page 132

The effects of increasing Council Tax Support Claims and a reduction in Council Tax
Collection has been factored into the budget. Some additional resource have been
included in Revenues and Benefits and Economic Development areas and work
streams are being planned to support both residents and business. A loss of
business rate income is a concern but in the way income flows to the Council in
accounting terms this likely to have a greater impact in 2022/23.
Additional Economic Development resources will be working with businesses to help
to mitigate the impact.
Should any of the above require monies to be met from the General Fund Balance
this could take the Fund below the acceptable level.
The settlement included a new grant - Lower Tier Service Grant Allocation
(LTSG). This is a one off grant for 2021/22 for District Councils to help with services
such as homelessness, planning, recycling and refuse collection and leisure
services – the areas we have identified as cost pressures. EDDC allocation is
£700k. It is a general grant so not ring fenced to these areas but the Government is
aware of particular pressures for Districts.
This additional grant had not been signalled prior to the announcement on 17th
December and is very welcome against the pressures identified above. It is
proposed this sum is held to mitigate the risk of costs arising from the above and
other unknown cost pressures in 2021/22.
2.16

Business Rates
The 2021/22 budget uses the Government’s funding calculation at £2.7m as the income to
be derived from Business Rates; to this an additional £2m has been added to reflect the
Council’s own rate estimate which is higher. The Council does hold a Rates Volatility Fund
of £0.639m accumulated from previous Business Rate surplus to mitigate the risk if Rates
do not achieve this full level and it helps smooth out year on year fluctuations.

2.17

New Homes Bonus (NHB)
The government intention is to end the NHB scheme, in 2020/21 the Council received
£3.6m through this grant. The grant for 2021/22 is £2.5m, the draft budget uses £1.5m of
this to support the General Fund with the balance being directed to part finance the Capital
Programme.
It is likely the scheme will diminish year on year with a final payment in 2022/23 estimated
at £0.922m. It is assumed that this will be directed to the General Fund.
Budget Strategy for future years

2.18

The recently adopted Financial Plan 2021 – 2031 has informed the balancing of the
2021/22 budget. Work now needs to begin on future year budgets taking into account a
new Council Plan being formulated over the coming months. There is currently a projected
funding gap of £4.3m up to the next District election (2023/24), with the assumed change in
funding of Business Rates and NHB accounts for £3.1m of this shortfall.
page 133

General Fund

2022/23

2023/24

Total

£000

£000

MTFP Budget Shortfall

3,010

1,243

4,253

Change in Business Rates & NHB

2,278

822

3,100

Underlying MTFP shortfall –
service costs increasing above
income generation

732

421

1,153

The changes in funding are uncertain in terms of extent and timing and although likely to
be implemented to a degree or to its full extent it puts the Council in a precarious position
of having to make significant savings and likely service reductions without being certain on
the level and timing of savings required.
The adopted Financial Plan proposed that the funding gap is addressed in terms of the
underlying MTFP shortfall at this stage and although plans should be considered for the
larger deficit actions are held until there is clarity on timing and extent.
To mitigate and de-risk this approach the Council approved a new reserve from additional
business rates received in 2019/20 (details contained in 2019/20 Outturn Report to
Cabinet on 30/9/20) of £2m. This reserve to be used to mitigate and de-risk the
implications of the Government funding changes until the outcome is known and can be
planned for appropriately. Having such a reserve can then buy time, if required, to fund a
sudden fall in funding whilst the Council reshapes its budget, but at a time and to a degree
that’s required instead of progressing at this point when there are so many uncertainties.

2

Housing Revenue Account Budget
The Overall Financial Picture

2.1

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is underpinned and influenced by a business plan,
this plan needs a refresh which has been delayed with other work commitments. The
revised Plan needs to:


Undertake a full conditions survey to inform future programme costs.



Consider the implication of the new maintenance contract.



Reflect additional work on asset management planning and compliance
requirements,



Consider the end of rent reductions.



The implication of Universal Credit,



Reconsider the debt level and use of Right to Buy Receipts linked to future
development ambitions, and



The implications of the climate change action plan.
page 134

This work is progressing for inclusion in the 2022/23 budget, the picture for the draft
2021/22 budget is very much stand still in that it continues to invest in our existing
properties at a similar level; it provides an acceptable surplus which will need to be
prioritised between competition demands:
 The purchase programme to counteract the impact of continuing Right to Buy (RTB)
sales and the development ambitions to significantly add to our stock/social housing.
This is a key priority in the Statement of Intent.
 To ensure new compliance requirements are met.
 To implement the carbon reduction actions.
2.2

In accordance with central government policy, the increase in any individual tenants rent is
limited to inflation + 1% for the forthcoming financial year. Inflation is taken as the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) rate at the prevailing rate for September 2020, which was
official registered at 0.5%. The draft budget assumes an increase in Council House rents of
1.5% with a factor included for a reduction in stock numbers and voids giving £17.8m, an
increase of £0.264m. The average house rent is currently £82.17 per week with 4,184
dwellings. There is 727 garages with a current rent of £15 per week, no increase is
proposed.
Draft Revenue Budget 2021/22

2.3

The budget book details the draft estimates for 2021/22.

2.4

The budget has been prepared to maintain council homes to a high standard with a
comprehensive planned programme of expenditure, adaptations and routine repairs. The
2021/22 draft budget maintains significant sums for:


Major repairs totalling £4.2m covering new doors, boilers, kitchens and bathrooms,
including change of tenancy expenditure, replacement of wooden fascias with uPVC
and roof replacements.



Day to day repairs, programme maintenance and one off works totalling £4.3m.

page 135

2.5 Main Variations to highlight:
The Net movement on the budgeted HRA surplus is an overall increase of £54k to £0.985m
Income increased by a total of £254k year on year;



The predominant driver of the increase is rent increase £264k.
These were partially offset by a decrease in forecast income from garages (-£90k)
due to unrentable units and a reduction in interest income as a result of the current
and forecasted continued suppression of interest rates.

Expenditure increased by £200k year on year;


Although the allocation of expenditure on premises has shifted year on year to meet
demand, incorporating the catch up work required due to COVID restrictions, the
total budgeted expenditure remains materially consistent.
The primary driver of the annual increase is within employee costs as new roles are
required to meet the demands of the service, notably within the Landlord Services
area with the appointment of a Mental Health officer and within the Asset and
Property team with the appointment of a Climate Change officer.

2.6 The HRA draft budget currently shows a surplus of £0.985m; this level of surplus in the past
has been directed to replacement housing to match the Right to Buy receipts. It is proposed
that this sum is held for the purpose of additional housing and climate change measurers.
Reports on priority and proposed actions to be considered will be presented to the Housing
Review Board through 2021/22.

page 136

2.7

The HRA Balance is maintained within the adopted range of £2.1m and £3.1m, being
projected to be retained £3.1m level at the end of 2021/22. There is an additional £1.6m
being held in the HRA debt Volatility Fund which remains unchanged.

2.8

The draft HRA budget will be reviewed by the Housing Review Board (HRB) on 21st January
2021.

Budget Strategy for future years

2.9

The HRA Business plan needs refreshing as outlined in 2.1 above to ensure properties can
be maintained at a high standard whilst investing in new properties and meet carbon
reductions priorities whilst keeping the HRA Reserves within the adopted levels.

2.10 The intention is revised Business Plan will be prepared in 2021/22 for approval through the
HRB, Cabinet and Council.

3

Capital Programme
The Overall Financial Picture

3.1

The draft Capital Programme for 2021/22, after in year available resources are used, gives
an overall funding need of £1.980m. The funding position across years will be managed in
the most efficient manner considering the Council’s overall Treasury Management position.

3.2

Any underfunded capital is factored into the Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
calculation (the amount required to be charged to the revenue account for unfunded capital)
in line with the Council MRP Policy. In addition there will either be interest on any external
loans required to be factored in, or the loss of investment interest on any internal borrowing
used. Again this has been factored into the 2021/22 draft budget. The higher the unfunded
element of the capital programme the greater cost to the General Fund.

3.3

The preparation of the draft Capital Budget has been directed by the Budget Setting &
Allocation Panel (BSCAP) who met on 1st December 2020 to consider scheme proposals.
The Group considered funding resources available, the capital appraisal process and then
each scheme proposal in turn. Minutes of this meeting are presented to Cabinet.

3.4

The capital appraisal process has been used to build a capital programme aimed at
delivering the Council’s stated priorities and ensuring schemes meet set outcomes. Each
scheme is given a score against a set criteria such as how the project meets the Council
Plan, the risk involved, any part funding, invest to save, service provision and carbon
implications; scoring schemes higher which contributed to a reduction in carbon. This
scoring is used to measure priority against the funding available.
For each scheme proposed an Initial Project Proposal Form was completed as governed in
the adopted “Guide to Project Management”.

page 137

Draft Capital Budget 2021/22
3.5

The attached booklet details the draft capital programme for 2020/21 to 2024/25; scoring
information is included against the new capital bid items.

3.6

A summary of the capital funding position is given below:

3.7

The draft capital budget for 2021/22 totals £7.965m (net of direct grants), schemes are
detailed in the budget book.

3.8

NHB monies is helping to fund the capital programme in 2021/22 by £0.979m but no
funding is expected in 2022/23 as it is assumed NHB will cease at this point. This will put
significant pressure on the funding of future programmes, which if a level of investment is
still to be maintained will have an effect on the revenue budget as more loan funding is
likely to be required.

4

Other Balances & Reserves available to the Council

4.1

The Council holds a number of earmarked reserves set aside for specific purposes, the use
of such reserves in the 2021/22 draft budget are detailed in the budget book for members’
information.

page 138

5.

Robustness of estimates and adequacy of reserves

5.1

This part of the report deals with the requirement of Section 25 (2) of the Local Government
Act 2003 in that the Council’s Chief Finance Officer (CFO) must report on the robustness of
the estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of reserves for which the budget
provides.

5.2

In terms of the robustness of the estimates, all known factors have been considered and the
financial implications have been assessed at the point of preparation. Various budget
assumptions have been made including the treatment of inflation and interest rates,
estimates on the level and timing of capital receipts, the treatment of demand led pressures,
the treatment of planned efficiency savings/productivity gains and levels of income, financial
risks inherent in any new arrangements and capital developments and the availability of
funds to deal with major contingencies and the need for any provisions. In each of these
areas the Council’s financial standing, management and track record have been considered
in order to prepare robust budget proposals.

5.3

The proposed draft budgets for 2021/22 maintain both the General Fund balance and the
Housing Revenue Account balance at adopted levels provided actual net expenditure is at,
or below, the level forecast. Continuous monitoring and reports to Cabinet will highlight and
make recommendations on any corrective action necessary to achieve this during 2021/22.
Particular risks have been highlighted in 2.15 of the report which could affect the level of the
General Fund Balance. Adverse financial implications resulting from these risks will be
brought to members’ attention and decisions on reducing expenditure or the use of
available Balances/Reserves will need to be determined.

6.

Prudential Code

6.1

The Local Government Act 2003 also requires under regulation for local authorities to have
regard to the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, issued by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) when setting and reviewing
their affordable borrowing limit.

6.2

The key objective of the Code is to ensure, within a clear framework, that the capital
investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable. A further key
objective is to ensure that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with
good professional practice and in a manner that supports prudence, affordability and
sustainability.

6.3

To demonstrate that local authorities have fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code
sets out the indicators that must be used and the factors that must be taken into account.
These indicators will be presented to the next Cabinet meeting when a recommendation will
be made on the budget for 2020/21, Council Tax levy and Council House Rents.

6.4

A Capital Strategy is required to be approved by Council annually to consider any
investment property the Council holds or likely to hold, what this means in terms of financial
exposure and risk. This will presented along with the documents above at the next Cabinet
for onward approval by Council in February 2021.

page 139

Agenda Item 22
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Poverty – our response to the crisis
Report summary:
This report has been prepared in response to the Council motion considered on 9th December
2020. The report provides an update on the work being undertaken through the Poverty Working
Panel and addresses the specific points contained in the motion.
Council RESOLVED that: This Council endorses the work of the Poverty Working Panel in seeking
to identify and address poverty within the District. We are pleased to note that the 'policy vision' is
being included in the strategy, that meetings are now being held in public and past minutes and
agendas are also being made public.
Whilst acknowledging the work already being carried out by the Council across numerous service
areas and the work of the Poverty Working Panel, this Council is concerned about the
unprecedented challenges now being faced by many residents. In recognition of the worsening
poverty crisis, Council hereby refers the motion to the first Cabinet meeting of 2021 to be held on
6th January for Cabinet to give it urgent consideration and to decide whether a further report
should be prepared to identify practicable and affordable further actions with a view to:
- identifying any emergency actions for prioritisation;
- helping address gaps in the benefit system;
- applying for all available grants;
- strengthening families and communities with clear signposting;
- improving communication with towns and parishes around financial resilience;
- promoting long term economic growth potential;
- addressing issues affecting all age groups with regard to mental health and employment;
- assessing how the Poverty Strategy and action plan can be expedited by the Poverty
Working Panel without compromising the evidenced based programme of work.
Recommendation:
That Cabinet supports the work of the Poverty Working Panel and encourages them to come
forward with a draft Poverty Strategy at the earliest opportunity.
The Poverty Working Panel completes its thematic sessions and incorporates the learning into an
action plan for inclusion in the Poverty Strategy.
The Poverty Strategy includes the five objectives set out in this report and the original Council
motion that - No one in East Devon is to be destitute without immediate help, and nobody should
be in involuntary poverty for more than two years duration.

page 140

Reason for recommendation:
To meet the requirements of the Council motion and report on the progress being achieved by the
Poverty Working Panel.
Officer: John Golding Strategic Lead – Housing, Health & Environment
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☒ Climate Action
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☒ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☒ Economy and Assets
☒ Finance
☐ Policy Co-ordination and Regional Engagement
☐ Strategic Planning
☒ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
There are no direct financial implications at this stage from the recommendations in this report. It
is expected that the Poverty Panel recommendations is likely to request additional resources and
this is highlighted in the Council’s draft budget paper to Cabinet for 2021/22.
Legal implications:
The report does not raise any specific legal implications requiring comment.
Equalities impact High Impact
The Council’s proactive approach to addressing poverty and the priority it has established for this
work will have a positive impact on equalities.
Climate change Medium Impact
Risk: Medium Risk; Despite our best efforts there are factors beyond our control that have a greater
impact on poverty such as national social policy and welfare benefits policy.

Links to background information Poverty Working Panel agenda and minutes
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☐ Outstanding Place and Environment
☒ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

1.

Background

1.1

Poverty prevention and alleviation is a priority for this Council. This ambition is prominent in
the recently published Statement of Intent.

1.2

We are witnessing a stubborn level of poverty nationally and locally with signs of this
worsening with the economic damage done by the Covid-19 pandemic.

1.3

For many years a number of our Services have been supporting low income groups
maintain a quality of life through providing subsidised housing; assisting access to
page 141

affordable housing; administering benefits and hardship payments; enabling full
employment and quality jobs; business support and economic development; supporting
community development; promoting public health initiatives and enabling health & wellbeing
activities; funding financial and debt advice; supporting community and voluntary groups;
etc.
1.4

During the pandemic we have been administering hardship funds; test & trace payments;
Local Restrictions Support Grant; Additional Restrictions Grants; Business Rate Relief;
Community Support Hub; Corona virus Community Food Fund; Covid-19 Prompt Action
Fund; as the main sources of financial support that relate specifically to the pandemic.

1.5

The Council established a Poverty Working Panel to explore the complex issues causing
poverty and the opportunities to alleviate the effects. The Poverty Panel have been asked to
produce a Poverty Strategy and after three meetings we are well positioned to produce a
strategy in the next few months.

1.6

It is important to define poverty clearly and included in the Poverty Working Panels terms of
reference we included the working definitions of poverty (see annex 1).

1.7

Integral to the work of the Poverty Working Panel is an appreciation of our sphere of
influence and where we can best target our energy and resources. My research indicates
that adopting a Poverty Strategy is relatively rare for district councils and more common at
top tier level authorities and unitary councils.

2.

Towards a Poverty Strategy

2.1

The Poverty Strategy will tie together the existing activities we undertake across our
Services, with some new projects and stretch targets to reflect the current picture of poverty
across the district and the anticipated worsening due to the impact of the pandemic and
Brexit projections (reasonable worst case scenario).

2.2

2.3

The Council’s approach set out in this emerging Poverty Strategy reflects evidence
on the nature of poverty in East Devon and changes in the national social policy over
the past decade. Poverty is a cross cutting theme with a number of Council Services
involved in our interventions.
It also builds on the learning from the Council’s existing approach to supporting
individuals and communities. This learning includes:
 The importance of balancing efforts to address the immediate effects of poverty,
with preventative work to address the root causes of poverty.
 Being clear on which issues can be addressed by direct delivery by Council
services, which issues can be achieved through partnership working (where more
can be achieved through collaboration), and which issues require influencing and
lobbying activity (where powers lie with Government or other agencies).
 A need to build the capacity and resilience of residents and communities.

2.4

Poverty is defined in different ways including not having enough possessions or
income for a person’s needs; the condition of being extremely poor; a person or
community that lacks the financial resources and essentials for a minimum standard
of living; household income below 60% of the average.

2.5

Six types of poverty have been recognised – situational; generational; absolute;
relative; urban; and rural.
The causes and effects of poverty are summarised below:
page 142

2.6

The Poverty Panel have considered a Plan on a Page overview (annex 2) and five high
level objectives that broadly sit with our Services:
1 Helping people on low incomes to maximise their household income and
minimise their costs, building financial resilience and reducing indebtedness.
Lead Service – Finance.
2 Strengthening families and communities, including supporting groups of
people that are more likely to experience poverty, and community and
voluntary groups working to combat poverty. Lead Service – Housing.
3 Promoting an inclusive economy, by raising skills and improving access to a
range of employment opportunities for people on low incomes. Lead Service
– Growth, Development & Prosperity.
4 Addressing the high cost of housing, improving housing conditions, creating
affordable warmth and reducing homelessness. Lead Service – Housing.
5 Improving health outcomes for people on low incomes, including access to
good diet, health care and ill health prevention. Lead Service –
Environmental Health.

3.

Poverty emergency

3.1

It has been suggested that we declare a poverty emergency. Declaring a poverty
emergency would be a political decision, but I would say that we are already treating this as
a corporate priority as evidenced by the prominence of poverty in the recently published
Statement of Intent.
page 143

3.2

I have looked at the West Cheshire & Chester decision to declare a poverty emergency
alongside their climate change emergency. This is clearly well intentioned, but might be
perceived as virtue signalling. It could be argued that declaring too many emergencies
dilutes the impact.

3.3

I would suggest that we need to have a clear purpose in doing so and what we want to
achieve from it. We have no ‘killer’ data to justify calling an emergency, but we have seen
an unacceptable level of poverty locally and anticipate this increasing due to the effects of
the pandemic, and possibly exacerbated by Brexit.

3.4

I would also be concerned that many perceive East Devon to be an affluent area and whilst
we know that there are pockets of urban and rural poverty, calling a poverty emergency
could be perceived negatively.

3.5

Nevertheless we are seeing signs of a worsening poverty crisis and in response to the
specific issues identified in the motion to council I would comment as follows:
 identifying any emergency actions for prioritisation – we are implementing
emergency actions within our powers and responsibilities. At the moment we are
prioritising implementing actions associated with the pandemic, including access to
food banks and associated support, hardship payments, and support to business
and people losing employment. Homelessness and rough sleeping is another
priority. We have a clear focus on supporting the least well off to secure basic
necessities.
 helping address gaps in the benefit system – this is the responsibility of national
government, but we are working effectively with the DWP who are attending the
January meeting of the Poverty Working Panel. We try to optimise benefit eligibility
when providing advice to customers and are using hardship and top up payments
were we are able to do so.
 applying for all available grants – we scan for grants that we or partners can apply
for and have a track record of securing support for our priorities. We are also
distributing grants and have schemes that allocate according to need and delivering
the greatest positive impact.
 strengthening families and communities with clear signposting – we see this as an
integral part of our approach. Our website is constantly updated with advice and we
are working more closely with community and voluntary groups. We have a clear
objective around strengthening household resilience and reducing indebtedness,
which we can best achieve through working with partners. There will be ideas in the
Poverty Strategy on how we can improve our effectiveness in these areas.
 improving communication with towns and parishes around financial resilience –
there is scope for improvement here. Our capacity in this area is limited and this has
not been seen as a priority. We will ensure that the Poverty Strategy addresses this
ambition going forward.
 promoting long term economic growth potential – this is core business for the
Council and the recent presentation to the Poverty Working Panel has identified the
current issues, constraints and challenges, alongside ideas to enable this ambition
to be realised.
page 144

 addressing issues affecting all age groups with regard to mental health and
employment – we recognise the different types and impacts of poverty in different
age groups, different communities and different settings. The Poverty Strategy will
include proposals to help people into work, acquire skills and critically sustain well
paid employment.
 assessing how the Poverty Strategy and action plan can be expedited by the

Poverty Working Panel without compromising the evidenced based programme of
work – we are looking at condensing the work of the Poverty Working Panel into a
tighter timetable without compromising the evidence gathering, research and
thematic sessions covering each of the five objectives shown above.
3.6

Picking up the six issues in the recent motion prior to it being amended:
(1) The ‘policy vision’ is incorporated immediately in the Poverty Strategy to help deliver the
best response for our residents across East Devon - it has been.
(2) Future meetings of the Panel should be in public and past meeting agendas and
minutes made available; Council 9 December 2020 – they are public meetings.
(3) To achieve faster actions the ‘key issues’ should immediately be addressed – these are
see the narrative above.
(4) The Poverty Working Panel should immediately review ‘emergency actions’ by other
Councils and provide a report to Overview Committee including comment on the
budgets available across local Partnerships - urgent actions are being progressed.
Partnership budgets will be considered as part of the budget setting process.
(5) East Devon’s tactical response should include the ‘significant priority’ mentioned above
– stated priorities will feature in the Poverty Strategy.
(6) It endorses the ‘strategic objectives’ in the emerging Poverty Strategy and asks for
action proposals to address them to be presented to Cabinet within 2 months – five
objectives have been agreed by the Poverty Working Panel and are presented to
Cabinet in this report.

3.7

The original Council motion from 2019 will be incorporated in the Poverty Strategy and
influence the various interventions proposed. This was to ensure that - No one in East
Devon is to be destitute without immediate help, and nobody should be in involuntary
poverty for more than two years duration.

3.8

We might want to lobby and campaign with DCC and other districts on this issue, proposing
a poverty crisis concern. It would be interesting to test others concerns and intentions, and
explore a collaborative approach to have more impact.

4.

Next Steps

4.1

Having established the Poverty Working Panel the Council should allow it to complete its
work. The Panel have been meeting monthly with the last meeting and future meetings
open to the public. Without wishing to curtail debate I would hope that the Panel could
conclude its work by April and be ready to report back to Cabinet with a Poverty Strategy.

4.2

This is not to imply that we are delaying implementing poverty prevention and intervention
initiatives as many of these activities are business as usual for the Council. However, the
production of a poverty strategy presents an opportunity to promote the Council’s priority
work stream, coordinate activities and projects across all council services, encourage
partners to work towards shared objectives, and lobby for change in areas beyond our
direct control.
page 145

4.3

The Poverty Working Panel could continue its work beyond the new financial year by
becoming a monitoring group looking at key performance indicators, producing a
performance dashboard, and generally following good practice to incorporate in future
updates of the strategy.

page 146

Poverty Panel – Terms of Reference

The Poverty Panel was established by Cabinet in February 2020 (delayed start due to Covid -19). In
so doing Cabinet agreed the following as the purpose of the Panel:
To assist Cabinet in the development of an East Devon Poverty Strategy, to monitor progress against
the Strategy once adopted and to review the Strategy on an ongoing basis and to make
recommendations to amend it as appropriate. Also to consider the progress of the actions in relation
to poverty agreed to by Cabinet at its meeting of 8th January 2020.
At the 8th January 2020 Cabinet meeting, it was resolved that the following recommendations from
the Overview Committee be agreed:
1.

2.
3.

4.
5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Consider funding the creation of an East Devon Poverty Strategy to further develop and target
the areas identified within this report that we are able to influence and to support a corporate
approach to ensure consistency across Council Services.
Carry out a review of the funding and delivery arrangements for Money Advice to ensure that
we’re focussing on the key issues identified in the report.
Recommend that Council protect the existing funding levels contributed for Money Advice to
Homemaker South West and Citizens of circa £120,000 for 2020/21 to enable the review
(Recommendation 2) to be undertaken.
Update Corporate Debt Policy to include; Breathing Space in-line with proposed Government
changes & to consider any other supportive measures that may be beneficial.
Agree to the Council’s frontline services, in collaboration, setting up a series of local events
across the District with key stakeholders that focus on Universal Credit, Money/Debt advice
(including how to avoid Loan sharks), budgeting, fuel poverty etc. with the over-arching aim
of supporting people to become more financially resilient.
Consider lobbying central Government directly and/or through our MPs in the following
areas;
- Right to Buy
- Removing the freeze on Local Housing Allowance Rates in order to be reassessed to reflect
market rents.
- Universal Credit – More financial support to be given to customers to help with the
transition. More funding to be given to local Councils to reflect the support that customers
need with moving onto this Benefit.
Continue to explore opportunities to increase our supply of social housing through either
redevelopment of existing stock and/or building new Council Housing, in conjunction with a
review of the current Housing Revenue Account business plan.
Agree to the Council working alongside East Devon foodbanks to better understand demand
and eradicate dependency that could lead to a reduction and possible extinction of the need
for foodbanks in the district.
Undertake a detailed analysis of fuel poverty in the district with a view to developing a
separate action plan.

Key Question
The Poverty Panel’s primary outcome for the work it is undertaking should be aiding in the
production of the East Devon Poverty Strategy with a view to tackling poverty in the district.
The key question, therefore, is:
page 147

Poverty Panel – Terms of Reference

How can the Council’s tackling/anti-poverty approach be coordinated, improved and captured in a
corporate strategy document that improves the situation for households in poverty in East Devon?
The Poverty Panel will include in its scope poverty relating to income & employment; debt &
financial vulnerability; food & nutrition; affordable warmth & water; affordable housing &
homelessness; and health equality.
Main Lines of Inquiry for the Poverty Panel
Anti-Poverty Strategy: How can the Council tackle poverty in the district? How should it be framed
and targeted? How do we measure the impact? How do we ensure this is a genuine cross cutting
theme mainstreamed across council services?
Target Areas: This policy is central to the Council Plan priorities and achieving sustainable
communities. Are the target areas of policy intervention being consistently delivered and
understood?
Partnership Working: The Council cannot tackle poverty in isolation. What are the limitations on the
Council‘s influence and ability to tackle poverty? What should the role of East Devon Public Health
Strategy be in future? How do we best coordinate partnerships to deliver shared anti-poverty
ambitions? How do we work effectively with community and voluntary groups?
Additional Lines of Inquiry
Outcomes: While the strategy is intended as a long term commitment it is important to know what
outcomes are expected, and what will be achieved in the short term. Can these outcomes be
identified, and are the long term ambitions realistic, achievable, measurable and appropriate?
Resources: The strategy might signal a fundamental shift in the way that the Council operates. To
what extent will the strategy influence the council budget and attract sufficient resources?
Councillors: Councillors play an important and active role in their communities and will be critical in
delivering the strategy. How can this be achieved? How can we best lobby for change in social policy
that addresses poverty?
Cross Cutting: To be effective the strategy needs to influence how every Service operates. Has this
happened to date? How could the strategy be cross cutting and meaningful?
Awareness: To have impact the strategy needs to be widely understood. How do we ensure that
stakeholders, partners and residents understand the strategy and what it means for them?
What Works and what doesn’t Work: What has the Council‘s approach on poverty achieved to
date? How can the Council do more of what works?
Intended Impact and Contribution
Tackling Poverty is one of the Council’s priorities. This Poverty Panel intends to support this work by
providing:
• Evidenced proposals that will lead to the strategy being fit for purpose
• The views of people experiencing poverty
• The views of key stakeholders and partners
• Consideration of the conclusions and recommendations from national reports with an
assessment of the implications for East Devon
• Identification of good practice/research elsewhere and whether there is any learning to
inform East Devon's approach
148
• Increased councillor understandingpage
about
the Poverty Strategy

Poverty Panel – Terms of Reference

• Greater public awareness of the work of the Poverty Strategy
Defining poverty
There is more than one definition of poverty and it can mean different things to different people, but
it is generally considered that someone is in poverty when they are not able to heat their home, pay
their rent, pay for food or buy the essentials for their children.
There are 4 levels of poverty (Joseph Rowntree Foundation, 2019):
 Income at minimum income standard or better – able to afford a decent standard of living
 Income below minimum income standard – getting by day-to-day but under pressure,
difficult to manage unexpected costs and events
 Not enough income – falling substantially short of a decent standard of living, high chance of
not meeting needs
 Destitute – can’t afford to eat, keep clean and stay warm and dry
Poverty is most commonly measured using either:
 People in relative low income – living in households with income below 60% of the median in
that year;
 People in absolute low income – living in households with income below 60% of (inflation
adjusted) median income in some base year, usually 2010/11.

Joseph Rowntree Foundation graphic

page 149

Strategic Actions:

Poverty – Plan on a Page

1 Helping people on low incomes to maximise
their household income and minimise their
costs, building financial resilience and reducing
indebtedness.

Our purpose is to – reduce poverty across East Devon
The Council’s approach set out in this strategy reflects updated evidence on the nature of poverty in
East Devon and changes in the national context over the past decade.
It also builds on the learning from the Council’s existing approach to supporting individuals and
communities. This learning includes:

1. The importance of balancing efforts to address the immediate effects of poverty, with preventative
work to address the root causes of poverty.
page 150

2. Being clear on which issues can be addressed by direct delivery by Council services, which issues can
be achieved through partnership working (where more can be achieved through collaboration), and
which issues require influencing and lobbying activity (where powers lie with Government or other
agencies).

3. A need to build the capacity and resilience of residents and communities.
Causes

Effects

2 Strengthening families and communities,
including supporting groups of people that are
more likely to experience poverty, and
community and voluntary groups working to
combat poverty.

3 Promoting an inclusive economy, by raising
skills and improving access to a range of
employment opportunities for people on low
incomes.

4 Addressing the high cost of housing, improving
housing conditions, creating affordable warmth
and reducing homelessness.

5 Improving health outcomes for people on low
incomes, including access to good diet, health
care and ill health prevention.

Agenda Item 23
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6th January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Local Development Scheme and Statement of Community Involvement
Report summary:
The Council is required to maintain both an up to date Local Development Scheme (LDS) sets out
a programme and timetable for production of future planning policy documents and a Statement of
Community Involvement (SCI) that details how we will consult on the production of these
documents. This report seeks to introduce the updated version of both documents which have
been considered by Strategic Planning Committee and were recommended to Council following
consultation with Cabinet.
Recommendation:
1. That Cabinet recommend to Council that the proposed new Local Development Scheme
and Statement of Community Involvement, as appended to this report, should be approved
and take effect immediately following approval.

Reason for recommendation:
To ensure the Council has an up to date Local Development Scheme and Statement of
Community Involvement.
Officer: Ed Freeman, Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management, e-mail efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk, Tel: 01395 517519
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☐ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Finance
☒ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications: There are no financial implications which require comment.
Legal implications:
Under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the Council is legally required to maintain
an up to date Local Development Scheme (LDS). Adoption of the enclosed revised LDS will
ensure compliance with our legal obligations. Other legal implications are covered in the report.

page 151

The requirement to review and maintain an up to date Statement of Community Involvement to
reflect legislative and other changes is met by adoption of the revised Statement. Other legal
implications are covered in the report.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk;
Links to background information
proposed new Local Development Scheme (LDS)
Statement of Community Involvement
previous LDS and SCI
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☒ Outstanding Place and Environment
☒ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

1

Introduction

1.1

There is a requirement for planning authorities to have an up to date Local Development
Scheme (LDS) and an adopted Statement of Community Involvement (SCI).

1.2

The new proposed LDS forms a future work programme for the Planning Policy team at the
Council and is appended to this committee report. The new LDS lists key policy documents
that are proposed to be produced by the Planning Policy team or in which the policy team is
partnering in production. The LDS also provides an overview of and advises on relevant
planning policy work undertaken by outside partners, to include Devon County Council, in
respect of waste and minerals plans and local communities in respect of Neighbourhood
Plan making.

1.3

The EDDC SCI sets out our approach to promoting community and stakeholder
consultation and involvement in respect to:


How we produce future planning policy and engage with stakeholders



How we notify individuals and organisations that planning applications have
been submitted and how we encourage developers to undertake consultation.

1.4

The existing East Devon SCI was adopted on 24 October 2018, following extensive public
consultation. It can be viewed online https://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/2692931/2018-sciv6.pdf. The SCI sets out the minimum requirements that we will meet but we will always
strive to tailor a consultation to the specific circumstances and go beyond these. Ordinarily
the SCI would be reviewed every 5 years or sooner if there is a change in legislation.

1.5

The pandemic and associated restrictions have resulted in new legislation being passed so
that the risks associated with close contact are minimised and the requirement for a
physical copy of consultation documents to be available at the Council Offices is removed.
page 152

Government guidance advises that these arrangements are temporary and will last until 31
December 2020, however it is envisaged that this timescale could be extended. As a result
it is considered to be an appropriate time to review the SCI to ensure it remains compliant
and fit for purpose.
2

Development Plan Documents

2.1

The appended LDS advises of and sets out more detail on production of two Development
Plan Documents (DPDs). These are:

2.2

A new East Devon Local Plan – this is planned to be an overarching new plan covering all
policy matters that typically come up for consideration in determination of planning
applications by East Devon District Council. Separate reports to Strategic Planning
Committee on the 15 December 2020 provide more detail on production of the new local
plan.

2.3

The Cranbrook Plan – this plan, which at December 2020 is at Examination, will provide
policy for the future development of and determination of planning applications at
Cranbrook.

3

Supplementary Planning Documents and other strategy and policy documents

3.1

In addition to DPD production the intent is that the Planning Policy team will produce, or
partner in production of, a series of additional Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)
and other strategy and policy documents. Those proposed for production are set out in the
appended LDS report. However, it should be noted with a specific focus on local plan work
the scope to undertaken other tasks is significantly reduced.

4

Review of the existing Statement of Community Involvement

4.1

The existing SCI is just two years old and would ordinarily not be considered dated however
recent Government guidance encourages authorities to carry out a review and update their
policies where necessary:
“Local planning authorities will need to assess their Statements of Community
Involvement to identify which policies are inconsistent with current guidance on
staying at home and away from others or any superseding guidance. This could
include, for example, holding face-to-face community consultation events or
providing physical documents for inspection.”
It is proposed to make several minor amendments to the existing SCI to ensure that it is
fully up to date and is more appealing to the reader. The range of consultation techniques
remains unchanged. A proposed updated version is appended to this report.

4.2

The current SCI refers to the Greater Exeter Strategic Plan having its own SCI. The
amended SCI will delete this reference, and photographs relating to GESP, as GESP is no
longer progressing.

page 153

4.3

The existing SCI is written in such a way that in the preliminary stages of plan making a
range of possible actions are given and we are able to choose the most appropriate. The
revised SCI also follows this format and retains the range of options. Ordinarily consultation
would include extensive face-to-face contact with the public from the outset but this will not
be possible in the near future and is not a requirement provided adequate alternative
engagement takes place. The only potential inconsistency is the SCI statement that
“consultation will normally include (amongst other matters)…making the document available
at EDDC reception”. Changes to the regulations “temporarily remove the requirement on a
local planning authority to make documents available for public inspection at the authority’s
principal office and at such other places as the authority considers appropriate. They also
make temporary changes to regulation 36 of the 2012 Regulations to remove the
requirement on a local planning authority to provide hard copies of documents made
available under 35. Documents are still required to be made available on the local planning
authority’s website. This modification will apply until 31 December 2020.” It is possible that
this timescale will be extended but, in any case, we will make physical copies of the plan
available via alternative means and this is discussed in more detail in the Issues and
Options section below. To address this, it is proposed to amend the SCI to state “Whilst the
Exmouth and Honiton District Council offices are closed to the public as a result of Covid-19
restrictions, documents will not be available to inspect at the reception desks. Alternative
arrangements to view paper copies will be arranged upon request.”

page 154

Agenda Item 24

Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Cranbrook Town Centre
Report summary:
This report provides an update on progress with negotiations with the East Devon New
Community partners over the delivery of Cranbrook Town Centre. Following discussions at
Strategic Planning Committee and further discussions with the developers there remains
two options for Members to consider. The first is the developers offer to deliver a
commercially led town centre focused around a Morrison’s supermarket and bringing
forward the delivery of a number of community facilities that are required to be delivered
later in the build out of the town under the Section 106 agreement. However due to claimed
viability issues this option leads to an overall shortfall in infrastructure and affordable
housing when considered against policy requirements. This option would however lead to
the delivery of at least part of the town centre over the next few years and a clear path for
the delivery of a fit for purpose town centre in the future through council investment. The
alternative option is to progress a supplementary planning document for the town centre to
try and encourage development and proactively develop the town centre as a Council with
the likely need to use compulsory purchase powers and an even greater council investment
to deliver the town centre. This option is likely to lead to a significant delay of any delivery in
the town centre beyond the basic Section 106 requirements and the loss of the proposed
Morrison’s supermarket investment.
Recommendation:
That Members:
1. Consider the updated offer from the East Devon New Community Partners (EDNCp)
and note progress on the proposed Cranbrook Town Centre Supplementary
Planning Document and funding options for its delivery.
2. Consider the bullet pointed principles highlighted in the conclusion to the report and
in the event that they are content with these then agree in principle to the
Memorandum of Understanding now proposed by the EDNCp and delegate authority
to the Chief Executive and Portfolio Holder Strategic Planning to sign the final MOU
on behalf of the Council.
3. Consider whether they wish to proceed with the proposed Supplementary Planning
Document for the Town Centre to guide development in the town centre.

page 155

Reason for recommendation:
To provide clarity to the EDNCp over the acceptability of their proposals and direct a clear
route to the delivery of a town centre at Cranbrook.
Officers: Ed Freeman, Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☒ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Finance
☒ Strategic Planning
☒ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
This report provides a further update on how negotiations have progressed and seeks
member’s views on the direction in principle that should be taken. There are significant
financial implications for the Council in options presented which cannot be determined at
this point. Land purchase alone excluding the delivery of community assets could be in the
region of £3m to £5m, such details are unknown are not presented in this report or funding
approval sought at this stage. Such details will require to be presented in a business plan
considering total costs and funding sources available; this would need to be considered by
Cabinet and Council in time as further details are known.
Legal implications:
As set out within the 22nd October Report production of an SPD is governed by the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and Country Planning (Local
Planning)(England) Regulations 2012, it would be subject to public consultation but not
subject to independent examination. A memorandum of understanding is a statement of
intent by those who are party to the memorandum and is not a legally binding document.
Any planning proposals including variations to the existing s106 would be required to
progress through the normal formal planning process and determination. Other legal
implications are as set out within the report.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change High Impact
Risk: High Risk.
Links to background information
Strategic Planning Committee 22 October 2020
Strategic Planning Committee 15 December 2020 - Agenda Item 7
The Cranbrook Plan (submitted) web pages
High Streets and Town Centres in 2030 Inquiry report
The Grimsey Review: The Vanishing High Street

page 156

Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☒ Outstanding Place and Environment
☒ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

Background
Since work began on the development of the new town of Cranbrook in 2011, around
2,200 houses have been occupied pursuant to the planning permissions secured by the
East Devon New Community partners (EDNCp). The EDNCp are the consortium of
developers, comprising Persimmon Homes, Taylor Wimpey and Hallam Land
Management, who came together to bring forward the outline planning application and
have delivered the town so far. To date alongside around 2,200 homes the town has
also been provided with a primary school, all-through school for 2-16yr olds, railway
station, community building, neighbourhood centre shops, country park, numerous play
areas and a public house, the latter of which is the only non-residential building in the
town centre so far.
With development now having surrounded the town centre land, and the town having a
population of around 5,000 people, and with some of those residents having lived in the
town for 8 years, the need to deliver a town centre is of ever increasing importance to
ensure that the population has access to the facilities, services and jobs needed to
support it as it continues to grow. That growth is anticipated to reach almost 8,000
homes with the expansion of the town currently being pursued through the Cranbrook
Plan Development Plan Document which is in the process of being examined by the
Planning Inspectorate.
In recent months, two reports have been presented to the Strategic Planning Committee
(22 October & 15 December 2020, links above) in relation to Cranbrook Town Centre
and the two differing options for its development. The October SPC report contained a
full history background of the town and the associated planning applications, discussion
of local and national planning policy in relation to town centre development and of
research in to town centres. The December SPC report detailed the most recently tabled
offer from the EDNCp at that time and included a draft of a Supplementary Planning
Document as an alternative way forward.
22nd October SPC
At the Strategic Planning Committee meeting of the 22nd October 2020 Members
considered two options for the delivery of Cranbrook Town Centre. The first was to
agree in principal proposals brought forward by the EDNCp by signing a Memorandum

page 157

of Understanding to give the EDNCp comfort to invest in bringing their proposals
through the formal planning process. The alternative was to move forward with the
production of a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) detailing proposals for the
town centre which officers have produced based on the requirements of the existing
planning policy position as detailed in the Local Plan and emerging Cranbrook Plan. At
the meeting Members determined the following:
RESOLVED:
1. That the background to Cranbrook Town Centre, the planning obligation requirements
on the developers, and the current planning policy position have been considered;
2. That the proposals made by the East Devon New Communities Partners and the
officer’s concept for a proposed Town Centre Masterplan have been considered;
3. Advise the East Devon New Communities Partners that the Council is not minded to
enter into the proposed Memorandum of Understanding based on the proposed heads
of terms at the present time, but is open to further negotiation;
4. That work continues on the draft SPD Masterplan. In the event that sufficient funding
commitments are made, a draft SPD and delivery plan be presented to the Strategic
Planning Committee in December 2020. In the event that sufficient funding cannot be
identified, a further report be brought to the Strategic Planning Committee in December
2020 to update Members and give consideration to the East Devon New Communities
Partners proposals as they stand at that time;
5. That a further report be brought to the Strategic Planning Committee to consider
alternative development delivery vehicles.
RECOMMENDATION to Cabinet:
That funding be made available to support the pro-active delivery of the town centre,
based on the draft SPD Masterplan.
15th December SPC
At the Strategic Planning Committee meeting of 15th December, Members considered
an updated offer for town centre development from the EDNCp alongside a draft of a
Supplementary Planning Document which sets out an extended retail, commercial and
community offer from that presented by the EDNCp. A copy of the updated parcelisation
plan, detailing the various land parcels is attached as appendix 2. A video presentation
made to SPC by the EDNCp is also available at: http://www.cranbrooktowncentre.com/
Members welcomed the moving of the Extra Care facility onto parcel TC1, which is a
preferential location for this facility and frees up space on TC2 for more suitable uses,
however they expressed concerns with the size of the town square and the basis for the
tabled EDNCp offer particularly the value expected for Parcels TC4d, TC4e and TC3 to
be transferred to EDDC. There was also concern about restrictions proposed on the
scale of food retailing that could be accommodated on parcels that would passed to
EDDC. Members sought to defer a decision for further negotiations to take place and for
these to be reported to Cabinet. The full resolution was:

page 158

RESOLVED:
That Members delegate to the Portfolio Holder for Strategic Planning, the Leader and
Deputy Leader and the Strategic Lead for Planning to negotiate further with the
Consortium regarding the Memorandum of Understanding. The result to come to either
Cabinet on 6 January 2021 or a Cabinet held within 14 days of that date and also that
the Supplementary Planning Document is noted and kept in reserve pending the result
of the Memorandum of Understanding negotiations.
Discussions since 15 December
Since the SPC meeting of 15 December discussions with the EDNCp have continued
with some further movement regarding the previously tabled offer for the town centre
development. No additional land is being offered and no land value discussions have
taken place regarding the purchase price of TC3, TC4d and TC4e. In addition no
additional S106 monies are being offered in relation to the delivery of infrastructure.
However, in addition to agreeing to the publication of their viability evidence (attached
as Appendix 4), there is agreement from HDD (proposed developers of parcel TC4a)
and Morrison’s to increase the restriction on other food retailing units in the town centre
from 1,000 sq. ft. GIA (Gross Internal Area) to 1,500 sq. ft. GIA. In agreeing to this, HDD
have submitted a letter to demonstrate that most smaller food retailing offers such as
bakeries, greengrocers and fishmongers are usually under 1,000 sq. ft in floor area.
Officers have reviewed this information, which includes examples of shop sizes in
Honiton and further afield and consider that a 1,500 sq. ft. size restriction is acceptable.
While it would not allow a shop akin to the size of the Co-op at Younghayes Road in
phase 1 of the town, it would allow the provision of smaller food retailing units and the
type of offer which Officers envisage being made available to meet the needs of the
residents in the town centre. There will be two additional neighbourhood centres under
proposals within the Cranbrook Plan DPD in the expansion areas of the town and these
could have larger food retailing offerings such as that at the Co-op in phase 1. It is also
important to note that the food retailing restriction is time limited as well and would not
apply once whichever is the sooner of 10 years after the land has transferred to
HDD/Morrison’s or 5 years after the store has opened. There would therefore be
potential for larger food retailing units to come forward at a later date. Given the time
needed to deliver units on land passed to EDDC as part of the town centre this further
reduces the impact of the proposed restriction.
In relation to the size of the town square on parcel TC4a, it is important to remember
that this is not something to be agreed through the MOU but is part of an on-going
discussion as part of the pre-application discussions for future planning applications for
the town centre. The EDNCp have however indicated that the size of the eastern retail
block (shown on their option plan included as Appendix 3) could be reduced in size
slightly and moved further east to assist the design of the square. During the preapplication discussions in relation to parcel TC4a, officers suggested amendments be
made to the southern boundary of the square to better assist the creation of the public
realm and accessibility to Morrison’s. The EDNCp also point out that the handing over of
land on TC2 that is over and above the existing S106 obligation presents an opportunity
to link the two spaces on either side of Tillhouse Road and increase the size of the

page 159

public realm on the north side of the road. Officers consider that this opportunity should
not be overlooked and whilst it is important to ensure that the southern square is
suitably sized, having regard to its location and orientation, the scope for linking spaces
across Tillhouse Road alongside the final treatment of this stretch of road could deliver a
much enhanced public realm. The road could be closed in future to enable events to be
held that would involve the whole square and span both sides of the road.
Viability
At the SPC meeting on 15 December, Members expressed concern with the viability
argument which has been put forward by the EDNCp as one of the primary drivers for
the current proposals.
As a viability argument is being pursued, Officers have repeatedly requested the
submission of a full open-book viability appraisal to demonstrate this position but have
only been provided with what has been termed a ‘viability sketch’ to set out the costs
and revenues arising from the delivery of the town from inception to completion. The
EDNCp have now agreed to the publication of that viability sketch, which is included as
appendix 4. This leads to a greater level of openness and transparency about the
EDNCp’s case with regard to viability.
Whilst the consideration at this stage is not to determine any planning applications for
the town centre, rather to indicate whether to agree a MOU for the EDNCp scheme, the
existing Local Plan, National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and National Planning
Practice Guidance (NPPG) are of relevance to the consideration of development viability
in reaching this decision.
Strategy 34 of the East Devon Local Plan relates to affordable housing site targets and
states that where a proposal does not meet the policy requirements applicants are
required to submit evidence to demonstrate why provision is not viable or otherwise
appropriate and that an overage clause will be sought where a lower provision is agreed
on viability grounds. Further guidance on viability issues is contained in both the
adopted affordable housing SPD and the Planning obligations SPD. These documents
echo government policy within the NPPF and PPG.
Paragraph 57 of the NPPF states the following:
Where up-to-date policies have set out the contributions expected from
development, planning applications that comply with them should be assumed to be
viable. It is up to the applicant to demonstrate whether particular circumstances
justify the need for a viability assessment at the application stage. The weight to be
given to a viability assessment is a matter for the decision maker, having regard to
all the circumstances in the case, including whether the plan and the viability
evidence underpinning it is up to date, and any change in site circumstances since
the plan was brought into force. All viability assessments, including any undertaken
at the plan-making stage, should reflect the recommended approach in national
planning guidance, including standardised inputs, and should be made publicly
available.

page 160

The NPPG includes the following in relation to viability at application stage (reference ID
10-007-20190509):
Should viability be assessed in decision taking?
Where up-to-date policies have set out the contributions expected from
development, planning applications that fully comply with them should be assumed
to be viable. It is up to the applicant to demonstrate whether particular circumstances
justify the need for a viability assessment at the application stage. Policy compliant in
decision making means that the development fully complies with up to date plan
policies. A decision maker can give appropriate weight to emerging policies.
Such circumstances could include, for example where development is proposed on
unallocated sites of a wholly different type to those used in viability assessment that
informed the plan; where further information on infrastructure or site costs is
required; where particular types of development are proposed which may
significantly vary from standard models of development for sale (for example build to
rent or housing for older people); or where a recession or similar significant
economic changes have occurred since the plan was brought into force.

Within the viability sketch provided some of the costs and revenues are forecasts as
they haven’t yet been realised but many are based on known figures. It is stated that
the profit margin anticipated at the inception of the development was 16% but that
even with the current obligations and town centre development proposed, it is forecast
to be lower than this, at 13.6%. It is for this reason that nil affordable housing is
proposed for any housing over and above the existing outline housing numbers and
also why a reduced package of existing S106 obligations is proposed and why little
other S106 contributions are forthcoming in relation to the additional housing over and
above the outline consent housing numbers. It is asserted that the non-delivery of
these elements would help to bring the profit margin back towards the inception
expectations.
Officers have previously expressed concern that the viability sketch provided does not
follow the standard methodology for viability appraisals set out in the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
and that the inputs and outputs used do not present a full picture of the costs and
revenues associated with the development. The EDNCp argue that this methodology
is not compulsory and is not appropriate in this instance due to the complexity of the
development and the fact that much of it is complete. It is agreed that the delivery of
Cranbrook is complicated, however the standard methodology and inputs/outputs for
viability appraisal is suitable for developments of varying sizes, including for plan
making. Indeed, this methodology is currently being utilised to appraise the viability of
the expansion of Cranbrook as part of the examination into the Cranbrook Plan DPD;
the EDNCp have not criticised the use of this methodology for this purpose.
Of particular concern to officers is that residential build costs and revenues do not
appear to be included within the viability sketch and this would be likely to have a
marked impact upon the overall return. This concern was set out in detail from the

page 161

bottom of page 32 of the 22 October SPC report. It is also important to note that the
EDNCp are measuring the viability of the scheme against their own expectations when
the land was acquired which is not the basis for an NPPF compliant assessment of
viability.
Unfortunately viability appraisals rely on information being provided by the developers
particularly in complex cases such as this where it would be impossible for officers to
estimate the viability position without more information. The developers refuse to
submit the required information in this case and have indicated that they would rather
sit on the town centre proposals for a couple of years than do so. It is therefore
considered that Members have the choice of noting what has been presented by the
EDNCp and affording it appropriate weight given officers concerns or rejecting the
MOU due to the lack of a full viability assessment with the likely outcome being that
the delivery of the town centre is stalled for a number of years.

Land purchase

The purchase of additional town centre land is considered to be very important in
being able to secure the delivery of facilities and services in appropriate locations and
which will be capable of meeting the needs of the town as it grows towards 8,000
homes.
Should EDDC wish to pursue the option to purchase one or more of parcels TC3,
TC4d or TC4e from the EDNCp, the MOU as drafted sets an expectation for a market
residential value to be paid for the land. This value has been stated by the EDNCp as
in the region of £1.1m/acre. As set out in the 15th December SPC report, there are
concerns over some of the assumptions used by the EDNCp in arriving at this value,
which has increased from an original indication that it would be in the region of
£850k/acre.
The lower figure is that which was originally presented to EDDC, however upon
reflection, the EDNCp have increased the amount quoted on the basis that the land
would not be delivering affordable housing should it come forward for a purely
residential purpose. No negotiations on the land value have yet begun with both
parties agreeing that valuers for both sides would need to be appointed to begin the
process of negotiating a price for purchase. It is therefore just the principle of the value
being based on a market residential land value that the EDNCp are looking to
establish at this stage with the final value to be determined through further negotiation
and then included in the final MOU.
Whether the higher or lower figure indicated by the consortium is used the suggested
values are in the region of 3 to 4 times the value that the land is estimated to be worth
for the purposes of community, leisure and employment purposes as is intended.
There are however a number of factors to be borne in mind when considering this
issue:

page 162










Residential units could be developed on upper floors above community,
leisure and business spaces and in other areas to add value into any
scheme and realise a land value closer to that being sought.
The cost of acquiring the land could be met from enterprise zone
borrowing against future business rates receipts. With 100% of business
rates being retained in the enterprise zone for another 22 years there is
potential for the excessive cost of the land purchase to be repaid through
the business rates received through its development that would not
otherwise be received if developed for housing under the consortium
proposals.
The alternative to reaching an agreement to acquire land from the
consortium is to use compulsory purchase powers however this could
easily take 4 – 5 years, incur substantial legal costs and has no certainty
of acquiring land at a significantly lower value than is being sought by
the consortium.
Ultimately land is worth what someone is willing to pay for it and so land
valuations only tell part of the story of what land is actually worth in
reality.
There may be opportunities to work in partnership as a joint venture with
a development company to deliver the aspirations for the town centre
which would minimise risks and help to recover some of the land costs.
Although a detailed business case has yet to be worked up it is worth
bearing in mind that the land cost is only a relatively small component of
the overall costs of developing any parcels purchased. There may be
opportunities to recover some of the cost through rental income and
business rates receipts with relatively little build cost if temporary and
modular units are used initially to test the market and the needs of the
community.

The final table in Appendix 4 sets out the proposed terms in the MOU for the purchase
of these additional parcels.
Section 106 obligations
Appendix 4 sets out a table of existing S106 obligations, how the EDNCp propose to
address them and also S106 obligations for any additional housing brought forward
outside the outline planning permission.
The additional land now offered for nominal consideration on parcel TC2, amounting to
0.64 ha has come forward on the back of the EDNCp no longer being able to meet their
existing S106 obligation for sports pitch delivery within phase 1 of the town. Alongside
that existing obligation there is also a requirement for the provision of an all-weather
sports pitch which they also no longer propose to fulfil. It had previously been agreed
through an MOU in 2016 that the remaining sports pitch land and an all-weather pitch
would be provided in the Tresbeare expansion area, however the consortium no longer
hold an option on this land. In effect the 0.64ha of additional town centre land is in-lieu
of these requirements. In terms of land area there is some debate as to how much
sports pitch land is outstanding but it is considered to be at least 0.8ha. Then the cost of

page 163

delivering an all-weather pitch on it has to be factored in as well. This could be in the
region of £900k according to Sport England. In response the consortium would argue
that the all-weather pitch has been provided at the education campus and that the short
fall in sports pitch land is because they have overlaid the cricket square on the football
pitches thereby saving land. While these factors lessen the impact of this issue the fact
remains that they have not delivered what was required and agreeing the MOU would
remove the ability to secure any more. Although the all-weather pitch at the education
campus is currently available for community use outside of the school hours this cannot
be guaranteed in the future which is why the S106 agreement stipulates that it shall not
be at the education campus.
The issue with the sports pitch land and all weather pitch is also part of a wider issue of
proposed under provision in terms of the usual contributions that would be expected
towards infrastructure from a development like this. There remains a shortfall in
infrastructure funding of around £2.2million as can be seen from the table in appendix 4.
While through a process of reprioritisation with regard to funding from the expansion
areas can ensure that higher priority infrastructure is still delivered it will clearly lead to
an overall funding shortfall for infrastructure which will impact to some extent on the
public purse in the future or the quantity and quality of infrastructure to support the town.
The position with regard to the Section 106 obligations clearly impacts on infrastructure
to be delivered by Devon County Council and so it is important to note their position on
the proposed MOU. Prior to the last meeting of the Strategic Planning Committee DCC
Officers provided the following statement to summarise their position:
Without prejudice and subject to political agreement.
Unfortunately we have not had the opportunity to discuss the revised offer with the East
Devon New Community Partners (EDNCp) and there remains some issues to be
bottomed out in terms of financial contributions and triggers. However, we welcome the
revised offer, in particular the early provision of the land and financial contributions
towards the construction of a County Council facilities building and relocation of the
Extra Care Housing. In the event that your Strategic Planning Committee agrees in
principle to the revised Memorandum of Understanding the County Council will work
pragmatically with all parties to ensure a satisfactory outcome.
Member’s attention is also drawn to the views of the Cranbrook Strategic Delivery Board
which are attached as Appendix 1. Although these have not been updated since prior to the
December Strategic Planning Committee their views remain important to the consideration
of this matter and are supportive of the proposed consortium offer.
Benefits of the EDNCp offer
Despite the concerns highlighted with regard to viability and the impact of this issue on the
cost of acquiring town centre land and the funding for infrastructure it is important to

page 164

remember that there are a number of clear benefits of accepting the EDNCp offer. The key
benefits can be summarised as follows:








The early deliver of a Morrison’s Supermarket which according to EDNCp could be
open by the end of the summer 2022.
The delivery of 500sqm of retail space in addition to the 500sqm required to be
delivered under the Section 106 agreement. According to the EDNCp this could be
open by the end of 2022.
The delivery of a children’s day nursery which could also be open by the end of
2022.
Alongside the above would be the delivery of the town square.
It secures the early delivery of the town council facility which is not otherwise
required until 3450 homes have been built.
It secures the early delivery of the library and youth facilities which are also not
required until 3450 homes have been built.
The option for EDDC to acquire land within the town centre by agreement.

SPD
With regard to the proposed Supplementary Planning Document Officers have made
significant progress in producing a draft document and appended to the report to SPC on
the 15th December was a working draft of a document that could be completed and made
ready for consultation in February. The document identifies a number of key principles for
developing the town centre and considers how it could come forward either with or without
the HDD/Morrison’s proposals. It then seeks to use the masterplan layout included in the
previous officer report to illustrate how the town centre could come forward if these
principles are applied.
In the event that Members are not content with the revised offer from the consortium then it
is still considered that the SPD presents the best alternative way of progressing the town
centre accepting that any delivery of the town centre through this route would be
significantly delayed due to the likely need to CPO land. Even if Members are minded to
accept the consortium offer there would be some merit in concluding work on the SPD as a
guide to town centre development that can inform future decision making on planning
applications and to engage with the community on how the parcels transferred to or
acquired by EDDC come forward. There is however significant work still to be done on this
and Members may consider that resources are better used elsewhere.
Conclusion
It is considered that the revised consortium offer presents the best option of delivering a
town centre that is fit for purpose now and in the future but that this approach would only be
successful in the event that Members accept:



That in order to achieve the required mix and quantum of uses the Council would
need to acquire land within the town centre under the MOU now being offered.
That in order to acquire that land by agreement from the EDNCp the Council will
almost certainly have to pay a market residential land value which would be in

page 165

excess of the lands value for the purposes that the Council would be looking to use it
for.
With regard to the planning obligations and delivery of infrastructure to support the
development Members would also need to accept:


That there are sufficient exceptional circumstances in planning terms to justify not
insisting on an NPPF compliant viability appraisal in this case and accepting the
viability arguments made by the EDNCp.

The production of the proposed supplementary planning document and proactive delivery of
the majority of the town centre by EDDC presents the only viable alternative to the EDNCp
offer. However this option is very uncertain at this time, would be likely to involve the use of
CPO powers to acquire the land and lead to significant delays in the delivery of the town
centre.

page 166

Appendix 1

CRANBROOK STRATEGIC DELIVERY BOARD
RECOMMENDATION ON THE TOWN CENTRE PROPOSALS
1 DECEMBER 2020
In this document, the Cranbrook Strategic Delivery Board provides further comments to East Devon District Council’s
Strategic Planning Committee on the revised proposal by the East Devon New Community Partners and the proposal
to develop a supplementary planning document for the town centre.
The Board had already submitted statements to East Devon District Council’s Strategic Planning Committee dated 23
and 28 September 2020 which was included in the report by East Devon District Council’s Service Lead – Planning
Strategy and Development Management to the Strategic Planning Committee meeting on 22 October 2020 and this
document should be read in conjunction with the Board’s earlier comments.
Proposal by the East Devon New Community Partners
The Cranbrook Strategic Delivery Board broadly welcomes the changes and enhancements contained in the latest
proposal by the East Devon New Community Partners, particularly the inclusion of the transfer of parcel TC1 for
construction of extra care housing and the option for East Devon District Council to purchase additional parcels TC3,
TC4d and TC4e for the provision of additional facilities which can include a leisure centre, health and wellbeing uses
and commercial space – providing for flexible uses as and when future needs arise.
The Board notes that the purchase of the additional land parcels will require agreement on the land value, and that the
developers will seek residential value for that land. East Devon District Councillors should be aware that using those
parcels for commercial and / or community use will result in a diminution of those values on transfer to the District
Council.
At its meeting on 1 December 2020, the Board was encouraged that East Devon District Council’s planning officers
were now minded to support the new proposal by the East Devon New Community Partners.
The developers’ proposal will be considered on the basis that East Devon District Councillors will accept the
exceptional circumstances of not having a viability assessment which is compliant with the National Planning Policy
Framework. In section 57, the National Planning Policy Framework explains that “it is up to the applicant to
demonstrate whether particular circumstances justify the need for a viability assessment at the application stage”. The
Board notes that an application stage has not been reached yet and therefore insisting on a detailed viability
assessment at this stage is considered unnecessary.
Section 57 of the National Planning Policy Framework goes on to explain that “the weight to be given to a viability
assessment is a matter for the decision maker, having regard to all the circumstances in the case”. The Board agrees
with the East Devon New Community Partners that a global pandemic and the resulting economic situation provide
sufficient justification to consider the current situation exceptional. The Board previously questioned East Devon
District Council’s financial ability to fund the delivery of the town centre via a supplementary planning document as
per the Board’s comments dated 23 and 28 September 2020.
The Board notes that Devon County Council officers welcome the reviewed location of the extra care housing and
remain content with the site location for Devon County Council’s proposed multi-purpose building.
Therefore, the Board recommends that the Memorandum of Understanding relating to this proposal is signed without
delay by East Devon District Council so that the development of the town centre can progress to planning applications
being submitted by the developers.

page 167

Proposal by East Devon District Council’s Planning Officers
The Cranbrook Strategic Delivery Board continues to not support the further development of a supplementary
planning document relating to the town centre for the reasons outlined in the Board’s submission to the Strategic
Planning Committee dated 23 and 28 September 2020 which was included in the report by East Devon District
Council’s Service Lead – Planning Strategy and Development Management to the Strategic Planning Committee
meeting on 22 October 2020.

page 168

Appendix 2: Cranbrook Town Centre Parcel Plan

page 169

page 170

Appendix 4: Summary tables of the MOU offer

Summary table of MOU offer against S106 obligations
Use/Item

Area of
land
required
(ha)

Delivery of
building

Final
trigger

500 sq. m

n/a
2000 homes Land and
building

To be built by HDD on TC4a (completion
anticipated 2022)

n/a

Nil

3450 homes Land and
building
3450 homes Land and
building
2500 homes Land and
building

TC4b to be transferred to DCC for £1 upon the
completion of the MOU.

Class A uses
5 High
street
units
Class B1

page 171

Youth facilities

0.2

Units to
include 1
unit up to
4000sq. m
480 sq. m

Library

0.1

450 sq. m

Children’s
Centre

0.1

250 sq. m
(£432,000
Index
linked)

Police and
ambulance

0.25
Police
+
Parking
for 2x
Ambulan
ces

Requirement
comprises

2500 homes Serviced land

December 2020 Proposal

£3m financial contribution for Youth, Library &
Children’s Centre paid:
 £100k upon the transfer of parcel TC4b to
DCC to be used for the design of the
building(s);
 £1.5m 6 months following the Town Centre
retail planning permission being Judicial
Review (JR) free (6 weeks after approval)
and completion of the associated S106.
 £1.4m 12 months above the £1.5m
payment above.
TC1, part of TC2 and TC4c to be transferred for
£1 to EDDC, DCC or CTC (as appropriate) upon
the grant of the first JR free Town Centre
residential consent and completion of the varied
S106 agreement.

Health and well 0.7
being
Extra care
0.5
Town Council
0.05
Facility

page 172

Public
Conveniences

N/A

2500 homes Serviced land

237 sq. m

Only if not
within a
commercial
building

Public Realm
and Public Art

N/A

N/A

Design Codes

N/A

N/A

2500 homes Serviced land
3450 homes Land and
building

2000 homes Land and
building or
commuted sum
of £200k (if not
within a
commercial
building)
Agree
EDNCp to
details prior deliver with
to
commuted sum
commence
for
ment and
maintenance.
payment of
contribution
at
completion
18th May
To be submitted
2019
and agreed.

£592,000 financial contribution for the Town
Council facility paid 18 months after the JR free
Town centre residential planning permission(s) is
secured and completion of the variation S106
agreement. Officer note – use of the term ‘town
centre residential planning permission(s)’ is
different to the first para. Re. land transfer as it
doesn’t tie the trigger for the payment to only the
first town centre residential planning permission.
Parcels TC1, TC2 (part of) and TC4c would be
transferred allowing EDDC, DCC and/or CTC (as
appropriate) to use them for use as it though fit
and appropriate within the confines of the CIL
Regs provide that such uses do not adversely
affect financial or commercial viability of EDNCp’s
development.
To be provided within a public building.
No commuted sum or capital contribution for
construction.

Obligations discharged by development of parcel
TC4a

To be deemed discharged
Design Statement to be agreed between the
parties

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

District
Heating

N/A

N/A

Sports Pitches

7.3ha in
total
across
existing
consent.

To include
pavilion at
Ingram’s

page 173

Car Parking
Strategy
Marketing

Current
delivery
shortfall
of
between
0.9ha
and
1.45ha
Affordable
Housing
pursuant to
current outline
Traffic
Monitoring, offsite Public
Transport

18th May
2019
18 months
following
agreement
of design
codes
To connect
all
developmen
t.

To be submitted
and agreed.
To market all
town centre
retail space

To be deemed discharged

Reasonable
endeavours to
connect.

EDNCp to provide DH to dwellings (note not the
commercial units) provided the cost is no greater
than a currently unspecified amount per plot. If
costs are greater than those anticipated than
EDNCp and HDD shall use a low carbon
alternative.

All delivered
by 3000th
dwelling

Sports pitches
definition also
includes the
allotments
(0.8ha) and an
AGP (not to be
part of the
Education
Campus).

No delivery of or financial contribution towards an
AGP (cost c. £900k). No additional land
specifically provided for sports pitches. 0.64ha of
town centre land to be transferred to the Council
in excess of other obligations and is in effect inlieu of sport pitch land.

28.68%

28.68%, equating to 27 units

To be deemed discharged

Previously understood that these units would be
provided in the purely residential parcels but
unclear from latest MOU draft.
Existing obligations totalling c. £668k (with
indexation) removed.

Interchange,
Bus detection,
M5 J29 works

Obligations for Extra over housing – to be secured through S106. No timescales for payment given for
any item unless stated
Item
Hab Regs Mitigation

EDDC/DCC request (per dwelling)
Payment of £499 per dwelling for noninfrastructure mitigation
Payment of £2,052 per dwelling for costs
associated with delivery and
maintenance of SANGS, including
estimated land purchase costs.

page 174

Formal play
Allotments
Bowling Green Provision (off-site)
Primary Education
Sustainable Transport
Shared Cars & E Bikes

Total per dwelling: £2,551
£107,366
£50,930
£3,441
£3,449
£2,219
£71.94

December 2020 Proposal
No direct SANG provision
Financial contribution of £2,551 per
dwelling

Nil – monies used to increase
contribution toward Town Council Office
delivery
£1,172 per dwelling for Primary
Education
£1,045 per dwelling for Sustainable
Transport
£72 per dwelling for shared cars & ebikes
Both payable when the £1m payment due
from DCC in relation to the Clyst Honiton
Bypass.
The trigger for these payments are
immediately following DCC paying the
EDNCp £1m as set out under clause 29.1

Affordable Housing
Formal Open Space
Amenity Open Space

Natural/semi natural open space

page 175

Sports pitches
Leisure Centre
Cricket (off-site)
Health & Wellbeing Hub
Off-site walking & cycling
infrastructure
AGP contribution (off-site in
Broadclyst)

15% based on Cranbrook Plan (c. 43
units)
£423
£122.30 (have indicated that could
probably nil rate due to existing
provision)
£333.30 (have indicated that could
probably nil rate due to existing
provision)
£841.32
£942.45
£74.33
£2102.97
£606.71
£67.14

of the existing S106. This £1m payment
is due once 56,000 sq. m of floorspace is
delivered at Skypark. To date 15,030 sq.
m of floorspace has been given detailed
consent, of which 13,208 sq. m.
implemented. There is an undetermined
application for an additional 3,307 sq.m
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Additional land purchase offers in MOU
Balance of parcel TC2

EDDC may acquire the remainder of the parcel for £1.
Offer to transfer shall be made within 1 month of the completion
of the varied S106 agreement and the grant of the first
residential planning permission and remain open for 6 months
for EDDC to accept a transfer.
If offer to transfer isn’t accepted then EDNCp will be free to
develop it for residential purposes.

Parcels TC3, TC4d and TC4e

EDDC may acquire the parcels for a price per acre to be
agreed before the MOU is signed and to reflect market
residential value per acre.
Offer to transfer shall be made upon completion of the MOU
and remain open for 18 months. EDDC shall accept the offer to
transfer an entire parcel or none of that parcel.
If the offer to transfer isn’t accepted within the 18 month period
then EDNCp will be free to develop the land for residential
purposes.
If EDDC purchase a parcel/s they shall be free to use it for
uses as is thought fit and appropriate and my include town
centre uses under the existing s106 agreement provided that
such uses do not adversely affect financial or commercial
viability of EDNCp’s development.

page 176

Appendix 5: EDNCp Viability Information

page 177

page 178

page 179

page 180

page 181

Agenda Item 25
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Cranbrook Sport Pavilion Delivery
Report summary:
This report provides members with an update to the Cabinet report that was considered on the 27
November 2019 where it was resolved that:
1. “East Devon District Council take the transfer of a plot of serviced land at the Ingram’s
sports hub in Cranbrook and procure and project manage the delivery of a sports pavilion at
the sports hub (to a design to be agreed with Cranbrook Town Council) using identified
Section 106 monies and external funding”
2. “Delegated authority be given to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the
Strategic Leads for Governance and Licensing and Finance, to carry out appropriate due
diligence, agree satisfactory heads of terms with relevant parties, secure external funding
and thereafter to progress the transfer of the land, delivery of the project and transfer of the
completed sports pavilion to Cranbrook Town Council, upon practical completion of the
building”.
Over the past 12 months East Devon District Council have undertaken the due diligence promised
within the 2019 report and identified two funding challenges. Firstly that the monies that are
proposed by the developer consortium in lieu of their onsite obligations are lower than could be
expected and that the costs of delivering the 6 changing room pavilion building that was aspired
to, have increased. This leaves a gap in funding.
As explored in more detail within the main report below two options result – that which passes the
responsibility for delivering the basic changing room building back to the developer consortium
(and for either the Town Council or this Council to then try to rework and extend that building with
the remaining monies) or for this Council to press on and deliver a building which is of an
appropriate size and specification to meet the requirements of the various sports governing bodies
(whilst still maintaining the provision of a function room) but recognising that the final building may
be smaller than that which was originally hoped for.

Recommendation:
1. That Cabinet considers the current position in terms of the delivery of the Sports Pavilion,
the position of Cranbrook Town Council, and reaffirms this Council’s commitment to the two
decisions that were previously made on 27th November 2019, whilst recognising that cost
savings will need to be found within the project to ensure that it remains within the available
budget.
2. That Cabinet resolves to adopt either Option One or Option Two as set out in this report
and confirms the delegated authority as set out in the decision made on 27th November
2019, recognising that the delegated authority previously exercised by the Deputy Chief
Executive is now exercisable by the Chief Executive. Members may also wish to add
page 182

consultation with the Portfolio Holder Economy and Assets and/or Ward Members into this
recommendation.
Reason for recommendations:
East Devon District Council remain best placed to bring together a number of different funding
streams and to coordinate and manage the final design procurement and delivery. This also
represents a more sustainable and cost effective approach to delivery rather than leave the
delivery of an unsuitable building to the developer consortium with the subsequent requirements to
reorder and rework the building to meet the requirements of the sports governing bodies.
Officer: James Brown jbrown@eastdevon.gov.uk 01395 517572
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☒ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Finance
☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
Financial details are included in the report.
Legal implications:
Legal services will work with fellow Officers to ensure that all due diligence, procurement
requirements etc. are delivered appropriately and will deal with taking the transfer of land at the
appropriate time and on the appropriate terms.
Equalities impact Low Impact
To meet the FA, ECB and Sport England requirements adequate provision must be given to
accessibility to the new building (and rooms inside) as well as in making suitable provision and
separate changing and toilet facilities for both men and women, teams and officials.
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk; The delivery of the building is secured through Section 106 and external funding
and as such there should be no financial burden placed on the Council, other than in Officer time.
Construction cost risks and overspend can be managed through the type of contract that is
secured with a manufacturer/building company. The liability that the Council would hold, would be
time limited to that period between receipt of land and the practical completion of the building. In
the event that the Town Council failed to take on responsibility for the building at the Practical
Completion stage, previous assessments indicate that it is ultimately an asset which the District
Council could, if necessary, retain and manage as a profitable proposition. Even with the possible
reduction in size it is not considered that his position would alter significantly.
Links to background information Cabinet Report 27 November 2019 (Item 95)
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
page 183

☒ Outstanding Place and Environment
☒ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☐ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☐ Outstanding Council and Council Services

Report in full
Background
The Sports hub at Cranbrook (known as Ingrams) was conceived in 2014 when an application was
submitted to the District Council which brought together and co-located the new town’s cricket and
football requirements.
Since May 2019 the sports fields which were approved through that application have been in use
at the hub. This has finally allowed the playing of football and other field related sports activities
within the town and is an important milestone.
The cricket square which also forms part of the hub has also been laid and was also available for
use from summer 2019.
However as part of the 2014 application, a design and layout for a changing room building was
also approved. This met the requirements of the previously signed Section 106 agreement which
accompanies the outline planning permission at Cranbrook.
The developers are now in a position to deliver the changing room building in accordance with the
2014 permission which remains extant but the size and specification of that building, whilst
meeting historic obligations, is not appropriate for today’s needs.
To address this an alternative delivery mechanism was proposed and agreed through Cabinet in
November 2019. This involved the developers providing a monetary contribution in lieu of their
development obligation which this Council would then join with other funding secured through
Cranbrook section 106 receipts and external grant funding, and deliver an enhanced pavilion and
changing room building, ensuring that up to 6 changing rooms of an appropriate size and
specification together with a function room and or family room were provided. This would bring the
facility in-line with the standards of the relevant sports governing bodies and in the case of the
function room/family room provide a lettable space and bar area to enable it to form a wider
community facility and generate an income to fund its long term maintenance.
Since the November 2019 Cabinet meeting where it was resolved that East Devon District Council
would be prepared to receive the transfer of serviced land and procure a sports pavilion at the
Cranbrook Sports hub, detailed work has been undertaken on the costs for the delivery of the
building as well as the value of the asset that the developer consortium are obliged to provide and
for which they are willing to offer a financial sum as an alternative.
Costs for these two buildings have been obtained by the Council from independent cost
consultants who set out that for the “full” pavilion building, these are higher than the Consortium
had indicated to us but also that the value of the work to deliver the basic changing room building
is also higher than the Consortium are offering. Work around these two related issues held up the
signing of a Deed of variation that would have fixed the receipts that East Devon receive and the
route for delivery. At this point in time it is necessary that members are re-appraised of the
current situation and the options available.

page 184

Option 1
East Devon District Council to require the developer consortium at Cranbrook to build out the
basic changing room pavilion that they are currently under obligation to do and for which they
already have planning permission. Enlargement of this facility to bring it up to appropriate
specification could then follow with the works being procured either by East Devon District Council
or Cranbrook Town Council.
This option would ensure that the consortium carried all the liabilities and risks associated with
delivering the basic changing room pavilion including the car park and initial ground works. While
parts of this option appear attractive, the previous cabinet report at paragraph 1.6 set out that the
changing rooms, which would be constructed, fail to meet the requirements of the sports
governing bodies noting that:
“While measuring 22m x 11.6m and delivering 4 changing rooms the facility:
 Fails to meet the England and Wales Cricket Board (ECB) requirements for changing room
and pavilion requirements
 Is inadequate for football failing to meet current minimum standards (although can be used
for entry level leagues)
 Would continue to be an asset drain for Cranbrook Town Council having little or no income
generating potential.”
To add some extra detail to these general short-comings it is important to recognise that the
current design fails for the following reasons:







Lack of individual shower cubicles
Lack of child protection privacy screens/vestibules between the corridors and changing
area (there would be direct lines of sight into the changing areas when the doors are open)
The changing areas are too small currently at 13m2 whereas football require 16m2 and
cricket require 20m2
There is no plant room identified/provided
No external toilets for visitors/spectators meaning that they would have to pass through the
changing areas with all the safeguarding risks that this brings with it.

In receiving this as an asset there would as a result be significant remedial works that either Local
Authority would be required to undertake before actual enlargement could be considered. This
option, while negating the upfront risks would therefore carry high remedial costs which would
result in a waste of money and fail to achieve or make best use of the limited funding opportunities
that are available for the project outside of the developer provided finance.
Option 2
East Devon District Council to reaffirm its previous commitment to the project, take transfer of the
land and to procure and project manage the delivery of the pavilion - delivering the most
appropriate building that it can with the monies that are available whilst recognising that this may
be smaller than was previously envisaged – targeting 4 rather 6 changing rooms and a single
family/meeting room.
To start this option would require East Devon District Council to finalise a value for the works that
would otherwise fall to the developers. Based on the independent assessment of the costs, the
value that is being offered is still some way short of the likely cost that would be incurred by the
Council were it to deliver the same building. However in recognising this headline shortfall, it
doesn’t capture the cost saving and buying power of the developers which somewhat reduces the
apparent shortfall. In addition the Developer consortium have also indicated that our costs are
higher due to an increased specification, greater preliminary costs and a substantial contingency
page 185

and it is recognised that some savings could potentially be made in these areas albeit not to the
extent indicated by the consortium.
Negotiations are essentially at an end and following a recent increase in the offer by the
developers of up to £90,000 (yet to be finalised), it is considered that while still adrift, the
remaining gap cannot be closed further. The residual shortfall would therefore be reduced but
remain in the order of £300,000 or 32% of possible costs and is something that must be weighed
in the balance when deciding between the two options.
This option also results in the community at large carrying the up-front risk that is associated with
any project delivery – particularly in terms of the liability of land holding and the potential for cost
over-run which could ultimately see the building having to be value engineered to bring it back
within budget.
However the option brings with it the scenario that the building can be designed to meet all
required specifications from the outset. This alone makes for a range of cost savings where
reworking and retrofitting would otherwise be problematic and costly. While any Local Authority
won’t have the buying power of a large developer, to undertake the project as a single entity has
the benefits of only incurring a single set of development costs which would otherwise be
duplicated were this to be undertaken as a two staged approach with two different development
teams. As a result this option is favoured.
Cranbrook Town Council
At a meeting on the 19 October 2020, Cranbrook Town Council resolved the following:
a) request that the East Devon New Community Partners deliver their Section 106 obligation
for four changing rooms plus car park and associated landscaping at the Ingrams site, in
the absence of East Devon District Council being able to reach an agreement with them.
b) request that the remaining monies relating to the Country Park Resource Centre, the
provision of youth play areas, the public art contribution as well as the Sport England
contribution be transferred to the Town Council so that the Town Council can deliver the
extension of the four changing rooms into a pavilion.
c) enter into negotiations with the East Devon New Community Partners to either jointly
deliver the entire building at the same time or design the changing rooms in a way which
would facilitate the extension of the facility in a cost efficient manner in the future.
Items “a” and “b” are essentially option 1 and therefore it is clear that the Town Council favour this
approach. For the reasons set out above, Officers are not of the opinion that this is the most
appropriate option because of the level of disparity between the consented scheme and the
current requirements of the sport’s governing bodies.
In respect of item c – effectively a hybrid approach - the District Council has already explored a
range of delivery options with the Developer Consortium but none of these could be made to work
successfully for all sides. The Consortium has consistently been clear that they have already
incurred significant design costs which have proved abortive and they are not willing to engage in
further revision. In addition certainty for Sport England as a key funder is also important and there
will need to be a clear and transparent approach to costs and a requirement that the facility meets
the needs of the sport’s governing bodies to enable us to secure the available funding. The
approach advocated through item c risks bringing more uncertainty to a project that is urgently
needed with a high likelihood of a circular argument that goes back to items a and b with all the
difficulties that these present.
page 186

Overall it is considered that East Devon District Council is better placed to have oversight of the
different funding streams that would come to play for this project - including the anticipated grant
from Sport England which itself arises from a bid made by this Council. Further East Devon has a
range of skills and experience in delivering such projects that could more easily be deployed were
it to retain control of the project. At this stage it is considered that if East Devon District Council
were to leave the project up to the developer consortium and possible negotiation between them
and the own Council it would present an abdication of our duty and responsibility given the greater
resources and experience that we have.

page 187

Agenda Item 26
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Towards Zero Carbon Development in the West End
Report summary:
This report provides an update on progress towards the delivery of zero carbon development
carbon development in the West End of the District. This follows the submission of a funding bid
to the Government’s Heat Network Investment Programme. Subject to the outcome of this bid, the
report outlines the next steps that will be required including in terms of framing the role for the
Council and the associated decision making.
Recommendation:
It is recommended that Cabinet;



Endorses the bid that has been made to the Heat Network Investment Programme
Receives a further report when the outcome of the bid is known, further technical work has
been completed and a detailed investment proposal has been developed

Reason for recommendation:
To ensure that there is a clear pathway for achieving large scale zero carbon development in the
West End of the District.
Officers: Andrew Wood, Service Lead – Growth, Development & Prosperity, Tel 01395 571743,
adwood@eastdevon.gov.uk
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☒ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☒ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☒ Finance
☒ Strategic Planning
☒ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
The report outlines how this project can deliver on key priorities for the Council. There is an
investment opportunity for the Council that could make a reasonable return and be a scheme that
the Council would feel comfortable in investing in. Further report/s will continue to explore this as
an opportunity. Reports will also come to Cabinet and Council in respect of this project to agree
its progress and funding mix; at this stage the report is for information and to inform members that
a bid to HNIP as been made.
Legal implications:
There is are no specific legal implications requiring comment at this time.
Equalities impact Low Impact
page 188

Climate change High Impact
The vision for Cranbrook to develop as a zero carbon town is clearly stated in the Cranbrook
Development Plan Document. This project has the potential to secure carbon savings in the order
of 20,000 tonnes per year across the West End of the District. This equates to around two thirds
of the Council’s own carbon emissions and represents the project with the greatest potential to
deliver large scale carbon savings in the District.
Risk: High Risk. This is a complex project involving a wide range of different actors, both public
and private. The role for the Council is potentially multi-faceted, from regulatory through to
becoming a potential investor. The application to the Heat Network Investment Programme
includes to secure funding for technical support, such as legal and financial advice, to ensure that
all relevant risks can be identified and managed going forward.
Links to background information
Zero Carbon Development in the West End, Cabinet Report July 2019
Cranbrook Development Plan Document
The Future Homes Standard: changes to Part Land and Part F of the Building Regulations for new
dwellings
Cranbrook Heat Networks Detailed Feasibility Study
Towards Zero Carbon Development in the West End, Cabinet Report September 2020 item 14
Procuring Finance for Heat Networks: Government guidance
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☒ Outstanding Place and Environment
☒ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

1.

Background and context

1.1
Cabinet has received two previous reports setting out the context for the delivery of zero
carbon development in the West End of the District. The most recent of these was in September
2020. As well as setting out the policy background, this report presented the results of a recent
feasibility study that had considered a range of possible heat sources. This demonstrated that it
was possible to secure large scale carbon savings by utilising alternative technologies to the
biomass solution that was originally negotiated a decade ago. This would equate to around an
80% reduction relative to using gas boilers which, critically, would also ensure compliance with the
forthcoming Future Homes Standard.
1.2
Since the September report a project team including representation from BEIS, EON,
University and City and County Councils has been meeting weekly to work up a detailed proposal.
This has been based on the preferred option arising from the feasibility study, namely utilising
waste heat from a forthcoming Energy from Waste (EfW) plant at Hill Barton that is due to start
construction during the summer of 2021 and be operational by the summer of 2023.

page 189

2.

Heat Network Investment Programme Application

2.1
The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy’s Heat Networks Investment
Programme (HNIP) is a £320m capital programme designed to support the roll out of district
heating networks. The deadline for applications to Round 8 of the programme was the 4 th
January. A proposal was submitted based on securing a connection from the EfW plant to both
the Cranbrook/Skypark and Monkerton networks. This would take the form of a trunk heat main
carrying hot water under pressure. The proposed alignment is set out on the plan below. This will
enable connections to the two existing concession agreement totalling circa 8,000 homes and 2m
sq ft of commercial space as well as the potential to serve the Cranbrook expansion areas (an
additional 4,000 homes).

2.2
The HNIP is a competitive programme. Key metrics by which applications are measured
and evaluated are value for money and carbon savings. For the latter the proposals are expected
to save 20,000 tonnes of carbon per year putting the project at the upper end of the scale for the
projects that are coming forward nationally. Crucially the application has to be able to
demonstrate a positive pre-intervention Internal Rate of Return (IRR). The application has been
based on securing gap funding to raise the IRR to 8%.
2.3
The total capital expenditure for the scheme is £21m. The headline figures for the
application are as follows;
Source

£

Contribution from EON in lieu of s.106 obligation
Enterprise Zone (to be confirmed)
Council/Third party finance
HNIP
page 190

£6m
£4m
£4m
£7.5m

2.4
Clearly these figures need to be finalised and confirmed including meeting all relevant
decision making requirements. This includes consideration of who will provide the equity finance.
There is a potential option here for the Council to invest through the Commercial Investment
Framework. Alternatively a third party financier could be procured, potentially as a blended option
in conjunction with Council investment, and a link to the guidance that would need to be followed
in this respect is included in the background links.
2.5. The application to the HNIP programme includes both construction funding and circa £500k of
technical support. The latter will include financial, procurement and legal support to ensure that a
suitably constituted Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) can come forward to facilitate the connection
to the EfW plant.
2.6
The core purpose of the SPV would be to own the asset (the transmission main) and to
enter in to a supply agreement to take bulk heat from the EfW plant that is being developed by
Stuart Partners and to sell this to EON and whichever energy services company is selected to
serve the Cranbrook expansion areas. It is important to emphasise that this would be a relatively
simple contractual structure and there would be no supply agreements/contracts with individual
households. Overall the heat main would be a strategic asset which is expected to have a
functional life of up to 60 years.
4.

Council Role, Decision Making and Next Steps

4.1
The Council has a key role to play in enabling the large scale delivery of low carbon
development. There are three main aspects to this;
i.
ii.
iii.

Resolving the position in relation to the current s.106 obligation as the Local Planning
Authority
Acting as the lead applicant for the HNIP bid
Becoming an investor in the scheme

4.2
It is important to emphasise that the submission of the HNIP bid does not bind the Council
to playing a particular role other than the statutory role as the LPA. If the HNIP bid is successful
and the technical work progresses then Cabinet will need to take a final decision as to whether the
Council wishes to invest in the scheme. .
4.3
In terms of timings it is expected that a decision on the application will be made in
March/April next year. The further technical work would then take up to a further 12 months to
complete. Subject to a satisfactory outcome to this work the actual construction would take a
further 12 months. Overall these timescales broadly align with those for the construction and
commissioning of the EfW plant.
4.4
It is clear that the project can deliver major carbon savings. Subject to the outcome of the
further technical work, the project also has the potential to provide a reasonable rate of return. By
also considering social benefits there is the potential to look at the scheme on a triple bottom line
basis. Given the significant proportions of affordable housing at Cranbrook, Tithebarn and West
Clyst there is the potential to consider how the investment can help to address fuel poverty in this
respect. Dialogue is being opened with other local authorities who have approached investment in
to heat networks with this as a leading objective.
4.5
It is a specific recommendation of this report that, if the HNIP bid is successful and the
further technical work is completed, Cabinet consider a specific investment proposal. This will
allow a decision to be taken to confirm what role the Council wishes to play.
4.6
The potential for investment from the Enterprise Zone programme has also been identified
as part of the overall funding mix. The proposed heat network will support the delivery of three of
the four EZ sites (Skypark, Science Park and Cranbrook Town Centre) and support the
achievement of clean growth. Again any investment proposal through this programme will need to
be considered by Cabinet.
page 191

5.

Conclusion

5.1
The submission of the bid to the HNIP programme is a key milestone for supporting the
delivery of low carbon development. Subject to the outcome of the bid a further report will be
presented to Cabinet detailing the role that the Council can play including considering a detailed
investment proposal. Given the potential to make a meaning a meaningful contribution to both the
Climate Change Action Plan and the emerging Anti-Poverty Strategy, the intention is for this to be
presented on a triple bottom line basis.

page 192

Agenda Item 27
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Exeter and East Devon Enterprise Zone – amendment to funding agreement for the Ada
Lovelace Building, Exeter Science Park
Report summary:
This report seeks approval to vary the existing funding agreement for the Ada Lovelace Building
on Exeter Science Park. This was originally considered by Cabinet at the January 2019 meeting
and cost savings have been made through the construction process. The funding for the project is
grant, borrowed against future ring fenced business rate income.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that Cabinet;


reduces the grant funding to be invested in the Ada Lovelace Building from £1,110,000 to
£660,000



delegates authority to the Chief Executive to make payments in respect of the project,
subject to the completion of appropriate legal documentation in consultation with the
Strategic Lead (Governance & Licencing).

Reason for recommendation:
Cabinet last received a paper on this project in January 2019, which sought funding for £1.11m of
investment to support the delivery of a 20,000sq ft building on Exeter Science Park. The
Enterprise Zone investment was to support the site infrastructure required to unlock development
and to fit out the internal space to Category A open plan standard. Substantial savings have been
made through the construction process and approval is sought to vary the funding agreement to
reflect these changes.
Officer: Naomi Harnett, Enterprise Zone Programme Manager 07580 297 059 / 01395 571 746 /
nharnett@eastdevon.gov.uk
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☒ Economy and Assets
☒ Finance
☐ Policy Co-ordination and Regional Engagement
page 193

☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
The financial implications are outlined in the report.
Legal implications:
Other than to note that a variation to the legal documentation needs to be entered into, there are
no legal implications requiring comment.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Potential impacts on equality will be managed through the Implementation Plan for the Enterprise
Zone.
Climate change Medium Impact
Risk: Low Risk; The Ada Lovelace building is now nearing practical completion.
Links to background information Cabinet Paper January 2019 – Investment in the Open
Innovation Building (Ada Lovelace Building)
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☐ Outstanding Place and Environment
☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☐ Outstanding Council and Council Services

1. Introduction
1.1 Cabinet received a paper seeking approval to invest £1.11m of funding through the
Enterprise Zone programme to support the delivery of the Ada Lovelace building in January
2019. These funds would be made available through borrowing against future ring fenced
business rate income. The grant was originally intended to fil the gap between the Heart of
the South West Local Enterprise Partnership Growth Deal 2 grant funding of £5.5m and the
envisaged cost of the building. The funding comprised of:
 Cat A fit out of the lettable areas (£895,000)
 Upgrading the surface water attenuation tank (£160,000)
 Anning Road northern foul sewer link (£55,000)
1.2 A variation to the funding agreement is now sought to reflect changes to the build costs and
the proposed specification for the building. The original budget was £6.61m. Through
taking advantage of contractor efficiencies, technical innovation and the changing market
conditions the development costs have been reduced to around £5.5m whilst still
enhancing the sustainability credentials to net zero carbon for operational energy.

2. Proposal
2.1 The proposed variation to the funding agreement is as follows:
 Upgrade the fit out of the lettable areas from Cat A to Cat A+, along with making
these areas Covid secure (£500,000)
 Funding is no longer required for the surface water attenuation tank
page 194



Increase funding for the Anning Road northern foul sewer link to £85,000

2.2 Funding is also sought for additional items:
 Improving access to the Ada Lovelace Building and the Science Park Centre
through constructing a footpath along Upper Richardson Road and finishing the
road surface (£230,000)
 Improving the environmental sustainability of the building by installing a
transformer to support electric vehicle charging (£75,000)
 Funding building retention and contingency (£62,075 and £27,925 respectively)
2.3 It is recommended that the Enterprise Zone programme funds:
 Upgraded fit out of the building, to a Cat A+ standard. This fit out will include
flooring, sound baffles, floor boxes for power, kitchenettes and meeting rooms.
The improved fit out will support the building in a number of ways, including:
improving the offer of the building and increasingly the likelihood of the space
being let in early 2021, as Covid-19 has had a negative impact upon the
commercial property market. The fit out will also enhance the rent of the building,
along with the financial sustainability.
 The increased cost in implementing the Anning Road northern foul sewer link.
This reflects the increased cost of this part of the scheme.
 The EV Charging Transformer will enable the installation of EV charging, future
proofing the car parking associated with this building.
2.4 These items have a total cost of £660,000, representing a saving of £450,000 to the
Enterprise Zone programme that can be utilised on other projects.
2.5 Funding is also sought for constructing a footpath and finishing the footpath along Upper
Richardson Road. Although this footpath is desirable, it runs parallel to an existing walking
& cycling link. It is proposed to defer consideration of this item to enable all options for
improving connectivity within the Science Park to be explored with Devon County Council
in early 2021.
2.6 The request for building retention and contingency is a revenue item and will not support
the delivery of additional employment space within the Science Park. It is not
recommended that this cost should be met through the Enterprise Zone programme.

3. Conclusion
3.1 The Enterprise Zone designation provides a positive way of supporting the delivery of new
commercial space and jobs within the designated sites. Due to the overall cost savings
made in the delivery of the Ada Lovelace building there is an opportunity to reduce the
amount of Enterprise Zone funding that is required. The additional items are considered to
support the future operational and financial sustainability of the building.

page 195

Agenda Item 28
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
S106 and CIL Internal Audit Report
Report summary:
South West Audit Partnership have undertaken an audit of the S106 and CIL system. The purpose
of the audit was to ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place to manage the receipt and
expenditure of S106 and CIL contributions. The audit was brought forward at the request of the
leader having originally been planned for quarter 4.
The report gives “limited assurance” noting that the S106 spend and collection work is not up to
date due to the substantial work that has been involved in populating the Exacom system and the
redeployment of officers into the community hub to help to support the community through the
Covid-19 pandemic. The report notes that no monies have been lost or returned to developers as
a result of this lack of resource but there are a significant number of outstanding actions required
on the system.
The report makes two priority 2 recommendations relating to appointing additional temporary staff
resource to help get the system up to date and the updating of guidance on the participatory
budgeting process. A further two priority 3 recommendations are made in relation to the
introduction of the public facing Exacom module and the use of Exacom for recovering outstanding
payments. Officers acknowledge the findings of the audit and are committed to addressing the
identified issues as a priority.
Recommendation:
That Members note the attached internal audit report and that it will be reported to Audit and
Governance Committee at their meeting on the 28 January 2021 and then to Strategic Planning
Committee for them to consider.
Reason for recommendation:
To make Members aware of the findings of the S106 and CIL Audit and the actions that are being
taken to consider and respond to the findings.
Officer: Ed Freeman – Service Lead Planning Strategy and Development Management,
efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk, Tel: 01395 517519
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☐ Economy and Assets
☐ Finance
page 196

☐ Policy Co-ordination and Regional Engagement
☒ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
The recommendation for the appointment of additional temporary staff resource has been
included in the preparation of the 2021/22 budget. This additional staff resource has been
estimated at a cost of £33,000 and has been fully funded within the budget by an increased
income contribution.
Legal implications:
The report does not raise any specific legal implications requiring comment.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk;
Links to background information S106 and CIL Internal Audit Report
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☐ Outstanding Place and Environment
☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☐ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

page 197

Agenda Item 29
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Financial Monitoring Report 2020/21 – Month 8 November 2020
Report summary:
This report gives a summary of the Council’s overall financial position for 2020/21 at the end of
month eight (30 November 2020).
Current monitoring indicates that:


The General Fund Balance is being maintained at or above the adopted level.
A significant overspend against budget is predicted from a combination of additional
expenditure and reduced income as result of Covid-19. This overspend is being mitigated
through additional Government Funding, including the recently announced income
guarantee scheme, the healthy financial position of the General Fund Balance as a result of
2019/20 Outturn position and steps taken by services. The shortfall will be covered by use of
the General Fund Balance as previously agreed which leave the balance within the adopted
range.



The Housing Revenue Account Balance is being maintained at or above the adopted level.

Recommendation:
The variances identified as part of the Revenue and Capital Monitoring process up to
Month 8 be acknowledged.
Reason for recommendation:
The report updates Members on the overall financial position of the Authority at set periods and
includes recommendations where corrective action is required for the remainder of the financial
year.
Officer: John Symes, Finance Manager, jsymes@eastdevon.gov.uk, 01395 517413
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☐ Economy and Assets
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☒ Finance
☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
page 198

Financial implications:
Contained within the report.
Legal implications:
Any legal implications are identified in the report and no further comment is required.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk;
Links to background information
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☐ Outstanding Place and Environment
☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☐ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

Report in full
1.

Introduction

1.1

The purpose of this monitoring report is to update members of Cabinet on the overall
financial position of the Authority following the end of month eight. The report considers
expenditure to date and projections on year end spend to determine if the Council will
maintain it’s spending within budget and maintain the General Fund Balance and the
Housing Revenue Account Balance within the adopted ranges.

2.

General Fund Position as at Month 8 November 2020

2.1

The following table shows the original budget set for the year and any supplementary
estimates approved to date affecting the General Fund position. In year variances have
been identified which are likely to alter the outturn position for the year as detailed in the
table below.
Members have been presented with financial updates during the financial year highlighting
the significant implications of Covid-19 on the Council’s finances. This highlighted the
significant impact of additional spend because of various measures and implications of
Covid-19 and a large reduction in income from fees and charges against the budget set.
This is a changing position and is being carefully monitored. The latest position is reflected
in the table below.
The Government have responded in direct funding of authorities, our allocation to date
being £1.810m, they have also introduced a scheme to reimburse Councils for lost income
from fees and charges (75% of lost income against the budget after the first 5% is
deducted) in recognition that authorities rely on this income to pay for essential services. An
initial assessment against the scheme of £1.7m was made, however further detail has
resulted in the exclusion of some income lines and also since the initial assessment
services have fortunately seen income streams return, for example Local Land Charges
that is now predicted higher levels of income than budgeted.

page 199

The following variance analysis includes the LED additional subsidy sum which is at this
stage is funded by the General Fund balance, however the Council is expecting to be able
to make a claim against Government funding but we await the claim criteria.
General Fund Position

£000

Original Budget Requirement (set 26/02/20)

12,554

Month 8 predicted adverse (A) / favourable (F) spend at year end
(detailed below)

1,386

Predicted Outturn Position 31/3/2021

13,940

A summary of the predicted over and under spends to the Year End is shown below:

Predicted over / (under) spends

Car Parks – income loss due to CV19

Predicted
Outturn
Variation
£000
661 (A)

Govt
SFC* Predicted
claim
Net
scheme Variation
£000
£000
514 (F)
147 (A)

Beach Huts & Chalets – income loss due to
CV19

97 (A)

72 (F)

25 (A)

Local Land Charges – income loss due to CV19

34 (F)

0

34(F)

389 (A)

277 (F)

112 (A)

19 (A)

14 (F)

5 (A)

2 (A)

0

2 (A)

58 (A)

41 (F)

17 (A)

Other fees & charges – income loss due to CV19

241 (A)

184 (F)

57 (A)

Net interest (after loans) – net loss due to CV19

337 (A)

-

337 (A)

Other Grants & Con’t 3rd party/donations loss due
to CV19

178 (A)

-

178 (A)

1,810 (F)

-

1,810 (F)

121 (F)

-

121 (F)

LED additional subsidy – shall not exceed and
we await claim criteria for Government funding

1,339 (A)

-

1,339 (A)

Non spend grounds maintenance agency staff
budget

71(F)

-

71 (F)

Public Conveniences – additional costs on
opening

80 (A)

-

80 (A)

COVID-19 additional costs – Homeless
accommodation, mail outs, PPE, signage,
overtime, community group grants

201 (A)

-

201 (A)

Strata savings – additional savings made to
assist partners

100 (F)

-

100 (F)

Manor Pavilion – income loss due to CV19
Licencing – income loss due to CV19
Green Waste Service – income loss due to CV19
Building Control – income loss due to CV19

Additional Government Grant received in year
Predicted Furlough Funding & other savings e.g.
travel

page 200

Housing Benefit awarded – overpayments
recovery expected to be lower by £600k

514 (A)

Business Rate court summons income down due
to courts not opening until October

125 (A)

Refuse Collection & Recycling – Recycling
income £468k (A), Cost Savings £85k (F)

383 (A)

Predicted Net Outturn Total Variations
General Fund

514 (A)
-

125 (A)
383 (A)

2,488 (A) 1,102 (F)

1,386 (A)

*Sales Fees and Charges

2.2

These variations will have the following overall effect on the Council’s General Fund
Balance:
£000
General Fund balance as at 1/4/2020
Use of General Fund to balance 2020/21 Budget

6,395 (F)
0

Net predicted overspend

1,386 (A)

Transfer to MTFP risk reserve

2,000 (A)

Predicted General Fund Balance 31/03/21

3,009 (F)

The Council has an adopted range for the General Fund Balance to be within £3m to £3.8m.
The predicted balance is currently within this range and any required action can be taken at
year end (based on approval of MTFP risk reserve transfer).
3.

Housing Revenue Account Position – month 8

3.1

The following table shows the variation against the original budget which will affect the
Housing Revenue Account year end position.
Predicted adverse (A) / favourable (F) spends

Predicted
Outturn
Variation
£000

Income

492 (A)

Responsive Repairs

451 (A)

Programme Maintenance

337 (F)

Special Works

467 (F)

Supervision & Management

450 (F)

Other Expenditure

180 (F)

Major Repairs

683 (F)

Financing interest on Balances

33 (A)

Predicted Outturn Total Variations HRA
Notable items of budget variance are;


Income lower but materially consistent with prior year
page 201

1,141 (F)



3.2

COVID requirements and work restrictions have impacted significantly on the
Council’s ability to carry out certain types of work and therefore expenditure is
under budget.

The following table shows the original budget surplus set for the year and the total
variations as identified above, which are likely to affect the budget to give a revised
budget deficit for the year.
HRA (Surplus)/Deficit

£000

Original Budget surplus (Council 26/2/20)

927 (F)

Month 8 predicted net (under)/overspend to year end

214 (F)

Predicted Budget (Surplus)/Deficit HRA

1,141 (F)

The original approved budget generates a surplus of £0.927m in 2020/21. This sum was to
be used to help finance the purchase of properties, continuing with the £5m annual
investment programme (£3.5m from reserves/surplus and £1.5m from RTB receipts).
3.3

The following table shows the effect on HRA Reserve:
£000
HRA balance as at 1/4/2020

4,059 (F)

Predicted net over / (under) spend to year end

1,141 (F)

Predicted General Fund Balance 31/03/21

5,200 (F)

The HRA Balance is required to be maintained within the adopted range of £2.1m and
£3.1m, it is currently being projected to be £5.2m at the end of 2020/21. Other reserves
held by the HRA are contained in the most recent report to Housing Review Board.
4.

Capital Programme Position up to Month 8

4.1

Below is the current position estimated for the capital programme which reflects a reprofiling of expenditure taking into account carried forward from the 2019/20 budget.
Capital Programme

£000

Net Capital Programme Budget (Council 26/02/20)

7,453

2019/20 outturn position, budget slippage into 2020/21

8,057

Revised 2020/21 budget

15,510

Capital Programme variations

0

Actual Capital Expenditure

2,958

Unpaid orders

1,533

Capital Budget Requirement for remainder of year
in line with programme

page 202

11,019

4.2

Details of the annual capital programme financing is given below:
Capital Programme Financing

£000

Predicted Capital Budget Requirement Month 8

15,510

HRA Financing

(4,906)

New Homes Bonus

(2,054)

General Fund Capital Receipts

4.3

(100)

Contribution to/ (use of) Capital Reserve

(2,505)

Net Internal/External Borrowing

(5,945)

The Council currently does not hold a general capital reserve and all funding needs to be
found. The cash required to fund the expenditure of £5.945m can be met from internal cash
balances or through raising loans, this decision is made in line with Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy. The revenue implications of funding this position has been factored
into the revenue monitoring position.

page 203

Agenda Item 30
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Annual Treasury Management Review 2019/20 – 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
Report summary:
This report details the overall position and performance of the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy during 2019/20.
Recommendation:
Cabinet is requested to review and note the investment values and performance for the
year to 31 March 2020.

Reason for recommendation:
The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 and the Code
of Practice on Treasury Management in Public Services published by the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance & Accounting (CIPFA) to produce an annual review of its treasury management
activities and performance.

Officer: Janet Reeves – Accountant. jreeves@eastdevon.gov.uk .01404 515616, Extension 2033
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☐ Economy and Assets
☒ Finance
☐ Policy Co-ordination and Regional Engagement
☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
Contained within the report.
Legal implications:
It is understood that the Finance team carries out Treasury Management within the specific
legislative framework applicable to local authorities. No further legal comment is required.
page 204

Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk; any depositing of surplus funds exposes the Council to a certain degree of risk
relating to the security of deposits, investment return and interest rate risk. However, through the
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy, the level of risk is proactively managed to an
acceptable level.
Links to background information
East Devon District Council Annual Treasury Management Review 2019/20
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☐ Outstanding Place and Environment
☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☐ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☒ Outstanding Council and Council Services

page 205

Agenda Item 31
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release None
Proposed Deed of Variation to Lease of Units 3 & 4 Salterton Road, Industrial Estate,
Exmouth
Report summary:
To consider an application for a Deed of Variation to a long ground lease of Units 3 & 4 Salterton
Road Industrial Estate, Exmouth and approve terms and conditions provisionally agreed with the
lessee on behalf of the Council in respect of this matter.

Recommendation:
That Cabinet resolves to enter into a Deed of Variation on the provisionally agreed terms and
conditions set out in the body of the report with delegated authority being granted to Service Lead
– Place, Asset and Commercialisation in consultation with the Portfolio Holder, Economy and
Assets to agree the specific terms.

Reason for recommendation:
The completion of a Deed of Variation on the terms and conditions set out in the report will assist
the Council in obtaining a more favourable rent increase at the remaining review dates and
provide greater certainty in the recovery of contributions towards the maintenance of the estate
service road.
Officer: Tim Child, Service Lead – Place, Assets & Commercialisation
Email: tchild@eastdevon.gov.uk Tel 01395 571692

Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☐ Climate Action
☐ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☒ Economy and Assets
☐ Finance
☐ Policy Co-ordination and Regional Engagement
☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
Financial implications:
Financial implications identified in the report.
page 206

Legal implications:
Legal Services will progress the Deed of Variation and ensure that any changes made are
appropriate and continue to protect the Council appropriately.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Low Impact
Risk: Low Risk; given that the Council’s legal and surveyor’s costs will be covered by the lessee
irrespective of whether the transaction completes

Links to background information Not applicable
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☐ Outstanding Place and Environment
☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☒ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☐ Outstanding Council and Council Services

Report in full
Background
East Devon District Council owns the freehold interest in the industrial estate at Salterton Road,
Exmouth, which for identification purposes is shown edged in blue on the plan below:-

The various buildings are held by occupiers on long ground leases with the contractual terms
ending between 2074 and 2098.
The property being specifically considered in this report, comprising Units 3 & 4 Salterton Road
Industrial Estate, is leased to Hartfield Construction Ltd for a term of 125 years from 29 May 1973,
with the unexpired term being 78 years. For identification purposes the extent of the demise is
shown edged in red on the above plan:page 207

Under the provisions of this lease, as amended by various Deeds of Variation the rent is subject to
review at 25 year intervals with the current rent of £2,250 per annum being subject to review on 29
May 2023. It is clear from the wording of the lease that the whole of the demised land can be
assigned or sublet but the wording leaves it open to interpretation in legal terms as to whether
assignment or subletting in part is permitted. The original user clause was very restrictive but this
has been widened to allow any uses within B1 & B8 of the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987.
Hartfield Construction Ltd has applied to the Council for a Deed of Variation to its lease to
specifically enable subletting of part of its demise and to further amend the User Clause to allow
uses within B2, subject to any necessary planning consents, in addition to uses B1 and B8 of the
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)
The effect of this Deed of Variation will be to enable a sublease that has already been granted of
part (ie Unit 3) without the previous knowledge or consent of the Council to be regularised and
allow Hartfield Construction to proceed with any further subletting of Unit 3 to a third party for a
term of years expiring 3 days’ before that of the head lease whilst remaining in occupation of Unit
4.
The Present Position
Following lengthy negotiations with Hartfield Construction Ltd the following terms and conditions
have been provisionally agreed for the completion of a Deed of variation:

The proposed Deed of Variation shall amend the original lease to provide part subletting of
the original demise may take place, subject to the consent of the Council, the User Clause
is amended to allow B2 Uses (of the whole) and specific rights of access are granted over
the section of service road shown coloured brown on the plan included in this report,
subject to paying upon demand a contribution towards its future maintenance, assessed
according to user. On this latter point, this will make it easier for the Council to recover
costs.



The rent review provisions shall be amended to provide that at each review date the rent is
to be assessed on an upwards only basis, assuming a vacant site with B1, B2 and B8 uses
with the assumed term being for the residue of the original term from the review date.



The lessee shall be responsible for the payment of the Council’s reasonable legal costs,
initially capped at £2,000 plus disbursements together with a surveyor’s fee of £1,000.

If a Deed of Variation were to be completed on the terms and conditions set out above this would
assist the Council in obtaining a more favourable rent at the remaining review dates with the
widened user clause within the lease and greater flexibility on the part of the tenant by being able
to sublet part of the demise. Furthermore, the proposed Deed of Variation would ensure that the
Council was able to recover a contribution towards the cost of maintaining the estate service road
identified on the plan included within this report. What is key in this instance, is that some of the
lease terms are ambiguous and therefore whilst the Council is not seeking a premium, this having
been refused by the lessee, the Council does benefit from new lease terms outlined above which
will be clear and enhance the rental uplift at rent review.

page 208

Agenda Item 32
Report to:

Cabinet

Date of Meeting 6 January 2021
Document classification: Part A Public Document
Exemption applied: None
Review date for release N/A
Resource and Waste Management Strategy for Devon and Torbay
Report summary:
This report outlines the new draft Resource and Waste Management Strategy for Devon and
Torbay. It describes how the Devon local authorities and Torbay will manage Local Authority
Collected Waste (household waste, litter, fly-tipped, street sweepings and some trade) from 20202030. The delivery of this Strategy will be overseen by the Devon Authorities Strategic Waste
Committee (DASWC). Torbay are party to the Strategy but, as a Unitary Authority, also have their
own.
Following its approval at the DASWC meeting on 15th October 2020, the draft Strategy requires
the approval of the individual local authorities for proceeding to public consultation. After the public
consultation and further scrutiny by the DASWC, the final Strategy will be brought back for
endorsement by the relevant individual authorities. It will then be presented to Devon County
Council for final adoption.

Recommendation:
Approve the draft Resource and Waste Management Strategy for Devon and Torbay for public
consultation
Reason for recommendation:
Approval will allow a full public consultation to take place
Officer: Gareth Bourton, Recycling & Waste Contracts Manager gbourton@eastdevon.gov.uk
07890 612850
Portfolio(s) (check which apply):
☒ Climate Action
☐ Corporate Services and COVID-19 Response and Recovery
☐ Democracy and Transparency
☐ Economy and Assets
☒ Coast, Country and Environment
☐ Finance
☐ Strategic Planning
☐ Sustainable Homes and Communities
page 209

Financial implications:
There are no direct financial implication from the recommendation in this report. There are
implications to be determined from the National Strategy discussed in this report and the effects
on our operations at a local level and the consequence on our local budgets – at this stage the
details are unknown.
Legal implications:
As this relates to approving a draft document for consultation there are no specific legal
implications requiring comment.
Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Medium Impact
Risk: Low Risk;
Links to background information
Resource and Waste Management Strategy for Devon and Torbay 2020-2030
Link to Council Plan:
Priorities (check which apply)
☒ Outstanding Place and Environment
☐ Outstanding Homes and Communities
☐ Outstanding Economic Growth, Productivity, and Prosperity
☐ Outstanding Council and Council Services
Introduction
The Review of the 2005 Strategy was published in 2013. Since then there have been significant
developments in recycling and waste management. The Government published its own Resource
and Waste Strategy in 2018 and is currently planning further consultation on several aspects of
this. The Environment Bill is progressing through Parliament although this has been delayed due
to COVID-19.
Given the amount of change which has occurred, it was concluded that a new Strategy for Devon
and Torbay should be written to reflect the direction of travel and changes in national resources
and waste policy. The draft Strategy will be consulted upon over the winter of 2020-21 and the
final Strategy will be presented to DASWC in 2021, following formal approval by the individual
Authorities.
The aim is to provide a document which describes the way in which Devon and Torbay local
authorities will manage resources and waste (under their control) from 2020 – 2030. It sets out
waste policies and targets. The objectives are:
a) To manage Devon’s & Torbay’s waste in a sustainable and cost-efficient manner.
b) To minimise the waste we create.
c) To reduce the impact of resource and waste management in Devon on climate change by
implementing the waste hierarchy and tailoring operations to reduce the waste carbon
footprint.
d) To maximise the value of the resources we use and preserve the stock of material
resources i.e. Preserve natural capital and practice resource efficiency.
Torbay Council, as a Unitary Authority and a member of the DASWC, is closely aligned with the
Devon authorities, having responsibilities for both collection and disposal. Torbay’s collection
system follows the Devon aligned option and they are part of the South West Devon Waste
page 210

Partnership which delivers residual waste to the Devonport Energy from Waste Combined Heat
and Power plant, in Plymouth. Torbay wish to be party to the Devon Strategy but, as a unitary
authority, have also written a short strategy of their own which is currently out for consultation.
The Strategy has been drafted by the Devon Authorities Strategic Waste Committee of which the
Council is a member.
Outcomes/outputs
The draft Strategy can be found as a link to this report. The Strategy focusses on waste prevention
and reuse, but also considers the carbon impact of the authorities’ services. The Environmental
Consultant, Eunomia, and Exeter University have assisted with the analysis of the carbon impact
of Devon’s waste services and their recommendations have been integrated into the Strategy.
Their findings have also been shared with the Devon Climate Emergency Team. Waste Prevention
and Reuse are critically important areas of the Strategy.
Less waste means that costs of collection, recycling and disposal are reduced along with a lower
carbon footprint. The behavioural change work under the Don’t let Devon go to Waste branding
has been a key factor in the success of reducing overall waste arising’s and recycling more and it
will continue to be a fundamental element of the strategy going forwards. Reuse and Recycling in
particular contribute to the move from the linear to the circular economy whereby resources are
kept in use for as long as possible promoting resource efficiency.
The Government’s Resources and Waste Strategy forms the policy background at a national level.
However further consultations are awaited on key Government initiatives within the national
strategy in early 2021. These include consistency on recycling collections, extended producer
responsibility and the introduction of a deposit return scheme. This draft Devon strategy has been
written to take into account the Government Strategy and it is expected to be in line with
Government policy bearing in mind that a second round of consultation is to be undertaken by
DEFRA in early 2021.
The key targets in the Resource & Waste Management Strategy for Devon and Torbay are as
follows:
Carbon
Contribute to net zero carbon for Devon and Torbay by 2050 at the latest by focussing on:
a) Reducing, reusing and recycling more textiles, plastics, metals/Waste Electronic and
Electrical Equipment, food and paper/card
b) Looking specifically at how to reduce the plastics in the residual waste stream
c) Considering options for utilising heat from the ERFs which will need to be commercially
viable
d) Reviewing carbon capture technology as it develops further
e) Increasing the use of carbon friendly fuelled vehicles for transporting waste e.g.
electric/hydrogen, over the period of the Strategy
f) Developing opportunities for local reprocessing with stakeholders – by 2030

page 211

Waste Reduction and Reuse
Reduce the waste collected per head to 416kg per year by 2030 through:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Community engagement
Operational service policies e.g. reducing residual waste collection capacity
Achieve a 20% reduction in food waste by 2025 from 2015 baseline
Increase the amount of waste reused to 2% by 2025 and 5% by 2030

Recycling
a) Recycle at least 60% of household waste by 2025 and 65% by 2035
b) All collection authorities to provide a weekly separate collection of food waste by 2022
c) Collect a consistent range of recyclable materials by 2023 in line with Government
policy with the addition of a broader range by 2030
Miscellaneous
a)
b)
c)
d)

Continue to support Don’t let Devon go to waste/Recycle Devon
Procure a residual waste analysis in 2022 and 2027
Continue to support the Clean Devon Partnership
Work with the Government to deliver services compliant with Extended Producer
Responsibility, Deposit Return Scheme and consistency legislation.

page 212

